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Corporate Structure
NRCIR: R
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Corporate Structure (Cont'd)
s BRRE (AR

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co, Ltd. (7 EI1L R [~ % (5 #]) B[R & (¥ 22 &) (‘Tong Ren Tang Holdings’) is the ultimate holding
company of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. ( 3t IR [A] = = £ £ % J& iR 17 B IR 2 7] ) (‘'Tong Ren Tang Technologies’ or the
“Company’).

FEHE A2 () BREML N 7] ([EBA A ) @I RAICERIFERRHBRN A ([EZZRF ) 3L [RRE])BIRAE
b2 NI

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited (1t R [EI=Z & 17 H R 7~ &]) (‘'Tong Ren Tang Ltd.’) (stock code: 600085.5H) was incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1997 and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in June of the same year. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is the
direct holding company of Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

REACERD BRG] ([EEERE ) (BRERTE - 600085SH)R—AN+EFEREARILFE ([HE])F LT - FFN
FIE FGBFZZHTEME LT - RAICERFAEEFRAG]

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (1t R A= 2 E1%% 5 )R 2 7]) (‘'Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine’) (stock code:
3613.HK) was incorporated in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC ("Hong Kong’) in 2004, listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange’) in May 2013, and transferred to the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange in May 2018. Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine is a subsidiary of the Company.

UARFACEEZEGRAR (RECEEHE]) (RERT - 3613HK) R — EEFEETHEEFFTHE ([EE)) MKz - 2=
E—=FRAUBEHERZFERNF ([ EBBXA)) BIFRAELT AR —FE—NFRABEEEHIER LT
EARRE]ZFILNA] °

For full names of the subsidiaries, please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Corporate Information
/NECIB -2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company (each
the “Director”) of the board (the “Board”) are as follows:

Executive Directors

Gao Zhen Kun (Chairman)
Huang Ning

Wu Le Jun

Wu Qian

Wang Yu Wei

Fang Jia Zhi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Chan Ching Har, Eliza
Zhan Yuan Jing

SUPERVISORS

Su Li (Chairman)
Wu Yi Gang
Dong Ke Man

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wang Yu Wei (General Manager)
Bai Jian

Liu CunYing

Guo Gui Qin

Yang De Chun

Fang Jia Zhi

Zhang Jing Yan

COMPANY SECRETARY

Zhang Jing Yan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Chan Ching Har, Eliza
Zhan Yuan Jing

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhan Yuan Jing (Chairman)
Gao Zhen Kun
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
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Corporate Information (Cont'd)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Gao Zhen Kun (Chairman)
Chan Ching Har, Eliza
Zhan Yuan Jing

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Gao Zhen Kun
Zhang Jing Yan

AUTHORIZED PERSON TO ACCEPT
SERVICE OF PROCESS AND NOTICE

Zhang Jing Yan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG
LAWS

DLA Piper Hong Kong
17/F, Edinburgh Tower, 15 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716,

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Note: During the Reporting Period, the retired Directors include Gu
Hai Ou, Rao Zu Hai, Li Bin, Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Jin Shi Yuan;
the retired supervisors include Ma Bao Jian and Ding Guo Ping;
and the retired senior management include Li Da Ming. For
details of the movement of the above persons, please refer to
the section headed “Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in the chapter “Report of the Board of Directors”
of this report.
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Financial Highlights
W 5 Wk 2

A summary of the consolidated results and the consolidated
balance sheet of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) for each of five years
ended 31 December 2018, as extracted from the audited
financial statements of the Group, is set out below:

UTFAAARRETFARAT AT [ AEB) R
E-F-\E+-A=+-ALEETEZAHE
ERERAHAEABRAE (BROAEEEE
BEER) :

REVENUE
A

AR®TT
RMB’000
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Financial Highlights (Cont'd)
E B HE (4 )

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EARNINGS PER SHARE
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Financial Highlights (Cont'd)
W B 2 (48

Gross profit ratio £ K| &

Net profit ratio ¥ F| &

Current ratio 7t ) b &

Quick ratio ZBj bt 2
Liability/Asset ratio & £ & & &
Equity return ratio A% 7K [B] 33 &
Assets return ratio & [0 3§ &

Total assets & E 4251
Total liabilities B f&E& &t
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ¥z 5B R AN A RIFTA &
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Financial Highlights (Cont'd)
E B HE (4 )

-] 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
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13.82% 15.01% 14.46% 14.38% 13.90%
10.30% 10.93% 10.40% 11.97% 11.13%
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Chairman's Statement
=R EmRE

| am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 for shareholders’
review.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”), the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB5,059,638,000,
representing an increase of 0.69% from RMB5,025,183,000 for the corresponding period of last year; net profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to RMB677,815,000 representing an increase of 1.67% from RMB666,666,000 for the
corresponding period of last year; earnings per share was RMBO0.53 (2017: RMB0.52); and dividend per share was RMB0.18 (2017:
RMBO0.17).

REVIEW OF THE YEAR

In recent years, in face of national control over medical insurance premium, centralized tender procurement of medicines and
increasing pharmaceutical regulations, as well as continuous intensifying health insurance coverage, coupled with the overall
slowdown of GDP growth, the growth rate of traditional Chinese medicine industry has slowed down accordingly, and the industry
is still facing challenges of policy and increase in cost. On the other hand, the Chinese government unswervingly promoted the
"Healthy China Strategy” which was also included as a basic strategy of national development in the Report of the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party of China. Moreover, the report specified that we should “support both traditional Chinese
medicine and Western medicine, and ensure the preservation and development of traditional Chinese medicine”, which provided
a clear direction for the development of traditional Chinese medicine industry. The official implementation of “National Catalogue
of Essential Drugs (2018 Edition)” (¢ B 5 & 7&K 2 %) B £& (2018 4F f))) also fully reflected the adherence to the principle of
supporting both traditional Chinese medicine and Western medicine. Traditional Chinese medicine industry has benefited from
the current macro environment and continued to optimize and upgrade.

2018 was a key year for the policy reform of China’s pharmaceutical industry as well as a key year for the Group to carry out the
"13th Five-Year Plan” linking the past with the future. Facing challenges and changes, we took a pragmatic and forward-looking
attitude, carefully planning and progressively developing, centering on the three main themes of “Reform, Deepening and
Adjustment”, made efforts in intensifying marketing organization reform, thoroughly implementing industrial layout adjustment
and facilitating development, so as to promote the overall stable development of the Group. On the one hand, we actively
grasped the industry development trend and market demand, intensified channel planning, product planning and promotion
planning, and carried out market segmentation and accurate marketing. On the other hand, we aligned us with the developments
and changes arising from coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region as well as relieving Beijing of functions
non-essential to its role as the capital, sped up the adjustment of industry layout and optimized resources allocation. During the
Reporting Period, construction of key projects of the Group all entered the final stage and the Group took a further step towards
the new production layout of “main center plus sub-center”.




Chairman's Statement (Cont'd)
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Chairman’'s Statement (Cont'd)

R (8

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In the future, with intensifying new-type industrialization, informatization and agricultural modernization, as well as acceleration in
the aging of population, health service industry is booming, and demand for traditional Chinese medicine services is increasing.
Despite the demand growth, the quality of products and services is still the key to enhance the competitiveness of traditional
Chinese medicine industry. With increasingly stringent pharmaceutical regulations of the Chinese government, the development
of the industry will be pushed forward in the direction of compliance, standardization and high efficiency. In addition, competition
in the traditional Chinese medicine industry and the reform of national medical and health system will both continue to intensify,
and the pressure on environmental protection will continue to increase. Traditional Chinese medicine enterprises will inevitably
bear multiple pressures and tests in production and operation.

A tree has to strike a firm root before it can flourish. A river has to have a fully dredged source before it can flow unceasingly far.
The Group understands that the medicine safety relates to public health and safety. Therefore, ensuring product safety is the
fundamental principle of the development of the Group. 2019 is a key year for the Group to comprehensively improve its
management on quality. We will pay constant attention to product quality, system standards and proper operation, enhance
control in each session, strengthen internal control, and improve the integrity, systematism, coordination and standardization of
work. In the meantime, when focusing and highlighting the principal business, we will carefully select capable and reputable
partners, and enhance leadership in joint venture and cooperation in various aspects such as operation management, quality
management and financial management to achieve multi-angle and all-around management and control system and effectively
improve the internal control and management level of the Group.

Those who plan carefully can walk far, and those who behave morally can succeed. The Group will, as always, adhere to the ancient
motto of “Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness” of Tong Ren Tang, thoroughly implement ethical
culture of “Complexity and quality are not to be forfeited by costs” of Tong Ren Tang and regard honesty and quality as the lifeline
of survival and development, so as to inherit, develop and make good use of traditional Chinese medicine with a higher standard
and higher level of operation and management and achieve healthy, sustained and stable high-quality development of the Group.

I hereby would like to express my sincere gratitude to the members of the Board and all the staff of the Group for their unremitting
efforts and excellent performance; and to all the shareholders for their continuous support to and understanding of the Company.
As always, we will try our best to reward the shareholders with good results.

Gao Zhen Kun
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
19 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
PG w4

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, faced with stringent situation of pharmaceutical regulations, intensifying industry competition, as well as difficulties
brought by internal marketing organization reform and industrial layout adjustment, the Group endured multiple pressures in the
process of production and operation. After arduous efforts, the Group’s performance maintained stable. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group's revenue amounted to RMB5,059,638,000, representing an increase of 0.69% from RMB5,025,183,000
for the corresponding period of last year; net profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB677,815,000,
representing an increase of 1.67% from RMB666,666,000 for the corresponding period of last year.

During the year, the Company actively responded to the new changes and challenges of the internal and external situation and
steadily pushed forward marketing organization reform. On the one hand, we completed the business registration of the
marketing subsidiary, improved the establishment of functional organizations under the unified sales management platform step
by step, specified their authorities and functions and optimized the business process, facilitating thorough understanding and
accurate grasp of the whole marketing process and thus laying the foundation for the systematization, specialization and precision
of marketing work. On the other hand, we focused on both core products and products for cultivation, taking into consideration
the characteristics of individual products and the trend of change in recent years, profitability as well as the situation of
competitors and policy changes and other factors. Through comprehensive analysis, products including Ganmao Qingre Granules
(BXEVEEEH) and Jingzhi Niuhuang Jiedu Tablets (R 845875 Fr) were selected to undergo all-around management from
delivery, marketing, distribution, promotion and other aspects, so as to develop stronger control capacity in the market as well as
competitive advantage. In addition, we focused on customer management, re-affirmed channel development planning, taking
into account the characteristics of traditional sales channels such as business channel and OTC channel, refined market strategies,
admitted partners on a selective basis, worked together for better channel maintenance and control, and created a healthy and
good business environment. Meanwhile, we continued to expand e-commerce channels, launched new “WM specialty store” and
“WM cosmetic flagship store” on TMALL.COM. Also, we improved existing store design and product details pages etc., with an aim
to enhance the attractiveness and attention of our own flagship store and online products, and enhanced online sales recognition
of the products and brands of the Group through e-commerce promotional activities.
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TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

B B RE A B o A (AR

WERI0A
WREIIE

JiNku1r SHENQI PiLLs

SRR

Warmly invigorating kidney Yang,
functioning of Qi for promoting diuresis,
manifested as edema caused by kidney
deficiency, soreness and weakness of
waist and knees, dysuria, fear of cold and
cold extremities.

BB ERITK - BREBE
KR - IRRRBRER - /IMEAF -

RERL

o

brp Fuvnyning

1
[
WER 0N
WARIIE

NIUHUANG JiEDU TABLETS

B )y

Heat-clearing and detoxifying. Patterns
of internally exuberant wind-fire-heat
manifested as swollen sore throat,
swelling painful gum, mouth and

tongue sores, red painful swelling eyes.

BEVRES o AN NEAR - TR
B FHRER - D4R -
B 7RAESs o

Liuwer DIHUANG PiLLS

N WK BB R

Nourishing Yin and invigorating
kidney. Patterns of kidney Yin
deficiency manifested as dizziness,
tinnitus, soreness and weakness of
waist and knees, bone-steaming
tidal fever, night sweating, seminal
emission.

HRRE - ANEREA -
EREE - BREEK - BR
B ZTIES -

Replenishing blood for nourishing Yin,
moistening dryness and hemostasis,
manifested as blood deficiency and
sallow complexion, vertigo and
palpitation, irritability and sleepless, and
cough due to lung-dryness.

MRS - B - b - AR

EER - ZEBOE - VETE
BRI -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont%ﬂ

GANMAO QINGRE GRANULES

X8 H i #EOR

Expelling wind and cold pathogens,
relief of exterior syndrome,
heat-clearing, manifested as wind-cold

and common cold, headache and fever,

aversion to wind and generalized pain,
clear nasal discharge, cough and dry
throat.

Ifﬁlﬁk%ﬂ(%@ RRBE - ARNAE
E Eﬁf%%ﬂ M%%F
ﬁ//lb/ﬁ/ uywulﬁ"i

H[m EI:lI

B B E AT B o A (AR

XIHUANG PiLLs

LR 9,"

Heat clearance and detoxification,
swelling reduction and resolving
mosses, manifested as carbuncle,
furunculosis, scrofula, deep multiple
abscess and malignant lump caused
by heat and toxic accumulation.

BREE OBERSE - AR
ASEEFHOEETS -
BE T B -

=

mekﬁm y

Jiawei luuiu Wu:! mnm.uxn
e — L

T T o 1

Jiawer X1aovao PiLLs

TR 3 5 AL

Smoothing the liver and clearing the heat, strengthening the
spleen and replenishing the blood, manifested as liver
depression, blood deficiency, incoordination between liver and
spleen, pain at two sides, dizziness, fatigue and reduced
appetite, irregular menstruation, navel pain and abdominal
distension.
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TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
B ) B b (A

The Group mainly produces Chinese patent medicine, involving forms pills, tablets, granules, oral liquid and gums. Most of the
products of the Company were not exclusive and the competition among homogeneous products and among manufacturers
become increasingly fierce and more difficult to capture or consolidate market share. Therefore, the Company gives full play to its
competitive advantages of multi-category, multi-dose and multi-specification product offering, with comprehensive consideration
to factors including competing products of other manufacturers and market capacity, sorts out and analyzes the existing product
structure, highlights the characteristics of products, and continuously expands product portfolio.

In 2018, the sales revenue of the Group’s products was basically the same as that of the previous year. The number of products
achieved a sales amount of more than RMB5 million increased from 51 to 53 and the product portfolio expanded further. At the
same time, in order to cope with the changes in various factors such as market fluctuations of different series of products, we
further optimized our product mix, highlighted the products with traditional advantages and ensured stable business
performance. Among our major products, the sales amount of Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7<Bk 1 2 #1) series, NiuhuangJiedu Tablets (4~
# R & F) series, Biao (F B) series and Xihuang Pills (B8 # 1) series decreased by 12.63%, 11.10%, 55.69% and 11.58%,
respectively, as compared with the corresponding period last year. Despite the decrease in the sales amount of our major products
as compared with the corresponding period last year, the sales amount of Jinkui Shengi Pills (& [& B % #1) series and Ganmao
Qingre Granules (2% & & 2 B8 K1) series stably increased by 29.91%, 14.65%, respectively, as compared with the corresponding
period last year. In addition, other products including Shugan Hewei Pills (£7 fF F1 5 A1) series and Qiguanyan Pills (5% 4 #)
series increased significantly by 6.04% and 37.85% respectively, as compared with the corresponding period last year.

During the Reporting Period, in a dynamic product market, the Company gave full play to the key role of production scheduling,
took into consideration market demand, seasonal impact, supply of the previous process and production capacity of each
production unit, constantly strengthened communication and coordination with sales units, according to the market demand of
its core products and products for cultivation, refined and split production plans, set priorities, and timely adjusted the pace of
production. In the meantime, the Company coordinated and arranged production staff and effectively deployed the production
capacity of each production unit to enable rational allocation of resources and orderly allocation of production.



Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
B ) B b (A

During the year, the Company continued to promote the constructions in progress in a steady and orderly manner. The Daxing
Production Base (‘Daxing Base”) of the Company located in Da Xing Bio-Pharma Industrial Base of Zhongguancun Technology
Park District, Beijing primarily consists of three standalone buildings, namely the research and development centre, solid dosage
production workshop, and pills production workshop. Upon its completion, the Daxing Base will become comprehensive
production base which focuses on the manufacture and research of water-honeyed pills, condensed pills, big honeyed pills, and
other pills. In 2018, construction of elevators fire-fighting equipment and low voltage electric system and interior decoration works
were carried out at the research and development centre, solid dosage production workshop, and pills production workshop of
Daxing Base. The installation and commissioning of production equipment and related supporting facilities have also been carried
out in an orderly manner. As at the end of 2018, the total investment in the Daxing Base has reached RMB598 million. The
construction of research and development center, solid dosage production workshop, and honey pills production workshop were
all completed.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan located in Yutian County, Tangshan City, Hebei Province primarily engages in the core
businesses of storage of basic materials and net materials, processing and extraction of certain raw materials, and manufacturing
of liquid dosage. It is constructing Chinese medicine extraction workshop and liquid dosage workshop in local area and will be
another production base of the Company for Chinese medicine products upon completion. Construction of the production base
is a result of the proactive implementation of Beijing municipal government’s requirements concerning relieving functions

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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nonessential to its role as the capital. In addition, it will further enhance production efficiency by building high-standard workshops

and adopting advanced automatic and mechanical equipment. As of 31 December 2018, RMB610 million had been invested in the

aforesaid base. Currently, the construction of the extraction workshop and liquid dosage workshop have been completed. The
20 workshops are in the process of GMP certification.

The Company has abundant products and is mainly committed to conducting secondary scientific research on existing product,
taking into consideration of the curative effects of existing products and tapping the potential of technological improvement and
upgrading. During the year, the Company continuously upgraded the essence of quality of its products and exercised stricter
internal quality control standardization system for water-soluble extracts, microbial limit and water content requirements of major

a)
—
-

\

raw materials of the leading product Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7<ERHbZ #1), such as Cortex Moutan, Cornel and Tuckahoe, raw
materials, 50 as to improve the product quality of Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7XBR i }1) series. Meanwhile, taking into consideration
the characteristics of curative effects of Xihuang Pills (78 & 1), the Company conducted systematic study of its inhibitory effect on
esophageal cancer cells so as to broaden the clinical value of products. Moreover, during the Reporting Period, the prescription of
the Company's exclusive Ertong Qingre Liquid (52 Z /520 ARAR) was granted the national invention patent, which provides
protection for the product.

The Company has over 40 domestic and overseas substantial subsidiaries who are engaged in manufacturing and distribution of
traditional Chinese medicine products, food and daily chemical products, production of Chinese medical raw materials, medical
services, distribution of medicine, etc..

Based in Hong Kong, our principal subsidiary Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine, as our overseas development platform, primarily
engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products outside Mainland China. The Company adopts a
strategy of driving medicine demand by providing medical services and promoting culture at first. It based itself in Hong Kong to
build a global layout, with the aim of continuously accelerating the internationalization of traditional Chinese medicine. During the

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

Reporting Period, Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine continued to explore the overseas market and set up new retail terminals in
America. It's business has expanded into 21 countries and regions outside of Mainland China. The number of retail terminals has
increased from 80 in 2017 to 81 in 2018. The Company achieving the global strategy of “Anchor in Hong Kong and Asia and march
to overseas”. As of 31 December 2018, the sales revenue of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries was
RMB1,284,474,000, representing an increase of 17.04% as compared with the corresponding period of last year; net profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB187,068,000, representing an increase of 16.00% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
B ) B b (A

Founded in 2001, Tong Ren Tang WM has been devoted to the combination of natural herbal plants and modernization of Chinese
medicines and the application thereof, whose main products are masks, creams and daily chemical products. During the year,
Tong Ren Tang WM focused on marketing of “Ginseng Vitamin E Emulsion (A 244 ZE%])” and "Tong Ren Tang Freckle-
Removing and Moisturizing Cream ([FH{=Z %5 BT B fE 78)” series through a variety of promotional activities and order-placing
meeting, which effectively enhanced the reputation and recognition of the products. Furthermore, in respect of the existing
moisturizing products and Ganoderma lucidum series, Hancao (&) series mask and other products, with upgraded formulation
and improved production process, product quality and user experience were both enhanced. During the year, Tong Ren Tang WM
obtained a patent certificate for invention of traditional Chinese toothpaste from the State Intellectual Property Office, which
further protected the intellectual property rights of the Group. Meanwhile, Tong Ren Tang WM passed the re-certification of high-
tech enterprises, which ensured Tong Ren Tang WM can enjoy preferential tax rates in the next three years. As of 31 December
2018, the sales revenue of Tong Ren Tang WM was RMB133,370,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.41%; net profit
amounted to RMB15,071,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 17.16%.

Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital and Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore are wholly-owned medical
institution and retail pharmacy of the Company. The two companies adhere to Tong Ren Tang's service principle of “Benefiting the
Mankind", and serve customers with kindness. Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital has persisted with the
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treatment principle of using traditional Chinese medicine as the primary cure while combing it with western medicine. It

combined Chinese and Western patent medicines with Chinese herbal medicine, and used physical therapy, acupuncture and

other unigue Chinese medicine treatments as the complementary methods to provide treatment based on specific disease case.

Due to these efforts, the hospital received warm response from the public. During the year, Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional
22 Chinese Medicine Hospital further satisfied the needs of patients. New diagnostic and therapeutic examinations, including 4 test
items of blood coagulation and small dense low-density lipoprotein, were added. Through upgrading inspection equipment,
comprehensive medical service capacity and service quality were continuously improved, highlighting the unique diagnostic and
therapeutic methods of integration of traditional Chinese and Western medicine. As of 31 December 2018, the two companies
jointly achieved sales revenue of RMB231,043,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.59%. Net profit reached
RMB17,129,000, representing a year-on-year increase 76.10%.

LTD.

Six subsidiaries that engage in planting continued to capitalize on their geographical advantages, based on the local geographical
and climatic characteristics, followed the planting principle of “planting and harvesting specific to places of origin and seasons”
and adopted the partnership planting model, which ensured the stability of quality and quantity of major medicinal materials
including Cornel, Tuckahoe, catnip, Corydalis Bungeanae and Cortex Moutan. Meanwhile, the subsidiaries continued to explore the
advantages of native medicinal materials in Hebei Province, Anhui Province and Jilin Province, carried out experimental planting of
native medicinal materials such as Bupleurum Chinense, Paeonia lactiflora, Siler Root, Schisandra chinensis during the year,
widened the planted strains and enriched experience in planting. As at 31 December 2018, six subsidiaries engaging in production
of Chinese medicinal raw materials recorded an aggregate sales revenue of RMB207,250,000, representing a year-on-year increase
of 14.26%, and net profit of RMB16,412,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 15.90%.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
B ) B b (A

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a sound financial position. During the year of 2018, the Group's primary source of funds was cash
generated from daily operating activities and borrowings.

The Group mainly uses Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") to make borrowings and loans and to hold cash and cash
equivalents.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB1,904,036,000 in total (31 December 2017:
RMB2,023,561,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's short-term borrowings amounted to RMB195,000,000 (31 December 2017: RMB207,300,000),
carrying an interest rate of 4.501% per annum (2017: 4.354%), and current portion of non-current unsecured bank borrowing
amounted to RMB5,146,000 (31 December 2017: RMB2,500,000), total accounting for 8.03% of the total liabilities (31 December
2017: 8.68%). Long-term borrowings amounted to RMB911,331,000 (31 December 2017: RMB915,480,000), bearing annual interest
rate of long-term borrowings at 1.202% (2017: 1.216%), and the actual annual interest rate of bonds was 3.008% (2017: 3.008%),
long-term borrowings representing 36.56% of the total liabilities (31 December 2017: 37.89%). Of all the borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, RMB200,146,000 will mature within one year and RMB911,331,000 will mature beyond one year.
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24 Capital Structure

The Group's capital management policy is to ensure the continuous operation of the Group with an aim to provide returns for the
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

As at 31 December 2018, the total assets of the Group amounted to RMB9,769,866,000 (31 December 2017: RMB8,875,657,000).
The funds comprised non-current liabilities of the Group amounted to RMB1,000,690,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,014,569,000),
current liabilities amounted to RMB1,492,327,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,401,546,000), equity attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB5,316,652,000 (31 December 2017: RMB4,816,620,000) and non-controlling interests amounted to
RMB1,960,197,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,642,922,000).

LTD.

In 2018, the Group's funds were mainly used for production and operation activities, construction of engineering projects,
purchase of property, plant and equipment, repayment of borrowings and payment of cash dividends, etc..

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s liquidity ratio (the ratio of current assets to current liabilities) was 4.95 (31 December 2017:
4.88), reflecting that the Group had sufficient financial resources. The Group's quick ratio (the ratio of liquid assets to current
liabilities) was 3.30 (31 December 2017: 3.17), reflecting that the Group remained liquid. The Group's trade receivables turnover
ratio (the ratio of revenue to the average of trade receivables balance) was 11.43 (31 December 2017: 13.74), reflecting that the
Group's trade receivables were liquid. The Group's trade payables turnover ratio (the ratio of cost of sales to the average of trade
payables balance) was 3.98 (31 December 2017: 4.08), reflecting that the Group had a relatively strong ability to use funding from
suppliers at nil consideration. The Group’s inventory turnover ratio (the ratio of revenue to the average of inventory balance) was
2.17 (31 December 2017: 2.23), reflecting that the inventory had a high turnover rate.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
B ) B b (A

Gearing Ratios

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio (the ratio of
total borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 0.21 (31 December 2017: 0.23).

Expenses and Expense Ratio

As of 31 December 2018, the Group's distribution expenses amounted to RMB866,651,000 (2017: RMB994,455,000) and the
distribution expense ratio, i.e. the ratio of distribution expenses to revenue, was 0.17 (2017: 0.20). The decrease in distribution
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in business promotion and marketing expenses incurred by advertising, exhibition
promotion, etc.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group's administrative expenses amounted to RMB364,248,000 (2017: RMB364,651,000) and the
administrative expense ratio, i.e. the ratio of administrative expenses to revenue, was 0.07 (2017: 0.07). Compared with previous
year, the Group's administrative expenses remained almost the same.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s finance income amounted to RMB17,067,000 (2017 finance costs: RMB1,855,000) and the
financial costs ratio, i.e. the ratio of financial income to revenue, was 0.0034 (the 2017 ratio of finance costs to revenue: 0.0004). The
increase in financial income was mainly due to the increase in interest income.
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Gross Margin and Net Profit Margin
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As of 31 December 2018, the gross margin of the Group was 47.99 % (2017: 50.26%), while the net profit margin was 19.88% (2017:
19.30%).

LTD.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

AV OO OO OO CNEONCNEONCNEO OO NCNENCNEONEONIOIONONEN




Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
O S Em B o AT (A

EARAMKILR

NEBFAEELREREERN  RZTE—N\F+_A=+—8 AEBEABELX - AMERsEmN
EBENANGIFAEENEREER Ao (ZE—+F+-A=+—H:023) ¢

BHERERIR

BHE_Z—)\FE+_-_A=+—"H FAEBEZHEERAARKE665.1EBT( T —+HF : AR 994455
BT WEEBAX  IEEBAEWALE - B017(ZF—+HF :020) HEBAN THRIEZEEZHNE
LEE RERHEESEANEKSEELTISHEBM T -

BHE-_T—)\F+-_A=1+—8 AEEEEBRAARKE 642438 (ZF—LF : AR 36465.1
Bx) EERERX AEEERERANLER B0/ (ZE—+F:007) EEEMRE FFERET -

BHE T N\F+-_A=+—"H AEBZHBRFIAARE17067BT(—ZE—+tF : UEEAARE
18558 70) * MR R - P EEW AL R © 200034 (ZF—+FPHEBRAEK : 00004) © B
HIEIEZE R ARF B AR -

SV R ES

BE T \F+-_A=+—"H8 "EBZEFEKE4799% ( —ZF—+F : 5026%) : FFEE1988% (=
T— 44 :1930%) °

Wy sy WV — %

27

[0X7 3 B & IR %y ) MOk

W VWV VUV WV WV UV WV VUV YV V YV V V. YV V.V

AN OO OO OO CONEONCNEO OO OO NCNEONCNEONCNEONCNIOIONEONEO




Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
B ) B b (A

Research and Development Expenses

As of 31 December 2018, the research and development expenses (excluding employee benefit expense, depreciation and
amortisation expense) of the Group were RMB27,835,000 (2017: RMB27,585,000), accounting for 0.38% of net assets (2017: 0.43%)
and 0.55% of revenue (2017: 0.55%), respectively. The research and development expenses including employee benefit expense,
depreciation and amortisation expense were RMB55,889,000 (2017: RMB54,740,000), accounting for 0.77% of net assets (2017:
0.85%) and 1.10% of revenue (2017: 1.09%), respectively.

Capital Expenditure
As of 31 December 2018, the Group's capital expenditure incurred amounted to RMB379 million (2017: RMB430 million), primarily
used for the construction of production base.

Pledges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2018, RMB9,562,000 (31 December 2017: RMB10,318,000) of the Group's assets was pledged as security for
long-term borrowing of RMB48,000 (31 December 2017: RMB506,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: Nil).

28 Foreign Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally with foreign exchange risk arising from commercial business, recognised assets and liabilities,
and net investments in foreign operations, primarily related to the HKD. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. The Group mainly manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the fluctuation of the exchange rates.

LTD.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments of the Group relating to the constructions of production facilities, which had
been contracted for but had not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, amounted to approximately
RMB245,914,000 (31 December 2017: RMB395,855,000).

Significant Investment

During the year of 2018, the Group did not have any significant investment. As of the date of this report, the Group does not have
any plan for material investments or purchase of capital assets.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

During the year of 2018, the Group did not have any material acquisition and disposal in relation to subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)
B ) B b (A

PROSPECTS

In 2019, the Group will closely focus on the main idea of “quality management enhancement”, constantly improve quality
management, safety production and operational risk prevention and control system, consolidate the foundation of development,
enhance brand image, and ensure healthy, sustainable and stable high-quality development of the Group.

The Company will identify risks from the aspects of quality management, brand maintenance, safety, environmental protection
and construction projects, constantly improve the internal management system, strengthen internal control and risk prevention,
achieve timely supervision, all-around inspection, comprehensive coordination and communication, and continuously improve
the level of standardized management. The Company will organize production and operation in strict accordance with the
requirements of supervision under the new situation, strictly enforce the relevant state regulations from the aspects of raw
materials procurement, staffing, equipment management, production process, quality control, packaging and transportation,
marketing and promotion, sales and operation, and continuously strengthen self-inspection of product quality as well as
monitoring of raw materials, complementary materials, packaging materials, intermediary products and finished products
throughout the production process. The Company will strengthen the standard execution of process and on-site management,
boost initiative and technical level of quality risk prevention and control, and ensure product quality and safety. In the whole sales
process, the Company will constantly enhance the level of marketing management and control, start with financial management,
business management and distributor management to improve management awareness, consolidate system foundation, improve
internal synergistic feedback mechanism, optimize management process, strengthen risk control, carry out risk prevention
regularly, and continuously improve brand quality.
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With further adjustment of industry layout, coordination between industry and commerce is still the primary task in this period.
The Company will adjust production scientifically and rationally based on market demand, and comprehensively allocate the
production capacity of each industrial unit on the principle of resource sharing to meet product supply. At the same time, the

30 Company will finish the construction of key projects, speed up the establishment and improvement of management systems such
as production, quality, finance, function and responsibility, process and regime and personnel team, shorten the transition time
from project construction to independent operation of production branches, and facilitate the utilization of production capacity
and product supply as soon as possible.

The Company will, based on the development orientation of its subsidiaries, further standardize operation, constantly strengthen
corporate governance structure, strengthen the supervision role of quality dispatch and financial dispatch, and ensure the overall
improvement of quality, scale, efficiency and internal control management. Subsidiaries that engage in planting will, based on
local Chinese medicinal materials, continuously expand planting scale, enrich planting varieties, speed up the construction of
traceability system of Chinese medicinal materials, and achieve the quality traceability in the whole process. Subsidiaries that
engages in production will focus on improving product quality, strengthen the ability of product updating and upgrading, and
promote the professional development of operation and management.

LTD.

In the future, the Group will continue to improve its quality control, production and operation, compliance and integrity, and risk
management with a pragmatic and honest attitude, so as to lay a solid foundation for high-quality development of the Group.

TECHNOLOGIES CO.

REN TANG
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Report of the Board of Directors
ol

The Board is pleased to present the 2018 annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of Chinese medicine products. Further discussion and analysis of
these activities, including a discussion of using of key financial performance indicators for a fair review of the Group's business and
an indication of likely future developments in the group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 14 to 31 of this report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

The distribution of income of the Group is set out below:

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Sales of Chinese medicine products HZ7E R E WA
— Mainland China 7 A B Ay it
3D — Outside Mainland China 7 E B R K ih[&

Subtotal /N5t

Advertising services /&% RIS A
— Mainland China R B At

LTD

Service income BRI A
— Mainland China 7277 B8 A i,
— Outside Mainland China 7 E fih B 5 F2 i [&

Subtotal /N5t

Royalty fee income A i FI RE UL A
— Outside Mainland China PR E b BISR Kz it &

Total &5

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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EEeMARE_ZT )\ FFEREAERHE_T - \FT_A=T—"HILFELEXZNBERE
F L B S s [
AEETERELEMFETREMER - YEBHWE—PNIR (BRERMBARRBERHAKE

LHMRRRAEMEIEAR KT ENEROTR) BNARE 14 BE 3 ANTREIREDNH - 359
REAEFREEN B -

REBWADMHIT -

2018 2018 2017 2017

The total The total

RMB’000 Income ratio RMB'000 Income ratio
AR® TR LA AL AR®ETIT R ALL
4,041,543 79.88% 4,169,434 82.97%
923,834 18.26% 776,548 15.45%
4,965,377 98.14% 4,945,982 98.42%
43,018 0.85% 37,606 0.75%
7,244 0.14% - -
43,618 0.86% 41,129 0.82%
50,862 1.00% 41,129 0.82%
381 0.01% 466 0.01%
5,059,638 100.00% 5,025,183 100.00%
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Report of the Board of Directors (Cont'd)
HHGFRE (H)

RESULTS

The results and financial position of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out on pages 112 to 232 of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND TAX

The Board proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Final Dividend") of RMBO.18 (tax inclusive) per
share based on the total number of the Company’s issued and fully paid-up shares of 1,280,784,000 as at the end of 2018, totaling
RMB230,541,120 (2017: a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of RMBO0.17 (tax inclusive) per share based on the
total number of the Company’s issued and fully paid-up shares of 1,280,784,000, totaling RMB217,733,280). The profit distribution
proposal is subject to the approval by the shareholders at the annual general meeting (the “AGM") for the year 2018. The
Company is expected to complete the dividend distribution on or before 31 August 2019.

As for non-resident enterprise shareholders (other than shareholders who have invested in the shares of the Company through the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect) as appeared on the H share register of shareholders of the Company, the Company will
withhold corporate income tax at the rate of 10% when distributing the Final Dividend in accordance with the Notice on Issues
concerning Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprises to H-Share Holders
Which Are Overseas Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008] N0.897) published by the State Administration of Taxation. Any
shares registered in the name of the non-individual registered shareholders, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees,
trustees or other groups and organisations, will be treated as being held by non-resident enterprise shareholders, thus their
dividends receivables will be subject to the withholding of the corporate income tax.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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As for the individual shareholders (other than shareholders who have invested in the shares of the Company through the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect) whose names appear on the H share register of shareholders of the Company, the Company
will withhold 10% of the Final Dividend as individual income tax when distributing the Final Dividend in accordance with the
Notice on the Issues concerning the Administration of Individual Income Tax Collection after the Annulment of Document Guo
Shui Fa [1993] No.045 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.348), unless otherwise specified by the relevant tax regulations, tax agreements or

LTD

the aforesaid notice.

As for the individual shareholders or securities investment funds who have invested in the H shares of the Company through
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, when distributing the Final Dividend, the Company shall withhold individual income tax at
the rate of 20% in accordance with the register provided by China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited,
according to the Circular on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui
[2016] No.127) issued by the Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation and China's Securities Regulatory Commission on
5 November 2016.

As of the date of this report, no arrangement was reached pursuant to which the shareholders waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Cont'd)
HHGFRE (H)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, revenue from the five largest customers and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 47.68%
and 22.13% (2017:48.42% and 19.15%) of the Group's total revenue, respectively.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (excluding the Group) (the “Tong Ren Tang Group”)
was the largest customer of the Group. During the Reporting Period, the revenue from this customer was RMB1,119,901,000
accounting for 22.13% of the Group's total revenue of this year. Besides, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has interest in Client C Group as
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z listed in the table below. During the Reporting Period, details of the revenue from the five largest customers of the Group are set

o out below:

=

o

o

[=9)

|S8)

o

jt Customer Name Major products or service provided

Z EFERB HENIBER 5%

Z =< O

= Entities under control of ultimate holding company [E{— & %= & Chinese medicine products /3 %% 2
Client A Group &~ A% E Chinese medicine products AP %4 &
Client B Group & F B5& & Chinese medicine products A 4
Client C Group BF C£E Chinese medicine products A B

36 Client D Group ®F D& Chinese medicine products A 2

During the Reporting Period, purchases from the five largest suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for 26.27%
and 11.60% (2017:47.21% and 14.08%) of the total purchases of the Group, respectively.

Tong Ren Tang Group was the largest supplier of the Group. During the Reporting Period, the amount of purchase by the Group
from this supplier was RMB206,590,000, accounting for 11.60% of the Group's total amount of purchase in this year.

LTD

Save as disclosed in this report, none of Directors, their close associates, or any shareholder (who, to the knowledge of the Board,
owns more than 5% of the issuers’ share capital) has any interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable resources and the realisation and promotion of employees’ value will help to
achieve the Group's overall goals. Remunerations of the Group’s employees are determined with reference to the prevailing
market level as well as the competency, qualifications and experience of individual employee. Discretionary bonuses based on
individual performance during the year will also be paid to the employees as recognition of and a reward for their contributions to
the Group. The Group attaches great importance to development and growth of talents and provides employees with skill training,
career planning and development opportunities, seeking to create a platform for mutual growth and sharing of development
between the Group and employees.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

The Group cherishes its solid partnership with suppliers. It aims to achieve win-win results in cooperation with all relevant parties
through its operational excellence, superior product and service quality, as well as transparent and fair procurement activities. The
Group exercises a high level of scrutiny over supplier selection. Based on adequate qualifications, our quality department,
collaborated with related purchase units, conducts assessment and on-site audits on product quality of suppliers, and makes a
general appraisal. The production department then conducts suitability and quality consistency tests. Suppliers must pass the
audits and assessment before being allowed to provide products. In case of any serious issues in supplier qualification or supply
quality, the Group will suspend purchasing order on the supplier immediately and, if necessary, cancel its qualification to ensure
the quality and safety of the Group’s products.
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Revenue

HEBA

RMB'000
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The Group understands that maintaining good relationships with customers is essential for the Group’s overall development. For
the purpose of maintaining the competitiveness of the brand and product of the Group, the Group adheres to the principle of
honesty and integrity to build a reliable service environment for the customers, and has always been dedicated to provide our
customers with quality products and services.

The Group is also aware that the changes in the procurement and supply strategy of relevant customers and suppliers, or the
failure of the quality of the Group's products and services to continuously meet the needs of its customers, or the failure of the
quality of the product of the suppliers to meet the needs of the Group may result in the changes in the partnership between the
Group and its major customers and suppliers, which may in turn adversely affect the Group's production and operation. The Group
continues to source new customers and new suppliers, expand new channels and tap into new markets, with a view to reducing
the risk of reliance on them. During the Reporting Period, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and customers.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the reserves of the Company available for distribution amounted to approximately RMB2,044,635,000 (31
December 2017: approximately RMB1,801,804,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the year of 2018 are set out in Note 7 to the Consolidated
38 Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

Cash charitable donations made by the Group during the Reporting Period amounted to RMB1,915,000 (2017: RMB107,000).

LTD

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no change in the share capital of the Company during the year of 2018. The details are set out in Note 17 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

During the year of 2018 and as at the date of this report, based on the public information available to the Company and as far as
the Directors are aware, the Company has satisfied the public float requirement under Rule 8.08 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than the Directors, the supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisor”) and
the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, the “SFO"):
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o]
z Name of shareholder Capacity
(]
= ;
» IREREHE 3%
O
e Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Mo [EZ & g {p (M2) Beneficial Owner Bz A A
=4 . . .
. Tong Ren Tang Holdings Mt £2 & 3 7] (i) Interest of controlled corporation by the substantial shareholder
= RRCR PR il R A B b 21
z Beneficial Owner Bz A A
Z
= Total/ & #£ -
Yuan SaiNan R&ES Beneficial Owner Bz A A
Commonwealth Bank of Australia Interest of controlled corporation by the substantial shareholder
40 RRCR PR il R A B b 21
Hillhouse Capital Management, Ltd. Mot/ FiiE3) Investment manager 1% & 4538
Gaoling Fund, L.p. Mete/fiz4 Investment manager % & 4512
< - Citigroup Inc, Note/HizEs) Interest of corporation controlled by the substantial shareholder,
>< 4 Person having a security interest in shares, Custodian
} S corporation/approved lending agent
4B ARG ER N - HROFERBEZOA -
m e s (S N
b E REAN—EE/ OB HRIEA
4dE
b E
4 z
} T
O
< w
} )
< ; Information disclosed above is based on the data published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www. hkexnews.hk) unless otherwise stated
< in the notes below.
b B
Z .
< o Notes:
b B
{ &) (1) (L) — Long position, (S) — Short position, (P) — Lending pool
z
>< E ) 600,000,000 shares held by Tong Ren Tang Holdings were held through Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. As at 31 December 2018, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. was owned
} as to 52.45% by Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Upon completion of the capitalisation issue of shares of the Company on 3 July 2014 and as at 31
4 December 2018, Tong Ren Tang Holdings was deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares held by Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. Besides, upon
completion of the capitalisation issue of shares of the Company on 3 July 2014 and as at 31 December 2018, Tong Ren Tang Holdings also directly
} 4 held 9,480,000 shares.
} (3) As was known to the Directors, on 23 June 2014, Hillhouse Capital Management, Ltd., as investment manager, was indirectly interested in 23,091,000
< H shares of the Company in long position held by Gaoling Fund, L.P. and 777,000 H shares of the Company in long position held by YHG Investment,
} L.P.. Upon completion of the capitalisation issue of the Company on 3 July 2014 and as at 31 December 2018, this shareholder was indirectly
< interested in 46,182,000 H shares of the Company in long position held by Gaoling Fund, L.P. and 1,554,000 H shares of the Company in long position
} held by YHG Investment, L.P..
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RZB-N\F+ZA=+—R BREEBENE 71 EZHF LRG0 ([ BERPEMRE ) FE33615ET
BEEmECMARLE  ATAL(EE  ARAEF(EE]) RARARZRSTRABRIN RARF 2K
R P HE 2R MOAR T

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of total
Number of shares domestic shares H shares issued voting shares
HERTH
ROEE RERB DL HRBZ L RERRSG
[l
600,000,000 92.01% - 46.85% »
600,000,000 92.01% - 46.85% |
=
#
9,480,000 1.45% - 0.74% 5
609,480,000 93.46% 47.59% B
35,732,000 (L) - 5.68% 2.79%
(Note/ it z£1)
68,446,000 (L) - 10.89% 5.34%
(Note/ Fi&E1) 4 1
47,736,000 (L) - 7.59% 3.73%
(Note/ FfizE 1)
46,182,000 (L) - 7.35% 3.61%
(Note/ it z£1)
=
39,143,906 (L) - 6.22%(L) 3.06%(L) i
(Note/ Fi&E 1) =
TT
i
»
&
4,000 (S) - 0.00%(S) 0.00%(S) ;;
(Note/ Hf=E 1) =
21,685,906 (P) - 3.44%(P) 1.69%(P) =
(Note/ Fi13E1) af
=
B
ay

(S8 TR E S BT R SABE (e hkexnews k) FTHRELI1S BIEH + TAINI 3o S A ATHSERRS) -
it -
() O—#FE - O—KE - O — AHELARS

() FEEREIEFFEI600000000 88817 7B BRICEZERGHAE - R-ZF—NF+-A=+—H EEREIHERICERD5245%
s o RoCE—WEL A=A RGBT BE TR ERR-FE— \E+ = A=1—H  EERG#EBEL R ERGAT
F B 2 600,000,000 AR 17 2 1S > B R-FE—MEFLA=ZARXRGIEREBETERBERR -_FE—NEF+_A=+—H -
FE R AE B 9480000 ARAZ 17 °

()  BEFEHH R-ZF—PFENH =+ =H  Hilhouse Capital Management, Ltd. A& E45HE 5 17 B B Gaoling Fund, L.P. 15 H /Y
KX 8] 23,091,000 f8 H AR 4F 82 BR (7 #E 2 &% YHG Investment, LP. 3B ) 2 & 777,000 R H R 4F 82 B (7 an - R=ZF—WF+ A
ZHARRAIERMNE TR ERR =T —NF+ A =1—H ' ZAREEB Gaoling Fund, LP. [E# #5657 2 7] 46,182,000 & H i
F B 2 R 17 #E s K YHG Investment, L.P. 5 5 BI2K 23 7] 1,554,000 % H AR 4 B .2 FR (7 #E 2
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(4) As was known to the Directors, on 23 June 2014, Gaoling Fund, L.P.,, as investment manager, held 23,091,000 H shares of the Company in long
position. Upon completion of the capitalisation issue of the Company on 3 July 2014 and as at 31 December 2018, this shareholder held 46,182,000
H shares of the Company in long position.

(5) As was known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2018, Citigroup Inc. held 490,000 H shares of the Company in long position and 4,000 H shares of
the Company in short position through interest of corporation under its control, held 16,968,000 H shares of the Company in long position as a
person holding security interest in shares, and held 21,685,906 H shares in long position of the Company as custodian corporation/approved lending
agent (available for lending).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO
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MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has examined all of the risks identified by the Group based on the risk management system and assessed the risks
which may arise from the existing and new businesses. The major risks and uncertainties of the Group included policy risk,
42 operational risk and financial risk. For the risks identified, the Group actively reviewed their potential effects on its business

operation and finance. For details of the measures taken by the Group for management of the major risks, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” in the chapter “Corporate Governance Report”.

Policy Risk

The production layout of the Group is affected by national policies and regulatory requirements on the industry, for example,

LTD

policies such as environmental protection and positioning of the region may lead to adjustments on the production layout of the
Group, increased pressure on the supply of products that used to support the rapid development of the Group, increase in the
amount of investment and financing. Meanwhile, with increasing costs including depreciation after the projects have been put
into operation, it is difficult to connect old and new production capacity, bringing uncertainty risks in terms of inadequate product
supply and increased cost.

Adjustments in industry policies, such as the medical system reform, two-invoice system, proportion of medicine sales, policy on
medical-related tender indicating a cost reduction trend, and reform of value-added taxes, may have uncertainty effects on the
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product sale of the Group; and adjustments in the prices and packaging of certain products may pose uncertainty risks affecting
the sales volume in the short run.

Increasingly stringent standards in the laws and regulations of the state on safe production and fire safety impose higher

REN TANG

requirements on safety management for enterprises. As the Group has many production units, it is faced with the uncertainty risk
of increasing investment cost for safe production and management.

TONG
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“4) BEEHMH R-F—ENA-+=H  Gaoling Fund, L.P. AR E4ETE 5 (7155 K /x5 23,091,000 f¢ HRLF B » I~ FE—PI4E
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Operational Risk

As the “Tong Ren Tang” brand used by the Group enjoys a high reputation, emergencies have uncertain influence against the
Group and the product sales of the Group.

The Group mainly engages in production of Chinese patent medicines, which requires a large variety of Chinese medicinal raw
materials, supplementary materials and packaging materials, with complex production process and demanding quality control.
Although the Group has a strict quality management system and carries out production and operation in strict accordance with
the requirements of GMP and GSP and under strict quality control in all sessions, there are potential risks of sporadic issues that
may lead to economic and reputation loss of the Group.

Financial Risk

As affected by the industry characteristics and the expansion of scale of the Group, the inventory amount was relatively large,
accounting for a high proportion of total assets, thus the Group is exposed to the risks such as capital occupation, poor turnover
rate, inventory devaluation and damages.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Affected by internal and external factors such as intensifying marketing competition and the reform of marketing organization,
difficulties in collecting accounts receivable increased, thus the Group may be exposed to the risks of shortage of liquidity and
default loss.

44 Fluctuation of market price of raw materials for main products and shortage of raw materials and complementary materials may
have a significant impact on the production, supply and procurement costs of the Group.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

In 2018, as far as the Directors are aware, there was no significant impact on the Group resulting from non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations.

LTD

The Group needs to comply with many laws and regulations, which primarily include the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Property Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Traditional Chinese Medicine, the Pharmacopoeia of
the People’s Republic of China (2015 Edition), Good Manufacturing Practice for Drugs, Good Supply Practice for Drugs, etc., or
other laws and regulations, policies or standardization legal documents promulgated according to or in connection to the
abovementioned laws and regulations. The Group has compliance procedures and systems to ensure its compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and standardization legal documents (especially those with significant impact on principal activities).
In case of any changes in laws, regulations and standardization legal documents applicable to principle activities, the Group will
timely formulate relevant procedures and systems.

In addition, provisions under other relevant laws and regulations also apply to the Group (for instance, Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Listing Rules and

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

others). The Group is committed to ensuring its compliance with such provisions through internal control and approval
procedures, training, as well as supervision over each business unit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The relevant laws and regulations complied with by the Group include Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Air Pollution Prevention Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Lawson Promoting Clean Production of the People’s
Republic of China, etc..

In daily production and operation, the Group has been constantly committed to the philosophy of placing equal emphasis on
development and environmental protection. Through rational utilization of various resources in strict accordance with relevant
national laws and regulations in production and operation, the Group sought to minimize the impact on the surrounding
environment. In the course of daily operation, the Group was dedicated to maintaining and consolidating a healthy business
environment in order to ensure the legitimacy of business conducts and thus steady and orderly development of the Group. The
Group also strived to improve the working environment of employees by promoting the concept of green office and green
production, with a view to providing a comfortable workplace for all employees. The environmental policy and performance of the
Group are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company for year 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

The shareholders of the Company do not have pre-emptive rights under the PRC Laws and the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”).

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

46

(i)  Property Lease Framework Agreement

On 25 January 2017, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a property leasing framework agreement,
pursuant to which, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has agreed to lease and procure any members of the Tong Ren Tang Group to
lease certain premises to the Group for its productions and operations, including but not limited to office premises,
warehouses and staff quarter. The property leasing framework agreement is for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

LTD

The continuing connected transactions under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement was entered into in accordance
with the pricing policies below: (i) The relevant market price. The relevant market price is determined by reference to the
rental information gathered by the Group of certain premises of similar specification and size in similar locations based on
such market terms to make sure that the terms offered by the Tong Ren Tang Group would not be less favorable than those
offered by third parties on the market. (ii) Where the market price is not available, then the contracted price, which shall be
determined after arm’s length negotiation based by both parties of the agreement based on the principle of cost plus a fair
and reasonable profit rate and by reference to the historical rentals. The reasonable cost shall be determined by reference to
the size of the premises provided by the Tong Ren Tang Group, and the cost of premises management.

The annual caps of the proposed continuing connected transactions under the property leasing framework agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2019 is RMB10,900,000, RMB11,600,000 and RMB11,800,000, respectively. On 19
March 2019, the Board resolved to revise the annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2019 from RMB11,800,000 to
RMB53,000,000. Please refer to the announcements published by the Company on 25 January 2017 and 19 March 2019 on
the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.
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In 2018, the rental fee paid by the Group to the Tong Ren Tang Group amounted to RMB8,682,000, which did not exceed
the relevant annual cap.
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HHGFRE (H)

(ii) Distribution Framework Agreement

On 29 September 2016, the Company renewed the distribution framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings for a
term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. During the term of the agreement, the Company has the
right to terminate the agreement by giving six months’ prior notice in writing to Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Pursuant to the
renewed Distribution Framework Agreement, the Company agreed that it or any of its subsidiaries may, from time to time,
sell its products to members of Tong Ren Tang Group. The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the renewed distribution framework agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2019 is
RMB1,300,000,000, RMB1,550,000,000 and RMB1,850,000,000, respectively. The renewal of the distribution framework
agreement has been approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 16 December 2016. Please refer to the
announcements dated 29 September 2016 and 16 December 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 31 October 2016
published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

Under the renewed distribution framework agreement, the price of the products to be sold by the Group to Tong Ren Tang
Group shall not be lower than that charged by the Group to other independent third parties and shall be determined in
accordance with a reasonable cost plus a fair and reasonable profit margin: (i) the reasonable cost shall be determined by
reference to the cost of the raw materials, the cost of labour and the manufacturing expense etc.; and (i) the profit margin
shall be determined by reference to the prevailing market and the then market price for comparable products in the related
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industry, and the profit rate of the products of the Group in the past years of not exceeding 50%, which is in line with the
previous gross profit rate of the Group.

In 2018, sales amount of the Group to the Tong Ren Tang Group amounted to RMB1,078,396,000, which did not exceed the
relevant annual cap.

(iii) Master Procurement Agreement

LTD

On 29 September 2016, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings renewed the master procurement agreement for a term
of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. During the term of the agreement, the Company has the right to
terminate the agreement by giving six months' prior notice in writing to Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Pursuant to the renewed
Master Procurement Agreement, the Group may purchase the raw materials and semi-finished products and finished
products (“Relevant Products”) for manufacturing and distribution from the Tong Ren Tang Group. The price to be paid for
the Relevant Products procured by the Group from the Tong Ren Tang Group shall be determined in accordance with the
following principle: (1) the price shall be negotiated and agreed by the parties within the range of the then prevailing
market price for the similar products (‘“Market Price”), which shall be determined with reference to the prevailing market
price of comparable service negotiated and provided by at least two independent suppliers in the same or surrounding
areas; (2) if there is no comparable market price available for the Relevant Products, the price shall be determined based on
the integrated cost plus not more than 15% surcharge (the related cost shall be determined with reference to the cost of
raw materials, labour cost and production expenses, etc.); and (3) in any event, the price to be paid by the Group for the
procurement of the Relevant Products shall not be higher than that available from independent third parties for similar
products, or higher than the Market Price, whichever is the lower. For the three years ending 31 December 2019, the annual
caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the renewed master procurement agreement shall be
RMB240,000,000, RMB270,000,000 and RMB300,000,000, respectively. The renewal of the master procurement agreement
has been approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 16 December 2016. Please refer to the
announcements dated 29 September 2016 and 16 December 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 31 October 2016
published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

o
o
w
m
Q
o
—
©)
Z
T
&}
m
=
Q
4
<t
=
Z
[S8)
=4
Q
Z
o
=

In 2018, purchase of the Relevant Products by the Group from the Tong Ren Tang Group amounted to RMB146,224,000,
which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Cont'd)
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(iv) Advertising Agency Framework Agreement

On 29 September 2016, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, renewed the
advertising agency framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings for the purpose of the provision of advertising
agency services by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising to the Tong Ren Tang Group for a term of three years from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019. Pursuant to the advertising agency framework agreement, Tong Ren Tang Holdings entrusted
Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising as a non-exclusive advertising agent, to provide advertising agency services to the Tong
Ren Tang Group. The fees for the provision of specific services by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising to the Tong Ren Tang
Group under individual implementation agreement shall be negotiated and determined by the parties with reference to the
actual quotation offered by the advertiser, which is at discount on the basis of its published price list, plus a reasonable fee
for the advertising agency service of Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, which is generally not higher than 15% of the
quotation offered by the advertiser. For the three years ending 31 December 2019, the annual caps for the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the renewed advertising agency framework agreement shall be
RMB50,000,000, RMB52,000,000 and RMB54,000,000, respectively. Please refer to the announcement published by the
Company on 29 September 2016 on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.
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In 2018, total amount paid by the Tong Ren Tang Group to Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising for the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the advertising agency framework agreement was RMB41,505,000, which did
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not exceed the relevant annual cap.
50 Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate holding company of the Company, and thus a connected person of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules. As such, all the transactions between the Tong Ren Tang Group and Tong Ren Tang Century

Advertising under the aforementioned agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

LTD

Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements

On 8 November 2017, the Company renewed the exclusive distributorship framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine, for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company appoints
International Pharm, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine, as its sole overseas distributor for the purpose
of the distribution of the relevant products of the Group (for the purpose of the exclusive distributorship framework agreement,
refers to the Company and its subsidiaries and associates, excluding Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries and
associates) outside the PRC. Within the term of the agreement and for the purpose of the overseas distribution of the relevant
products of the Group, International Pharm will procure from the Group, and the Group shall supply to International Pharm, the
relevant products as agreed by the parties. The price of the relevant products supplied by the Group to International Pharm shall
not be higher than the wholesale price of the relevant products sold by the Group to its wholesale customers in the PRC. The
annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the renewed exclusive distributorship framework
agreements for the three years ending 31 December 2020 shall be RMB49,600,000, RMB64,900,000 and RMB84,200,000,
respectively.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Cont'd)
HHGFRE (H)

On the same day, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. renewed the Tong Ren Tang exclusive distributorship framework agreement with Tong Ren
Tang Chinese Medicine, for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. Pursuant to the agreement, Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. appoints International Pharm as its sole overseas distributor for the purpose of the distribution of the relevant products
of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and its subsidiaries and associates, excluding the Company and its subsidiaries and associates (the “Tong
Ren Tang Ltd. Group”) outside the PRC. Within the term of the agreement and for the purpose of the overseas distribution of the
relevant products of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group, International Pharm will procure from Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group, and Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. Group shall supply to International Pharm, the relevant products as agreed by the parties. The price of the relevant
products supplied by Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group to International Pharm shall not be higher than the wholesale price of the relevant
products sold by Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group to the wholesale customers in the PRC. The annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated under the renewed Tong Ren Tang exclusive distributorship framework agreements for the three years
ending 31 December 2020 shall be RMB74,400,000, RMB97,300,000, and RMB126,300,000, respectively.

In 2018, total amount paid to the Group and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group by International Pharm for the continuing connected
transactions under the exclusive distributorship framework agreement and Tong Ren Tang exclusive distributorship framework
agreement amounted to RMB30,348,000 and RMB60,367,000 respectively, neither of which exceeds the relevant annual caps.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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As at 31 December 2018, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is the intermediate controlling shareholder of the Company, which holds 46.85%
direct interest in the Company, and 33.62% direct interest in Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine which is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. According to the Listing Rules, Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. are both
connected persons of the Company. As such, all the transactions between Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and the Company

52 and all the transactions between Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and Tong Ren Tang Ltd., under the above-mentioned
agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company. For details about the above-mentioned transactions,
please refer to the relevant announcements of the Company dated 8 November 2017.

The Company has confirmed that the execution and enforcement of the implementation agreements under the continuing
connected transactions set out above in the year of 2018 has followed the pricing policies of such continuing connected
transactions.

LTD

Annual Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company's overseas auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The overseas auditor has
issued unqualified letter in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 and 14A.57 of the Listing Rules, containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the year of 2018 as disclosed by the
Company:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in any material respect, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in any material
respect, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and
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(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the amount of each of the continuing connected transactions has exceeded the
annual cap set by the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors has reviewed the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that in the year of 2018:

(i) these continuing connected transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) these continuing connected transactions were entered into on normal commercial terms;

(i) these continuing connected transactions were entered into according to the relevant agreement governing each of these
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv)  the aggregate amount of each of these transactions did not exceed the annual caps as set out in the relevant
announcements of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction or continuing related party transaction set out in Note 33 to the

financial statements that falls into the category of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that needs to be

disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Company has fully complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
54 Listing Rules with respect to the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the Company.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Competition with Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Holdings

LTD

Both the Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. engage in the production and sale of Chinese patent medicines, but the principal
products of each of them are different. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. mainly produces Chinese patent medicines in traditional dosage forms
such as honeyed pills, powder, cintment and medicinal wines. Tong Ren Tang Ltd.'s main products include Kunbao Pills (3HE A1),
Tongren Wuji Baifeng Pills ([E{= S # F B },), Tongren Dahuoluo Pills (EZASEAS A1), Guogong Wine (BIAE) and Angong
Niuhuang Pills (ZZ E 42 A1) . It also has some minor production lines for the production of granules and water-honeyed pills.
These products do not compete with the Group in terms of their curative effects. The Company focuses on manufacturing
products in new dosage forms which are more competitive as compared with western medicine. The Company’s main products
include Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7XBERHE 1), Niuhuang Jiedu Tablets (4 & #2235 F ), Ganmao Qingre Granules (B 5 /8 ZVEEHL )
and Jinkui Shengi Pills (£ E B F& L), etc.. Tong Ren Tang Holdings is an investment holding company and is not involved in the
production of Chinese patent medicines.

To ensure that the business classification between the Company, Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is properly
documented and established, Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. undertake, pursuant to an undertaking dated 19
October 2000 committed by Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. in favor of the Company (the “October
Undertaking’), that other than Angong Niuhuang Pills (%= 4 & A1), Tong Ren Tang Holdings, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and their
respective subsidiaries will not produce in future any products that bear the same names or bear the same names with different
dosage forms as those pharmaceutical products produced by the Company, which may compete directly with those
pharmaceutical products of the Company.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

Save as mentioned above, the Directors confirm that none of the other products of the Company is in direct competition with
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or Tong Ren Tang Holdings.
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Right of First Refusal

To procure that the Company focuses on the development of the four major forms of products (namely granules, water-honeyed
pills, tablets and soft capsules), Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. have granted the Company, pursuant to the
October Undertaking, a right of first refusal to manufacture and sell any of the new products which is developed by Tong Ren Tang
Holdings, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or any of their respective subsidiaries and which is one of the four main forms of products of the
Company. Upon exercise of the right of first refusal, both Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Holdings or their respective
subsidiaries are not allowed to manufacture any of such new products. In the event the Company develops any new product
based on the existing products of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or their respective subsidiaries, and such new
product is one of the major forms of products of the Company, the Company will be entitled to manufacture such new product
and none of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or their respective subsidiaries will be allowed to manufacture such new
product. The Directors believe that the above undertaking would clarify that both Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang
Holdings would support the Company in its development of the four major forms of products in the future.

In the event that the Company refuses the right of first refusal offered by Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the terms
of the option to be offered to an independent third party should not be more favourable than those originally offered to the
Company, failing which the Company should be given an opportunity to re-consider the option under the new terms. The above

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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undertaking would no longer be valid in the event that the direct or indirect aggregate shareholdings of Tong Ren Tang Holdings
or Tong Ren Tang Ltd. in the Company fall below 30%.

56 The Company and the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed upon the review: during the year of 2018, Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Holdings have provided all information necessary to the independent non-executive Directors for
their annual review and report on their fulfillment on the October Undertaking. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Holdings
have fulfilled their undertakings on the relevant right of first refusal granted to the Company on their existing or future competing
businesses. The details of the annual declarations in compliance with the non-competition undertaking which have been made by
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Holdings are set out below.

LTD

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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DECLARATION

To: TONGREN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD.
No. 20 Nansanhuan Zhonglu
Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC

Dear Sir or Madam,

In order to ensure the interests of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its shareholders as a whole, we,
China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd. and our subsidiaries (excluding the Company and its subsidiaries) make the following
confirmations:

1. On 19 October 2000, the Company and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited entered into an agreement with us to
regulate the non-competition undertaking (“Non-competition Undertaking”), which include but not limited to the
options, pre-emptive rights or right of first refusal provided by us on our existing or future competing businesses;
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2. We have provided to the independent non-executive directors of the Company with all the necessary information in order
for them to conduct review on the enforcement of the Non-competition Undertaking;

58 3. We confirm that we have fully complied with the Non-competition Undertaking for the year 2018;
4. We also agree this confirmation to be disclosed in the Company’s 2018 annual report.
We further undertake that if we become aware of any data or information in the future which constitute any doubt on the

truthfulness, accuracy or completeness of the data or information provided by this confirmation, we will notify the Company in
writing on such data or information as soon as possible.

LTD

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd.
19 March 2019
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DECLARATION

To: TONGREN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD.
No. 20 Nansanhuan Zhonglu
Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC

Dear Sir or Madam,

In order to ensure the interests of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its shareholders as a whole, we,

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited and our subsidiaries (excluding the Company and its subsidiaries), make the following

confirmations:

1. On 19 October 2000, the Company and China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd. entered into an agreement with us to
regulate the non-competition undertaking (“Non-competition Undertaking”), which include but not limited to the

options, pre-emptive rights or right of first refusal provided by us on our existing or future competing businesses;

2. We have provided to the independent non-executive directors of the Company with all the necessary information in order
for them to conduct review on the enforcement of the Non-competition Undertaking;

3. We confirm that we have fully complied with the Non-competition Undertaking for the year 2018;

4. We also agree that this confirmation to be disclosed in the Company’s 2018 annual report.

We further undertake that if we become aware of any data or information in the future which constitute any doubt on the
truthfulness, accuracy or completeness of the data or information provided by this confirmation, we will notify the Company in

writing on such data or information as soon as possible.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited
19 March 2019
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Report of the Board of Directors (Cont'd)
HHGFRE (H)

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profiles of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management are set out on pages 98 to 103 of this report.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

At the 2017 AGM held on 12 June 2018, Mr. Gu Hai Ou, Mr. Rao Zu Hai and Mr. Li Bin retired from their positions as the executive
Director; Miss Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Mr. Jin Shi Yuan retired from their positions as the independent non-executive Director; Ms.
Ma Bao Jian retired from her position as the Supervisor and the chief Supervisor; and Ms. Ding Guo Ping retired from her position
as the Supervisor, each with effect from conclusion of the 2017 AGM.

At the 2017 AGM, Mr. Gao Zhen Kun, Mr Wang Yu Wei and Ms. Fang Jia Zhi were re-elected as the executive Directors of the
seventh session of the Board; Mr. Huang Ning, Mr. Wu Le Jun and Ms. Wu Qian were appointed as the executive Directors of the
seventh session of the Board; Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was re-elected as the independent non-executive Directors of the
seventh session of the Board; Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing were appointed as the independent non-executive
Directors of the seventh session of the Board; Mr. Wu Yi Gang was re-elected as the Supervisor of the seventh session of the
Supervisory Committee; Ms. Su Li were appointed as the Supervisor of the seventh session of the Supervisory Committee, each
with a term commencing from the conclusion of the 2017 AGM to the date of the AGM to be convened in 2021. Mr. Dong Ke Man
was elected as the Supervisor of the seventh session of the Supervisory Committee at the employee representative congress
meeting of the Company held on 12 March 2018, with a term commencing from the conclusion of the 2017 AGM to the date of
the AGM to be convened in 2021.
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The Board resolved on 12 June 2018 to elect Mr. Gao Zhen Kun, an executive Director, as the Chairman of the Board and the
Supervisory Committee also resolved on the same day to elect Ms. Su Li as the chief Supervisor, each with immediate effect. On 19
March 2019, Mr. Gao Zhen Kun has tendered his resignation from the positions as an executive Director, the chairman of the Board,
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and the member of the Remuneration Committee due to work changes. The

LTD

resignation of Mr. Gao Zhen Kun will take effect upon the new executive Director being appointed at the 2018 AGM. On the same
day, the Board proposed to appoint Mr. Gu Hai Ou as an executive Director, subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the 2018 AGM. For details of the aforesaid changes, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 25 April 2018
and the announcements of the Company dated 12 June 2018 and 19 March 2019.

Mr. Li Da Ming and Ms. Liu Cun Ying, the former deputy general managers of the Company, retired on 1 May 2018 and 1 February
2019, respectively.

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term commencing on their
respective appointment dates to the date of the AGM to be convened by the Company in 2021.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with the Company that cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Cont'd)
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Directors and Supervisors are subject to the election at the general meeting or the election by employees. The Board is authorized
by the general meeting to fix the remuneration of every Director or Supervisor when the general meeting appoints Directors and
Supervisors. The remuneration of Directors or Supervisors includes four parts, namely director’s or supervisor's fees, basic salaries
and allowance, employer’s contribution to pension scheme and bonuses. Except for the independent non-executive Directors and
the external Supervisors, the Directors or Supervisors who do not hold any management position in the Group will not receive any
remuneration from the Group. The Directors or Supervisors who also hold management positions in the Group will receive salaries
corresponding to such management functions. In accordance with the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
shall not be financially dependent on the listed company. Therefore, the independent non-executive Directors and external
Supervisors are paid in line with the prevailing local market rate by the Company.

In 2018, all executive Directors did not receive any remuneration as the Directors. In particular, Mr. Wang Yu Wei and Ms. Fang Jia
Zhi, each as an executive Director, received remuneration for the management positions they held in the Company. In addition,
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza, Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, Miss Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Mr. Jin Shi Yuan
received directors’ fees (based on their respective terms of office) at the amount of HKD240,000 (tax inclusive), HKD120,000 (tax
inclusive), RMB50,000 (tax inclusive), HKD120,000 (tax inclusive) and RMB50,000 (tax inclusive), respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

In 2018, Ms. Su Li, Mr. Dong Ke Man, Ms. Ma Bao Jian and Ms. Ding Guo Ping, each as a Supervisor, did not receive any
remuneration as the Supervisor. In particular, Mr. Dong Ke Man and Ms. Ding Guo Ping, each as a Supervisor, received

64 remunerations for the management positions they held in the Company. In addition, Mr. Wu Yi Gang, as the Supervisor, received
supervisor's fee at the amount of RMB100,000 (tax inclusive).

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors' salaries or salaries received corresponding to their management positions in the Group
for the years of 2018 and 2017 are set out in Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

LTD

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS' INTERESTS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in the non-exempt continuing connected transactions and the non-exempt connected transactions as set out
in this report, none of the Directors and Supervisors or their connected entities (within the meaning under section 486 of the
Company Ordinance) still had or has had any material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any material transactions,
arrangements or contracts relating to the business of the Group, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
which was subsisting on the balance sheet date of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
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the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the Reporting Period, the Company had not entered into nor was there any contract relating to the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Cont'd)
HHGFRE (H)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws and the coverage of the director liability insurance the Company placed for the Directors, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him or her in the
execution and discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto. Such provisions were in force during the course of the year
ended 31 December 2018 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 3,879 employees (31 December 2017: 3,873 employees), of which 1,957 are
employees of the Company (31 December 2017: 2,005 employees). Remunerations of the employees of the Company are
determined with reference to the prevailing market level as well as the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to the employees as a recognition of and a reward
for their contributions to the Company. Other employee welfares include contributions by the Company to the endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund.

EMOLUMENTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments before tax paid to the senior management of the Company whose names are listed in this report are set out by

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
>4
|

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

band as follows:
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Emoluments Grade

FMER

LTD

RMB0-500,000 A E#5 0-500,000 7T
RMB500,001-1,000,000 A ¥ 500,001-1,000,000 7T
RMB1,000,001-1,500,000 A R # 1,000,001-1,500,000 7T
RMB1,500,001-2,000,000 A R # 1,500,001-2,000,000 7T
RMB2,000,001-2,500,000 A R # 2,000,001-2,500,000 T

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of staff retirement scheme of the Group are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

STAFF QUARTERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

1. the Company did not provide quarters to any of its staff (2017: nil);

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

2. the Company made annual contributions to the housing fund based on certain percentages of the salaries for employees in
compliance with relevant regulations; and

3. the Company provided housing allowance to its staff at an average of RMB80 per person per month (2017: RMB80 per
person per month) in compliance with relevant regulations.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Cont'd)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements of this report were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company did not change its
independent auditors in any of the past three years. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the work of the independent auditors,
their independence and objectivity. PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP were proposed by the
Board to be respectively re-appointed as the overseas auditor and domestic auditor of the Company for the year of 2019 which is
subject to approval at the 2018 AGM.

By the Order of the Board
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
Gao Zhen Kun
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
19 March 2019
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
B 3 W

To the shareholders:

The supervisory committee of Tong Ren Tang Technologies (the “Supervisory Committee”’) has executed its duties and powers
earnestly, safeguarded the rights and interests of the shareholders as well as the interests of the Company, complied with the
principle of good faith, took the initiative in carrying out its work in a reasonable, cautious and diligent manner pursuant to the
provisions of the Company Law of the PRC, relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the Articles of Association.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee reviewed cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company and put
forward reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the significant
policies and specific decisions made by the management of the Company to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee have reviewed earnestly and approved the report of the Board, audited financial statements and the
dividend payment proposal to be presented by the Board at the forthcoming 2018 AGM. We are of the opinion that the Directors,
general manager and other senior management of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of good faith, and have
worked diligently, exercised their authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company, and executed various tasks pursuant to
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the Articles of Association so that the Company is operated within the regulatory framework, and the internal control regime is
increasingly improving. The transactions between the Company and associated companies were executed on terms in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole and at fair and reasonable prices. Up till now, none of the Directors,
general manager or senior management of the Company has been found to have abused their authority, damaged the interests of

70 the Company or infringed upon the interests of the shareholders and employees of the Company, or to have been in breach of
any laws or regulations or the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the various tasks carried out by the Company in 2018 and the economic benefits
generated therefrom. It has full confidence in the future development outlook of the Company.

LTD

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
SuLi
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
19 March 2019

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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Corporate Governance Report
1 %8R WS

The Board believes that a good and steady framework of corporate governance is extremely important for the development of the
Company. The Company has adopted the principles and standards contained in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s standards, and combined them with its own experience, aiming to
establish a good corporate governance structure.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company's business and operation are led and authorized to be managed by the Board. Several powers shall be entrusted by
the Board to the management, so that the management can formulate and implement the Company’s scheme and operational
planning, as well as conducting the Company’s daily operation. The Board tries its best to monitor the performance of the
management, while it is the management’s responsibility to conduct the daily operation of the Company.

The Board has established three special committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to supervise the specific affairs of the Company. According to the requirements of the Listing Rules and
other related laws, the Board and the special committees shall discharge their respective duties in accordance with the well-
established written terms of reference.

The Board convenes meetings regularly and when significant decision has to be made. The Board convened seven meetings in
2018 to discuss and decide development strategies, major operational matters, financial matters and other matters of the
Company as stipulated under the Articles of Association. Unless specifically noted, all of the Directors have attended the Board
meetings, committee meetings, general meetings, and conferences between the Chairman and independent non-executive
Directors during their tenures of office in the year of 2018. The attendance of Directors to the relevant meetings is set out as below:

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Note 2: Jin Shi Yuan did not attend the general meeting held by the Company in the year of 2018 due to physical conditions.

{ o
) B :
‘ ~ Directors
> B
}‘ - Bx
%)
4dE Executive Directors BITES
} 2 Gao Zhen Kun (Chairman) iRk (EEFR)
4 i Huang Ning e
b B Wu Le Jun BT
4B Wu Qian R15
} 0 Wang Yu Wei TIEE
< <Zt Fang Jia Zhi BEXE
b B Gu Hai Ou s
dE Rao Zu Hai 530
b B Li Bin =&
B
2 z Independent non-executive Directors E Y FEHITESE
4JE Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE
} Chan Ching Har, Eliza PRIEE
{ Zhan Yuan Jing ER
} Tam Wai Chu, Maria EBEIK
}{ Jin Shi Yuan ST
>< Note I: All of the Directors attended in person rather than by proxy during the term of office.
4
4
4
4
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Composition of the Board of Directors

The Directors are elected at the general meetings for a term of office of three years, and can be re-elected when the term expires.
The seventh session of the Board was elected at the 2017 AGM with the term of office ending upon the conclusion date of the
AGM to be convened in 2021. The Board has formulated the Board Diversity Policy. All appointments of the members of the Board
are made on merit, in the context of the talents, skills and experience the Board as a whole requires to be effective. Every member
with his/her own strengths are able to coordinate with each other and help strengthen the effectiveness of the Board.

Female

/8

2 Hong Kong
iRl
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Male Mainland China
% H ] A Hb

LTD.

Details about the resume of the Directors are set out on pages 98 to 101 of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors are independent from the management with solid experience in business or finance.
They make recommendations to the Board and management on the strategic development of the Company, and provide
balancing mechanism to protect the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.

All of the one independent non-executive Director has been serving for more than nine years. In a circular dispatched to the
shareholders on 25 April 2018 regarding the re-election of the independent non-executive Director, the Company has confirmed
the independence of the one person and set out the reason for his re-election pursuant to the provision of the Listing Rules. He
was re-elected as the independent non-executive Director at the 2017 AGM by a separate resolution. Please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 25 April 2018 and the announcement of the Company dated 12 June 2018 for details.

According to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation of the independence from
each of such independent non-executive Directors for the year of 2018. The Company considers that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent from the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board had complied with the minimum requirement of the Listing Rules in relation to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors and the number of independent non-executive directors
being at least one-third of the members of the board of directors, as well as the requirement of having one independent non-
executive director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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As is known to the Company, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company do not have any relationship
among themselves in financial, business, family or other material aspects other than working relationship in the Company.

Board Diversity

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. Since 2013, the Company has been complying with the Board Diversity Policy.

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background,
gender and other qualities of the members of the Board. In determining the optimum and balanced composition of the Board, the
Company will consider the above factors. All appointments are made on merit, in the content of the talents, skills and experience
the Board as a whole requires to be effective.

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses the composition of the Board and makes recommendations to
the Board on appointment of new Directors. The Nomination Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider the
benefits of all aspects of diversity (including but not limited to the aforementioned) in order to maintain an appropriate range and
balance of talents, skills, experience and background on the Board.
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Responsibilities of the Board and the Management

76 According to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the Board is responsible to the general meeting and exercises the
following powers:

to convene general meetings and report its work to the general meeting;

{ a
} = . to implement the resolutions of general meetings;
{E
} o . to determine the Company'’s business plans and investment plans;
{ K
>< ) to formulate the Company’s plans on annual financial budgets and final accounts;
o
} —
4 Z . to formulate the Company’s profit distribution plans and plans on making up losses;
} T
5
{ - . to formulate the plans for increase or decrease of the registered capital of the Company and issue of corporate bonds;
> B
}{ <Zt to formulate plans for merger, division and dissolution of the Company;
[_‘
Z . H J H
>< w . to determine the establishment of the Company’s internal management structure;
=4
4 B
} Z . to appoint or remove the manager of the Company and to appoint or remove the deputy manager and chief financial
o ' - . : .
4 = officer of the Company based on the nomination by the manager and to determine their remunerations;
}4 . to formulate the basic management system of the Company;
}4 . to formulate proposals for amendment to the Articles of Association; and
}‘ . to determine the establishment of specific committees and to appoint and remove the relevant persons in charge.
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Pursuant to the provisions of the Code, the Board exercises the following powers in respect of corporate governance:
. to formulate and review the principles and policies of the Company’s corporate governance;

. to review and monitor the implementation of corporate governance policies by the Company as a whole and to ensure
compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements;

. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and other rules applicable;

. to approve the Company’s annual corporate governance report and its publication on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company;

to formulate, review and monitor the shareholder communication policy to ensure its effectiveness;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management; and
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. to handle other corporate governance issues that the Board shall be responsible for.

According to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the management is the executives of the Company, shall be
78 accountable to the Board and exercises the following powers:
. to lead the Company’s production, operation and management, and to organize the implementation of the Board’s
resolutions;

to organize the implementation of the Company’s annual business plans and investment plans;

LTD

. to draft plans for the establishment of the Company’s internal management structure;

. to draft the Company’s basic management system;

to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the Company;

. to propose the appointment or dismissal of the Company’s deputy manager(s) and chief financial officer;

TECHNOLOGIES CO.

. to appoint or dismiss management personnel other than those required to be appointed or dismissed by the Board; and

to exercise other powers conferred under the Articles of Association and by the Board.

REN TANG

TONG
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Chairman of the Board and General Manager

Mr. Gao Zhen Kun is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Wang Yu Wei is the general manager of the Company. The Chairman of
the Board and the general manager of the Company are two clearly defined positions. The Chairman of the Board is responsible
for the operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge of day-to-day operational management. The Board
formulated and approved the Terms of Reference of Chairman and General Manager, which sets out their respective duties and
powers in written form.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Directors should participate in continuous professional development to develop and update their knowledge and skills in
order to ensure that they continue making contributions to the Board in an informed and appropriate manner. The Company is
responsible for arranging appropriate training and providing relevant funding with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a director of the Company. During the Reporting Period, training in relation to directors’ duties, corporate
governance, inside information disclosure, Directors’ securities transactions and the latest amendments of the Listing Rules were
arranged for all Directors, thus enabling them to further understand and grasp the regulations and standardized operations of
listing companies. The Company also published appointment rules and memorandum of duties to all Directors of the new session
SO as to ensure continuous compliance in their performance of duties. In addition, the Directors also participated in relevant
training or studied reading materials according to their actual needs for performance of duties. These materials included
information in respect of laws and regulations, confidentiality management and risk prevention, which effectively facilitated the
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Directors’ Training
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management provides members of the Board with updated information on a monthly basis, setting out relevant accounts
data and financial position of the Company. This is to ensure Directors have sufficient information and knowledge about the
Company's affairs to effectively fulfill their responsibilities and obligations.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparation of financial statements which shall give a true and fair view of the
Company'’s financial situation, business performance and cash flows for the year. In preparing the financial statements for the year,
the Directors have:

1. approved the adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards;

2. selected and applied appropriate accounting policies;

3. made reasonable judgments and estimates; and
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4. prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance, transparency and its accountability to shareholders, and it
has present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures of

82 the Company as required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks the Group is able to take in achieving its

LTD

strategic goals, so as to ensure that the Group establishes and maintains reasonable and effective risk management and internal
control systems, and oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the systems. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Meanwhile, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover its duties in respect of risk
management, including supervision of relevant risk management system to ensure that the system conforms to the strategies and
risk tolerance of the Group.

TECHNOLOGIES CO.

The Group has established its risk management and internal control system and issued relevant reports with reference to
regulations and requirements including the Code of Corporate Governance, Corporate Risk Management Framework, Basic Rules
for Enterprise Internal Control, the Guidelines for Corporate Internal Control Assessment, and the Supplementary Guidelines for
Corporate Internal Control.

REN TANG

The Group has internal audit functions. A dedicated internal audit department will independently review the operation of each
department of the Group on a regular basis to identify violation and risk, if any, and propose suggestions therefore to cope with

TONG

the identified risks. The internal audit department organize comprehensive risk identification and streamline countermeasures
within the scope of the Group, updates the Group's risk list and countermeasures on a semiannual basis, evaluates the overall
effectiveness of risk management of the Group, suggests solutions accordingly (if necessary) and explains the critical findings and
internal audit process and results to the Audit Committee with an independent report.
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The Group adopts a three-level risk management and monitoring model comprising risk management, risk supervision and
independent review, in order to identify, assess and manage material risks with the following procedures including formulation
and implementation of strategy; risk identification, assessment and response; risk monitoring report and early warning; risk
treatment; and supervision and evaluation of risk management. In case of material risk or serious internal monitoring omission,
relevant units shall immediately report to the internal audit department and members of corporate management, who shall
promptly hold a meeting to discuss treatment methods and finally approve the solutions for material risk or serious internal
monitoring omission.

The Group has formulated a series of risk management and internal monitoring systems and relevant supporting operation
guidelines. For instance, the Company has promulgated the Information Disclosure Management System to regulate the
disclosure procedure of inside information and other types of information. During the year, the Company enacted the Risk
Management System, which institutionalized the operation of risk management system, and regulated and standardized the risk
management. With the aforesaid monitoring systems and guidelines, the Group has established a standard and effective risk
management and internal monitoring systems so as to safeguard the assets of the Group and interests of shareholders.
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Preparation and
implementation of risk
management strategies

JE I A L SR 114 ol S

Identification of risks

JE g ik 31

Assessment of risks

J gk 8 RF il

Response to risks

Ja g v

Monitoring reports and
early warning of risks

JE g B 4 o S 7

Treatment of risks

JE g W i T

Supervision and assessment
of risk management
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Set up risk assessment criteria and develop risk reference
tables to classify the categories of risks, the magnitude of
impacts and the possibilities of occurrence.

R AR EER R GIERAR2RE - SRR -
FERE - BENTRIETEID

The relevant units regularly identify the risks with
potential impacts on their operations and submit the
risk management self-checklist.
BHBEEL T RRA SRS ERFEETENAR
EHR (AREEEER) °

The relevant units assess the impacts of the identified risks
on their business and the possibilities of their occurrence
and the effectiveness of existing monitoring measures.
EHRABEAME S RREAXEHZE R E LM
MEA K 3R B AR e O AR VB HE AT A

The relevant units give weighting to risks and benefits and
select the risk response solutions according to the results of
risk assessment and by taking into account the causes of
risk and tolerance.
FAEABAREERTEOER - A5 RREENREN
NoAKE - EEER RN - BEEREE SR -

The relevant units monitor the risk relief work, and
submit to the Group’s audit department Report on
Self-examination of Risks every six months.
ERARAENESRBRATRLIE - WG FRAEE
FErHPIERER B ERE -

The internal audit department summarizes and arranges the

self-examination of relevant units, reports to the management

and provides the corresponding treatment plan.

MEREAT ERPIEAR - BIELSHRBEMLEEEN - MEREE
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The internal audit department prepares a comprehensive risk
management and internal control supervision and evaluation
report on a regular basis and submits it to the management
and Audit Committee, and the Board for review.
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MAJOR RISKS AND RESPONSE MEASURES

In 2018, the material risks listed by the Group included policy risk, operational risk and financial risk. For the identified material risks,
the Group has taken proactive measures to cope with various risks.

For the risks of economic and reputation loss caused by possible quality issues, the Group identified and sorted out potential
hazards in the production and operation fields, conducted analysis and research on the identified hazards, and formulated
rectification plan, which laid the foundation for the continuous improvement of the quality control level of the Group and
minimized quality risk.

For the contingent risks from the emergencies in relation to “Tong Ren Tang” brand, the Group established a good brand
protection emergency mechanism, in which the brand management department will cooperate with all relevant departments in
collecting information about the emergencies in relation to the “Tong Ren Tang” brand in a timely manner and set up counter-
measures. Meanwhile, the Group constantly strengthened its management of its subsidiaries to maintain the image of the “Tong
Ren Tang” brand.
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For the risks caused by the large inventory amount, the Group has timely grasped the quantity and costs of various raw material
inventories to reasonably arrange the use of funds to prevent tie-up of funds arising from the purchase of raw materials to the
extent possible. In the meanwhile, the Group has sorted out inventory varieties and rationally arranged sales and procurement
plan in accordance with the production and sales plans to maintain a reasonable inventory and optimise the inventory structure,
86 so as to ensure supply while reducing the tie-up of funds.

For the risks of increase in amount of trade receivables, the Group continued to strengthen credit management and customer
management, and more efforts have been exerted to strengthen the management of payment collection from distributors.
Meanwhile, the Group stipulated regulation on sales policy, distributor management, contract and agreement management,
delivery and return management, etc. from the system level, and constantly stepped up its management on accounts receivable.

LTD

For the increase in investment cost arising from safe production management and uncertainty risks due to potential safety hazards
and safety accidents, the Group stepped up its efforts in safety training and elimination of potential hazards, ensured explicit
division of labor and improved the effectiveness of potential hazards management.

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control system for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018 at the Board meeting held on 19 March 2019. The chief auditor, special internal audit department and Audit Committee have
reviewed the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries covering financial, operational,
compliance and risk management procedures.

TECHNOLOGIES CO.

In addition, the review of the Directors also took into account the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience, and
training programs and the relevant budgets of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. For the year end of 31
December 2018, the Group had no material monitoring error or monitoring weakness, and the Board is satisfied that the risk
management and internal control system of the Group are working effectively, adequate and implemented on an ongoing basis.
The Group will continue to improve the internal control system and strengthen the risk management function as necessary, so as
to continuously optimize the risk management and internal control system.

REN TANG

TONG

AV OO OO OO CNEO OO OO NCNEONCNEONEONIOIONONEN




Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)
®EEB®E (F)

“F 2R S B i

—T-N\F AKEMIITHEIZRBRE[BKRRER - LERR BERR - SHHE R BN ERR
REE B SREGA S i DA R SRR -

HUmREERNEEMEMGEARBIERZEEREERANAR  MIEMEEEELEREFENER
B STEFUE ARG - EITEEDMMAR - HEERST R RAKERERITEEEKFEEE
B UEAREREDERMR -

HUEHRACE] mENREEMHMEAEBETR A EERR - AEEGEEmERERSES - &
MR E IR AP S BABRAEPT - RRWERH (A2 mENREEM - UHITEREER : RE 58
BIEHFRARINERE  HE [RCE] mETER -

HHFEEFRRERAMG R AR AEEMKEESERHBEFNHERKNANGELRHFESER
BERCABARMMERNEFTESHE - AR - ARBREBEEASIFNHEETE  MEEFRE - &
BLBHHE RRBE S REFSEETKTFLBLEFER  BERHEBHRERSESGE -

Y RUSRAEFIE R 2 Bl AEBEER(CEREENEPEE  MRHEHEEmERNER R -
KHEED EHHEBR SHBERE ARMnAERE ZFEREEE LORERSFTHETRE @ FE
nog MR FETE

HHLRPAEERRENANENRAIEFENLZEZRE REFRME RO NET LR - AEE K
2 BREHENE  BEREETEEIA 2 THE RSB EIREMK

EEeR T NF AT NBAETNESEER LR TRE T \F—A—HE-_ZT-N\Ft=
A=+—BU#HRzREREEINARERERGEE - BBRETRTE - EFNARBBIHFINESZES
BEARBREFRRAMERGIE 2 M - BREME - 2& aRUMEAREERRF

AN BERZEHTEERARE S LM FERBMETHNER BETEEMERED A » USLIE
HRENERBREREAR NBEE-ZT—\F+A=T—HLEFE  AEERFLEEREEKR - IR
BRBAEEPE  EFEREASEAREENAMEZRGESEN - eHMAFEET  ARERE
BB S RN EREE S E Mo e R BIRThAE - ATNEN = AR ETE M AR R AT o

WbV —F

87

[ 37 3 B & 3R %R )R

>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
¢
3



Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)
®EEB®E (F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference and duties pursuant to the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and “A Guide For The Formation of An Audit Committee” complied by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Its primary duties are to review and monitor the completeness and effectiveness of the Company's
financial information, risk management and internal control system, and review the Company’s annual and interim results and
other related documents.

The Audit Committee comprises the independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza
and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, of which Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, the Chairman of the committee, possesses appropriate
professional qualification and financial experience, which is fully complied with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

During the year of 2018, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The first meeting was held on 19 March 2018 to review
and discuss the operating results, financial position and major accounting policies contained in the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 as well as matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

audit, and to listen to the result of audit reported by the auditors. The Audit Committee concluded the meeting with agreement to
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the contents of the 2017 annual report. The second meeting was held on 16 August 2018 to review and discuss the operating

results, financial position and major accounting policies contained in the unaudited financial statements of the Group for the six

months ended 30 June 2018 as well as matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal audit. The Audit
88 Committee concluded the meeting with agreement to the contents of the 2018 interim report.

In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management; made recommendation to the Board on matters relating to the reappointment of the auditors; and held separate
meetings with the auditors to discuss matters relating to its audit fees and other issues arising from the audit.

LTD

At the meeting held on 18 March 2019, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the operating results, financial position and
major accounting policies contained in the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, as
well as matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal audit, and reviewed the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems as well as internal audit, and to listened to the results of audit reported by the auditors.
The Audit Committee concurred in the contents of the 2018 annual result and annual report.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee according to the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules with specific
written terms of reference and duties. Its primary duties are to make proposals to the Board with respect to the overall
remuneration policy and framework for Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company and the establishment of
formal and transparent procedures for formulating the remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, an independent non-executive Director and the members
comprise an executive Director, Mr. Gao Zhen Kun, and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
which is in compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that independent non-executive directors shall form the majority
of the remuneration committee.

According to Rule B.1.2 of the Code, the Remuneration Committee of the Company makes proposals to the Board with respect to
the remuneration packages for individual executive Directors and senior management, including non-monetary benefits, pension
rights and compensation (including the compensation for the loss or termination of office or appointment). The exact amount
shall be determined by the Board according to the general meeting's authorisation.

During the year of 2018, two meetings have been held by the Remuneration Committee. At the meeting held on 19 March 2018,
the Remuneration Committee reviewed and discussed the matters including the Directors’, Supervisors’ and senior management’s
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017 as well as the Directors’ and Supervisors’ relevant service contracts. At the
meeting held on 12 June 2018, the Remuneration Committee discussed matters including the remuneration and related services
contracts of newly appointed Directors and Supervisors, and made recommendations to the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference and duties according to the
relevant provisions of the Listing Rules. Its primary duties include (among others):

reviewing the framework, size and composition including skills and professional knowledge of the Board on a regular basis
and making proposals to the Board in respect of any proposed change;

ii. reviewing the Board diversity policy regularly, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background
as well as professional experience, and reviewing any measurable objectives that it has set for implementing the Board

diversity policy and progress on achieving those objectives; and

ii.  identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Gao Zhen Kun, the executive Director and the Chairman of the Board and the

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

members comprise two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, which is
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in compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that independent non-executive directors should form the majority of the
Nomination Committee.

92 Factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules shall be considered by the Nomination Committee while assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

During the year of 2018, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee. At the meeting held on 19 March 2018, the
Nomination Committee reviewed and discussed the structure, size and composition of the Board. The committee also nominated
candidates for the seventh session of the Board to the Board and proposed the re-election of Mr. Gao Zhen kun, Mr. Wang Yu Wei
and Ms. Fang Jia Zhi as executive Directors of the Company, election of Mr. Huang Ning, Mr. Wu Le Jun and Ms. Wu Qian as

LTD

executive Directors of the Company, re-election of Mr. Ting Leung Huel as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, election of Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing as independent non-executive Directors of the Company.
The nominations were made on an objective basis and with due regard to the benefits to diversity of the Board.

In addition, the Nomination Committee assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and reviewed
the adequacy of time devoted by Directors in performing their duties.

The Nomination Committee also attaches importance to the diversity of Board composition, which is believed to be beneficial for
the Board as well as the Company. The Company established a policy in respect of the diversity of the Board Composition. In
reviewing and evaluating the Board composition and making recommendations to the Board on appointment of new Directors,
the Nomination Committee shall take account of the benefits of diversity in various aspects as well as the factors including
integrity of relevant persons, their accomplishments and the time they can devote to the Company, in order to maintain an
appropriate scope and the balance between expertise, skills, experience and background of the Board members. The Nomination

o
o
w
m
Q
o
—
©)
Z
T
&}
m
=
Q
4
<t
=
Z
[S8)
=4
Q
Z
o
=

Committee will make discussion to agree upon all the measurable targets to realize the diversity of Board composition each year,
including but not limited to genders, ages, culture and educational backgrounds and professional experiences, and propose
relevant targets to the Board for adoption.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had always strictly complied with the code provisions contained in the Code.

During the year of 2018, the Board reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and other rules related, formulated and
revised the rules in respect of the corporate governance, and approved the Company’s annual corporate governance report and
its publication on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS' DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct formulated on the basis of the Model Code regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and Supervisors on terms no less exacting than the required standards contained in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry to all the Directors and Supervisors, all of them confirmed that they had strictly complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct of the Company in the year ended 31 December 2018.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP were the overseas auditor and domestic auditor of the

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Company respectively for the year ended 31 December 2018. Other than annual auditing services, they also provided non-audit
services for the Company and other members of the Group.

94 The independent auditors’ remuneration in respect of its audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
out in Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board and senior management recognize that they represent the interests of all shareholders and that they need to enhance

LTD

the value of the Company in full force. The major rights enjoyed by shareholders and how to enforce them are highlighted in the
chapters of “Shareholders’ Rights and Obligations” and “Shareholders’ General Meetings” of the Articles of Association.

The Company attaches great importance to the communication with the shareholders and investors. The Company uses a number
of channels to account for the performance and operations of the Company to shareholders, particularly our periodical reports
such as annual and interim reports. In addition to delivering circulars, announcements and financial reports to our shareholders,
the Company also publishes its corporate information on its website (http://www.tongrentangkj.com) by electronic means. The
general meeting provides a good opportunity for the communication between the Board and Company’s shareholders. The
Company regards the general meeting as an important event and all Directors, Supervisors, senior management and the Chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee should make an effort to attend and
answer questions raised by the shareholders. The Company made great efforts to hold conferences and/or conference calls, as
well as arranged field trips for investors. In the meantime, the Company organized non-trading road shows at least twice a year
after releasing the results announcement to answer questions about the results and business development of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)
®EEB®E (F)

The Company encourages the shareholders to involve in the Company’s affairs and to discuss the business and prospects of the
Company directly at the AGMs or extraordinary general meetings.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, two or more shareholders together holding 10% or more of the shares conferring the right
to vote at extraordinary general meeting can sign and submit one or more written requests in the same format and content to the
Board to request the convening of an extraordinary general meeting, with the issues to be discussed clearly stated. The Board shall
convene an extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible upon receiving such written request(s). If the Board fails to issue a
convening notice within 30 days after the receipt of such written request(s), the shareholders making the request may convene an
extraordinary general meeting on their own within four months after the Board's receipt of such request(s). The procedure for
convening the meeting shall be consistent with that for convening shareholder meetings by the Board to the greatest extent
possible.

At the AGM convened by the Company, shareholders holding 5% or more of the total voting shares shall have the right to make
new proposals to the Company in writing. The Company shall incorporate the issues raised in the proposal that fall within the
terms of reference of the general meeting into the meeting agenda.
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Enquiries may be made to the Board either by contacting the Company Secretary through office and mailing address (No. 20
Nansanhuan Zhonglu, Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC) or directly by raising questions at the AGMs or extraordinary general
meetings.

96 Sticking to the principle of sustainable returns to the shareholders, the Company has been distributing cash dividends each year
since its listing. As at 31 December 2018, the Company has distributed cash dividends totaling over RMB2 billion. Set out below are
the net profits attributable to owners of the Company (As previously stated) and the total amount of cash dividends since the
Company’s listing.
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Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)
®EEB®E (F)

ARBEF T
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. Profit attributable to owners of the Company The total of cash dividend % Dividend payout ratio
MBEEBRARTERFEE Rl SesE KRB E

* The cash dividend for the year 2018 is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the 2018 AGM.
IR N\FERSREMF T \FERRBFASHE -

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 2 w6l ##%

During the Reporting Period, the Board of the Company, in accordance with relevant requirements and the actual situation of the
Company, proposed amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company to include the requirements of Construction of
the Communist Party China of the Company (among others). The amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company were
reviewed and approved at the 2017 AGM. For details, please refer to the announcement dated 24 May 2018 and the Articles of
Association of the Company dated 12 June 2018 on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
HH - ERFLASREFTHANE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Zhen Kun, aged 55, the chairman of the Company, is a senior accountant with a postgraduate qualification. He
previously served in Beijing Tong Ren Tang Medicinal Materials Co., Ltd. as the general manager and the Party Branch secretary,
and in Tong Ren Tang Ltd. as the chief accountant, the deputy general manager, the Party Committee secretary, a director and the
general manager, the chairman of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Commercial Investment Group Co,, Ltd,, and a director of each of Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Investment Development Co,, Ltd. and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine (Hong Kong) Group Co., Ltd.. Mr.
Gao is currently a director, the general manager and the vice secretary of the Party Committee of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the
chairman of Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. He is also a member of each of the 15th National People’s Congress (“NPC") of Beijing and the
16th NPC of Dongcheng District, Beijing. Mr. Gao was appointed as a Director at the 2014 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Huang Ning, aged 58, is a senior engineer with a bachelor’'s degree. Mr. Huang formerly served as a deputy director of the
technology and quality department, a deputy director of quality and technology development department, a deputy director
(leading) of technology and quality department, and the deputy head of the department for management of drugstores in other
cities of Tong Ren Tang Ltd.,, a deputy head of the quality and technology development department and a deputy head (leading)
of the quality and technology department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, a deputy manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Commercial

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Company (Preparation Group), and a deputy minister level position of the marketing and commodity price department, a deputy
minister of the market management department, the director of information center ,the deputy chief TCM pharmacist and the
head of the technology and quality department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director at the 2017
AGM of the Company.
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Mr. Wu Le Jun, aged 43, is a senior political worker with a master's degree. Mr. Wu formerly served as the secretary of the Youth
League committee of Tong Ren Tang Ltd,, the deputy secretary of the Party branch, deputy head and chairman of the labour
union of Tongzhou Branch of Tong Ren Tang Pharma of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., the deputy secretary of the general Party branch,
deputy head, chairman of the labour union of the North Branch of Tong Ren Tang Pharma of Tong Ren Tang Ltd,, the deputy
director of the Party Committee office, deputy head of publicity department, secretary of the Youth League committee and deputy
head of the medical management department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the secretary of the general Party branch, deputy head
and chairman of labour union of the North Branch of Tong Ren Tang Pharma of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., and head of Tongzhou Branch
of Tong Ren Tang Pharma of Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. Mr. Wu currently serves as the head of the department of organisation, personnel
and cadres of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Mr. Wu was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

@)
—
-

Ms. Wu Qian, aged 45, is a pharmacist-in-charge with a bachelor's degree. Ms. Wu formerly served as a deputy office director of
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Medicinal Materials Co., Ltd., a deputy director of the general office of the Party Committee and a deputy
head of the publicity department, a deputy director of the office of labour union of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the office director,
deputy secretary of the general Party Branch at the head office, the secretary of the general Party Branch at the head office of Tong
Ren Tang Ltd.. Ms. Wu currently serves as the director of the general office of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Ms. Wu was appointed as a
Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Wang Yu Wei, aged 51, is a senior engineer with a postgraduate qualification. He formerly served as the deputy officer of the
new technology development center and the deputy factory manager of Factory 2 of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pharma, the assistant

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

to the general manager and the deputy general manager of the Company, the chairman of Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional
Chinese Medicine Hospital and Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore. He is currently the general manager of the Company, the director
of Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Tangshan) Nutrition and Healthcare Co., Ltd,, Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan. and
Chinese Medicine Group. He is also a member of the 14th, 15th and 16th NPC of Fengtai District, Beijing. Mr. Wang was appointed
as a Director at the 2008 AGM of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Cont'd)
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Cont'd)

ERCEFEASREHRANER (H)

Ms. Fang Jia Zhi, aged 52, is a senior auditor with a university qualification. She formerly served as the deputy head and head of
audit department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy chief accountant of the Company and the director of Nansanhuan
Zhonglu Drugstore and Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital. She is currently the chief accountant of the
Company, the director of Tong Ren Tang Yanbian, Tong Ren Tang Anhui, Tong Ren Tang Zhejiang, Tong Ren Tang Hebei, Tong
Ren Tang Hubei, Tong Ren Tang Henan, Tong Ren Tang Tongke, Tong Ren Tang WM, Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare, Tong
Ren Tang Tangshan Healthcare, Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan, Tong Ren Tang Chengdu, Tong Ren Tang Liaoning, Tong
Ren Tang Sichuan and Tong Ren Tang Bencao. Ms. Fang was appointed as a Director at the 2008 AGM of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, aged 65, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD. He is a non-executive director of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an independent non-executive director of other six listed companies namely
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited Company Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited, Dongyue Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited, respectively. Mr. Ting is
an accountant in public practice and a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting
has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 11 October 2000.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza, aged 62, JP, BBS, LL.D. (Hon), holds the qualifications of Barrister & Solicitor of British Columbia
Supreme Court, Canada, Solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong. Ms.
Chan previously served as a member of the Selection Committee for the selection of the First Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR,
100 and member of the Election Committee for the selections of the Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR and the Hong Kong SAR
delegates to the National People’s Congress. She was the Chairman of the Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association
and the Chairman of the Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association Foundation. She also served at a number of Hong
Kong Government appointed positions, notably as a member of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority, member of Hong Kong Public
Service Commission, member of the Hong Kong Board of Education, member of Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment
Authority, member of the Medical Council of Hong Kong, Chairman of Pensions Appeal Panel and member of Administration
Appeals Board. She was a Council Member of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and Board member of the
Hong Kong Science and Technology Park Corporation. Ms. Chan is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference ("CPPCC"), a standing member of the CPPCC Tianjin Committee, Foreign Economic Affairs Legal
Counsel to the Tianjin Municipal People’s Government, an arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (CIETAC), China-Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry of Justice, Honorary President of Hong Kong

LTD

China Chamber of Commerce and Senior Consultant of Zhong Lun Law Firm. Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of Cathay International Holdings Ltd and a non-executive director of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited. Ms.
Chan was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, aged 74, is a senior engineer. Mr. Zhan previously served as the chairman, general manager, deputy Party
Committee of Tianjin Zhongxin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd., vice president of China Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine, vice president of Tianjin Medical Association, vice president of Tianjin Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine; and a
visiting professor of Tianjin University. From June 2009 to May 2015, Mr. Zhan served as an independent director of Tong Ren Tang
Ltd.. Mr. Zhan was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Cont'd)
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Cont'd)

ERCEFEASREHRANER (H)

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Su Li, aged 38, chief supervisor, is an accountant with a bachelor's degree. Ms. Su previously served as the finance supervisor
of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. She currently serves as the deputy head of financial operation department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings.
Ms. Su was appointed as a Supervisor at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Wu Yi Gang, aged 60, holding a bachelor degree of law, was admitted as a solicitor in 1984 and started practice in the same
year. Mr. Wu founded Wu Luan Zhao Yan Law Firm in Beijing in 1994 and has been the managing partner of the firm since then. He
served as one of the arbitrators of the first session of the Beijing Arbitration Commission in 1995. He currently serves as the deputy
director of Dedicated Working Committee for Reexamination of Disciplinary Actions Against Members of Beijing Lawyers
Association, and member of the First Council of Beijing Club of Non-Party Senior Intellectuals. He was appointed as a Supervisor at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 22 October 2003.

Mr. Dong Ke Man, aged 41, is an auditor with a bachelor’s degree. Mr. Dong previously served as the financial manager of
Zhongtie Jisheng Logistics Co., Ltd. and an externally assigned chief financial officer of China Automobile Trading Co., Ltd. He
joined the Company in July 2011 and currently serves as the deputy chief accountant and head of audit department of the

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Company, the supervisor of Tong Ren Tang Tangshan Healthcare, Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital
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and Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore. Mr. Dong was elected as a Supervisor in 2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

102 Mr. Bai Jian, aged 59, is a deputy chief pharmacist with a university qualification. He formerly served as the head of the foreign
economic relations and trade section, the assistant to the factory manager, the deputy factory manager of Factory 2 of Tong Ren
Tang Pharma, the deputy factory manager of pharmaceuticals factory of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and the factory manager of southern
pharmaceuticals branch factory of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and the deputy general manager of the Company. He joined the Company
since 2002 and is currently the secretary to the Party Committee and the general auditor of the Company.

LTD

Ms. Liu Cun Ying, aged 54, is a senior accountant with a university qualification. She formerly served as the chief of the finance
section of supply station of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy manager of the sale branch of the Company, the assistant to the
general manager and the deputy general manager of the Company. She has retired on 1 February 2019.

Ms. Guo Gui Qin, aged 54, is a senior engineer and a licensed pharmacist with a postgraduate qualification. She formerly served
as the deputy manager of the import and export branch of the Company, and the assistant to the general manager of the
Company. She joined the Company since 2004 and is currently the deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Yang De Chun, aged 55, is a Pharmacist-in-charge with a postgraduate qualification. He formerly served as the assistant to
the factory manager and the deputy factory manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pharma, the deputy factory manager in charge of
production and the deputy manager of southern branch factory, the deputy factory manager, the factory manager and the
secretary to the Party Committee of northern branch factory of Tong Ren Tang Ltd, the deputy secretary to the Party Committee,
the secretary to the Disciplinary Inspection Committee and the chairman of the labour committee of the Company. He joined the
Company since 2011 and is currently the deputy general manager of the Company.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

Ms. Zhang Jing Yan, aged 45, is a licensed pharmacist with a master degree in economics. She formerly served as a securities
representative of Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. She joined the Company since 2002 and is currently the secretary to the Board and the
Company secretary.
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Independent Auditor's Report
T 57 K% SR R

_
pwc 5 Ak i

To the Shareholders of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 112 to 232, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;
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the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
104 . the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

LTD

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor's Report (Cont'd)

T 5L A% BRI (B

BASIS FOR OPINION (contp)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA

Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to realisability of inventories:

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Realisability of Inventories

Refer to Note 2.14 “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies — Inventories” and Note 4 “Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements” to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2018, the Group held inventories of
RMB2,361,161,000. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value, and the latter is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
to completion and those necessary to make the sale.

We focused on this area given the significance of inventories
at 31 December 2018 and that management applies
judgements in determining the appropriate level of
provisions for inventories based on inspections and analyses
of degree of obsolescence on various categories and types of
inventories, pricing plans for different products, etc.

We obtained evidence over the appropriateness of
management’s assumptions in determining the net realisable
value of inventories by:

—  evaluating and testing the Group’s monitoring controls on
analysing slow-moving indicators of raw materials and
finished goods such as turnover ratios and aging
structures on monthly basis as well as comparing sales
budget with production plan,

—  checking the effectiveness of inventory controls operating
across the Group including inspection of materials and
products by quality officers as well as notification for
products near expires with follow-up actions,

— attending physical observations at production premises
and warehouses to identify any potential obsolescence
and damages on the Group's inventories,

— assessing the appropriateness and consistency of
management’s judgements and assumptions applied in
estimating the provisions, and

— comparing the net realisable values, to the carrying cost of
inventories to check for adequacy and calculation of
provisions.

Based on the above, we found that the assumptions and
judgements applied by management on their assessment of the
realisability of inventories were supported by the evidence we
obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
108 material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

LTD

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

AV OO OO OO CNEO OO OO NCNEONCNEONEONIOIONONEN
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (conTD)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
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s
- one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
o internal control.
c . Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
2 the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
) . Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
- disclosures made by the directors.
; . Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
é evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
< the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
1 10 and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
< A and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
) B
4 - We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
} o significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
4 w
} S We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
{ o independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
} 5 independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
4 z
} E From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
4 < audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
} O matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
{ <Zz circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
} = doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
dE
} e The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.
" E
>< E
4
>< PricewaterhouseCoopers
} Certified Public Accountants
}‘ Hong Kong, 19 March 2019
4
»
4
»
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
G EEAMER

Asat 31 December2018 R=-FE—N\F+=-HA=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARETT
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* Assets B =
(=}
o Non-current assets JE R B) & &=
i Leasehold land and land use rights T8 & -t & =4~ #h {57 F 4% 6 164,370 152,193
o Property, plant and equipment 55 & MiEEEY) - RE K& 7 2,029,183 1,674,297
= Intangible assets #& 2 & &= 8 73,990 75,469
. Investments accounted for using the equity method
< REREARNIRE 10 26,469 27,839
; Fmanoal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
z NARBEAEEAEZH A AEMEES RGN ERMEE 12 13,553 =
< Available-for-sale financial assets 7]t & & g & = 12 = 12,804
Prepayments for purchase of non-current assets FERBEETERK 33,038 58,977
Deferred income tax assets JEXE AT {55 & B 16 37,585 30,702
1 1 2 2,378,188 2,032,281
Current assets i B1 & &
Inventories 17 & 15 2,361,161 2,302,890
Trade and bills receivables fE U BR 7 & & 14 1,048,988 1,147,894
Amounts due from related parties [ 4% B8 8% A 5] B 34(e) 214,778 203,329
< i Other financial assets at amortised cost
A - DR A B S B E 53,273 .
{ o Prepayments and other current assets T815 7k &2 E (7R B & = 100,490 117,274
} © Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
4 E AR BEGEAESHT ABRNEREE 13 29,000 -
} o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
dE NARBEAEEEE T AR MG RaNEeRMEE 12 141,827 -
b E Short-term bank deposits %2 ERER 1T 5K 33(b) 1,538,125 1,048,428
4 z Cash and cash equivalents IR & IR & £ EY) 33(b) 1,904,036 2,023,561
} a5
< ‘[‘j 7,391,678 6,843,376
> B
{ z Total assets & E # 5t 9,769,866 8,875,657
b B
}4 z Equity and liabilities 35 % & f&
(=4
4B Equity attributable to owners of the Company 52BN A QA B i E &
> E Share capital &< 17 1,280,784 1,280,784
4 ° Reserves & 18 4,035,868 3,535,836
>< 5,316,652 4,816,620
n Non-controlling interests 312 i 14 fE 3 9 1,960,197 1,642,922
>4 Total equity &5 7,276,849 6,459,542




Consolidated Balance Sheet (Cont'd)
EHEEAMBER (H)

Asat31 December2018 R-ZE—NE+=-A=+—8

As at 31 December

Rt=-—RA=t+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARETT

Liabilities & &

Non-current liabilities JE R B & &

Borrowings & X 20 911,331 915,480 "
Deferred income tax liabilities ¥& ZE AT 1555 & & 16 5,679 5,302 W
Deferred income — government grants #EXEH A — ER T4 B 19 83,680 93,787 |
#
1,000,690 1,014,569 #
#
Current liabilities i 2 & &
Trade and bills payables &1 BR 7 & ZE & 21 665,038 698,415
Salary and welfare payables f&{+ T & K 1@ 5 & 22 92,970 89,900
Advances from customers Y& U 7k T8 51,297 57,131 113
Contract liabilities & [E & (& 23 4,324 =
Amounts due to related parties &1~ B8 A &) Z0 A 34(e) 154,678 69,150
Current income tax liabilities & B FT 157 & (& 50,282 49,509
Other payables E b & 1< 53X 273,592 227,641 &
Borrowings &K 20 200,146 209,800 ;f
7
1,492,327 1,401,546 =
b=
Total liabilities & & & 5t 2,493,017 2,416,115 ;;
%
Total equity and liabilities ##% & & & 5t 9,769,866 8,875,657 i
=
The notes on pages 120 to 232 are an integral part of these financial 28 120 & 232 BRIt AS FFEI 1SR Ay L2 D\T
&l

statements. ZB4y o

The financial statements on pages 112 to 232 were approved by the S 1122 2N BN BEHEREHESTEN_Z

Board of Directors on 19 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf. —NEFE=ZATIBH#E  WREXEZFELH
Gao Zhen Kun Fang Jia Zhi
= 3 ERE
Chairman Director
EFER EF
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Consolidated Income Statement
SRS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE
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RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Revenue YA 23 5,059,638 5,025,183
w Cost of sales $84%E Ak % 25 (2,631,659) (2/499,641)
>
o
= Gross profit & F 2,427,979 2,525,542
(%,
o
& Distribution expenses 5% & 25 (866,651) (994,455)
(=%
jz Administrative expenses & 12 & 25 (364,248) (364,651)
>
Z
<Zz Net impairment (losses)/gains on financial assets
SREEFREGEX) FIE 25 (6,055) 1,427
Operating profit & % F| 8 1,191,025 1,167,863
114 Finance income 81 7 i &% 24 32,031 19,830
Finance costs 81 7% & Fi 24 (14,964) (21,685)
Finance income/(costs), net B & Uk zs (B H) » JB%E 24 17,067 (1,855)
a)
[_‘
= Share of (losses)/income of investments accounted for using the equity method
ZHEEREARNRER (B18),/WahsE 10 (138) 9%
Other (losses)/gains KAt (1825),/FI1% (884) 120
Profit before income tax B& F7T 15 i A1 ;8 1,207,070 1,166,224
Income tax expense FT{S 1 & 27 (201,217) (196,332)
Profit for the year 5 5 )# 1,005,853 969,892

Profit attributable to: X ;EEER :

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

Owners of the Company A BT A & 677,815 666,666
Non-controlling interests FE4% Il 14 4 2 328,038 303,226
1,005,853 969,892

Earnings per share for profit attributable to owners
of the Company during the year

FRANESRUEEBRARRARESE

— Basic and diluted 278 & B8 G AR W a5 28 RMBO0.53 RMB0.52
The notes on pages 120 to 232 are an integral part of these 51202 232 EWMTsE AS HIIEHRER A E L
consolidated financial statements. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
G F &5 A A 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREETIT

Profit for the year £ E FI;8 1,005,853 969,892

Other comprehensive income/(losses) E 4R & Uiz, (B %)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss B 1% A f£ 4% B 7 XE = 18z ) E H
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

AfHECRHEENAAEEBES - 1,734

Foreign currency translation differences 4N 37 & Z= 58 .
— Group & & 104,859 (130,778)
— Joint ventures and associates & ‘& K B ‘& (> 2,179 (325)

WbV —F

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss B 18 TRERE M= 1B a5 1A H
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

AR EBEMEEEZHHAEMEFANGENEREENEEE 127 -

115

Other comprehensive income/(losses) for the year, net of tax

FEFEHMGEE WS (BX)  NKRHE 107,165 (129,369)
Total comprehensive income for the year 78 & E & 4R & W 75 1,113,018 840,523

Attributable to: 5B :

Owners of the Company A A R FT A & 717,121 618,361
Non-controlling interests FE12 i 14 1 2 395,897 222,162
Total comprehensive income for the year A F B & 4R & I 3% 1,113,018 840,523

The notes on pages 120 to 232 are an integral part of these 251202232 WM A& HEIE R R A EE
consolidated financial statements. o o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
& PF HE 4 2 ) 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE
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(o]
o
(]
—~
I~
o
[=9)
w Balanceasat 1 January 017 R =F—+F— A —AHE 1,280,784 411,601 387,703 45455 102043 2397 (162) 156851 1976512 4403184 1481924 5885108
I~
—~ Comprehensive income 44 &
; Proft for the year 2 B FI - - - = = = = = 666,066 666,006 303226 969892
Z Change in fair value of avalable-for-sale financial assets
Z AfHEERAENALEERD - - - - - - 660 - - 660 1074 1734
< Foreign currency translaton difierences SN B 28
—Group 8 = = = = = (48640) = = = (48,640) 82138 (130778)
— Joint ventures and associates B & RE B (5 - - - - - (325) - - - (329) - (325)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
REEAEENAFEENSHEONRS
1 16 Appropriation from retained eamings FEEVEEA 2R - - 53201 - - - - = (33.201) = = =
2016 dividends paid to shareholders of the Company
RRARE - EERE = = = - - = = = (204929) (204929) = (204923)
2016 ividends paid to non-controlling interests
KA EE S FERS - - - - - - - - - - (104655 (104653)
Capitalinjection from non-controlling interests 31251 MRS & = = - - - - - - - - 849 83491
{ A
} [: Balance as at 31 December 2017 R=E—+E+ - A=+ —REE 1280784 411,601 440,904 45455 102083 (6,568) 498 156851 2385052 4816620 1642922 6459542
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 201

s B R ()

8 BE—FT—)\F+-A=+—HIFE

Non-
controlling
interests
Attributable to owners of the Company FEHE  Total Equity
BRRALRAEE e ERGH
Foreign Financial
Statutory  Statutory currency assets
Capital surplus - public welfare translation atFvodl Retained
Share Capital Reserve reserve fund fund  Taxreserve differences reserve  Otherreserve earnings Total
EERR SHEE
& ERGR MRE  ERNEE  RHES MNEEE  BRERE  BMBE  AAERNE ait
(Note17)  (Note18(a))  (Note18(b))  (Note18(b))  (Note18(c)  (Note 18(d) (Note 18(e))
(W&17)  (Wite@)  (Miree)  (WEsb)  (KEse)  (HE18) (Hr&18(e))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR ARMTL ABMTL ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ABMTL ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ABMTR  ARMTR
Balance asat 1 January 018 A =5 —\F— A —AHE 1,280,784 411,601 440,904 45,455 102,043 (6,568) 498 156,851 2,385,052 4,816,620 1,642,922 6,459,542
Comprehensive income 44 &
Profitfor the year 73 - - - - - - - - 677,815 677,815 328038 1005853
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
ather comprehensive income (‘FVOCI')
WA BEEARRSH A LML NANEHEARNAARERD - - - - - - a8 - - 48 79 127
Foreign currency translation differences S 7 8 28
—Group £8 = = = = = 38,429 = = = 38,429 66,430 104,859
— Joint ventures and associates A2 REE (% - - - - - 829 - - - 829 1,350 2179
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
RESMEEULFEENSREMNRS
Appropriation from retained earnings 1RRABRATK - - 51,208 - - - - - (51,208) = = =
2017 dividends paid to shareholders of the Company
INARRRR-Z-LEERS - - - - - - - - ) ) - )
2017 dividends paid to non-controlling interests
LR EE - F L ERRE - - - - - - - - - - (103219 (103219)
Purchase of non-controling nterests o a subsidiary B E T2 A4 1 185 - 644 - - - - - - - 644 (2,592) (1,948)
Capital njection fiom non-controlling interests FE{2 1R & - - - - - - - - - - 27,548 27,548
Others £t = = = = = = - - - - (359) (359)
Balance as at 31 Decerber WIS R=F—\F+=A=T—BHE 1,280,784 412,45 49,112 45,455 102,043 32,690 546 156851 2793926 5316652 1960197 7,276,849

The notes on pages 120 to 232 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARFETIT

Cash flows from operating activities: E& FHELNHESHRE

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

Cash generated from operations 484 /& Eh Ut ZI|HY38 & 33(a) 1,229,906 900,956
w Interest paid Xz 15 B9 71| &, (34,431) (34,719)
& Income tax paid S 1< B FT 15 %4 (210,239) (186,430)
=
§ Net cash generated from operating activities &% & E EN U EIFY IR © R 25 58 985,236 679,807
o
= Cash flows from investing activities: R EFHEL MRS RE
> Purchase of property, plant and equipment
: BEEERZEY - BERRME (356,787) (411,567)
< Purchase of land use rights i & 1 b {55 F 4 (15,803) (13,508)
Purchase of other long-term assets & & H 4 & & &= (6,842) (4,720
Proceeds from government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
BB R RFEEEY) - /B K 3R 48 fE &0 BT 48 B 6,972 21,848
118 Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment
BREFEREEY BERREMKINRE 201 235
Proceeds from disposals of land use rights Bz & 35 FA# Fr ik B H9 3R & 460 -
Net increase in short-term bank deposits
- RHISRITE IO A IR E (524,079) (196,685)
= Proceeds from wealth management products $R1TI2 BRI & A 152,800 222,000
Increase in wealth management products 381732 B 28 @ IR € 7 (181,800) (222,000)
Dividends received W 2| &9 i% B 140 17
Interest received JZ| & F| B 26,919 21,008
Proceeds from disposal of associates Bz & B 4 1> ¥ W ZI|#)38 & 1,969 =
Others EAth 15,377 (19,050)
Net cash used in investing activities #% & /&8 X (T AR &R 2/ F 58 (880,473) (602,322)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Cont'd)
AHHE SR =R (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARFET T

Cash flows from financing activities: EE EFEEENWESRE

Proceeds from borrowings f& sX FT U Bl Y 28 & 195,991 207,300
Repayments of borrowings 18 & {& 5K AT M KR & (210,242) (211,000)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests E4% &l 14 #E = H & 27,548 43,491
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company M1 ZA A AIA% B 2 - % 5 (217,733) (204,925)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [A) JE122 ) 14 48 25 2 (<7 A% &, (104,240) (103,634)
Purchase of non-controlling interests of a subsidiary i%i
BE T ARSI R (1,948) = |
Payment to non-controlling interests upon liquidation of a subsidiary >
MR F)EE M M IR S B N (371) - :
#
Net cash used in financing activities 2 & & &) S (T RN & R E/F5E (310,995) (268,768)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents I8 & & 38 & S B F (206,232) (191,283)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 119
Re kR EBYOFIERER 2,023,561 2,332,110
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents
ReRBZEMELNE(BX) 86,707 (117,266)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

RERRESSEYNERRE 33(b) 1,904,036 2,023,561

The notes on pages 120 to 232 are an integral part of these 251202232 BEHIMTF BA I IE R R A B EE
consolidated financial statements. 2o o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& OF B 05 i 3R M 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION

— &R
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “"Company”) was
incorporated as a joint stock limited company in Beijing, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") on 22 March 2000. The address of its
registered office is No.16 Tongji Beilu, Beijing Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Beijing, the PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries are hereafter collectively referred to
as the "Group”. The Group is principally engaged in the production
and distribution of Chinese medicine and primarily operates in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider China Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd,, a limited liability company incorporated
in Beijing, the PRC, as the ultimate holding company.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 31 October 2000. On 9 July 2010, the
Company transferred the listing from GEM to the Main Board (the “MB")
of the Stock Exchange.

These financial statements are presented in RMB unless otherwise
stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2019.

ERFECEMREREMARAR(ARD
Al) ER-ETTF=-_A -t -_HERE
ARFMBE (THE D IERRIOBRDER D
Al o AR AR MM A B R 4 A&
R 7 3% R R AL B8 16 53R

ARRREFRBATNGHES [AEE] - K
SETFEXBRTHERENEE  TBEE
R BE R NEE

ARPMEZ(TEEDRAR  EFBEILRMKL
MABEIERRCE (RE)BRETRR &
R AT -

ARRB_ZTTEFE+A=+—BREBEEH
EBRSMBERAR (B AIFERET -
RZZ-—FFLANE  ARBIHBEZFTE
EREEERLET -

KB mEAAREINR BRIESBFHA)

BHMBRRER-F-NAF=A+1AEL
EESHETIE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conTD)
— BB R

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017
and 2018:

TXHEHIINR T —tFR_FT—N\F+_A
=t+—HBHEEFAQF]:

Place/date of Percentage Issued/registered
incorporation/ of equity and paid-up  Principal activities/
kind of legal entity interest held capital place of operation
AR - B BRI/
RENER BRREEINL REKER TEEBNCEL
[l
Subsidiaries: i
A —
FRE . G
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Henan Henan, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB4,000,000  Cultivating, selling and g
Technological development of Chinese 24 October 2001 AR 40000007 technological development
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited Limited liability company of Chinese medicinal raw
(‘Tong Ren Tang Henan’) B materials
IR A2 E o A Rl 3 S e i Henan, PRC
BRAT BREARH REMEE - HE 121
(IREmmE]) VB UEE
GO
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Hubei Chinese Hubei, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB3,000,000  Cultivating, purchasing and
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited 26 October 2001 AR#30000007  selling of Chinese medicinal a }
(‘Tong Ren Tang Hubei’) Limited liability company raw materials st ‘
ERACERLPENERAR tEAL Hube, PRC a
(TRE2HL) - FHA AR PRI W e N »
AREEAT DA # }4
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Zhejiang Chinese Zhejiang, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB10,000,000  Cultivating, purchasing and = ‘
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited 31 October 2001 ARH100000007c  selling of Chinese g }
('Tong Ren Tang Zhejiang") Limited liability company medicinal raw materials = {
KRR SRR EARAT LT Zhejiang, PRC o )
(IREENL)) “ZE-ftHA=1-H hERE W HE =K
AREEAT PEHL = }{
B
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Hebei Chinese Hebei, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB48,000,000  Cultivating, purchasing and a }
Medicinal Raw Materials Technologies 19 November 2001 AR 480000007 selling of Chinese medicinal 4
Co, Limited Limited liability company raw materials }
(‘Tong Ren Tang Hebei’) HEIE Hebei, PRC 4
ERBCZA L BRI R “Z2-§+t-RTNR MENEE W HE 2
BRRA BREARAT R B 4
(TRM=Z5]) 2
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tongke Beijing, PRC 95%* 95%* RMB75,000,000  Production of cintment, }4
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 4 November 2003 ARME750000007c  medical research and 4
('Tong Ren Tang Tongke") Limited liability company development }
TRRCERMEXEREEATA HE R Beijing, PRC <
(IREEEN) —ZT=F1+-AmA REEH  BERWRE )
BREAAT hEE R 4
e Equity interests directly held by the Company * BROBARFEERFE h
b
4
3




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conTD)
_‘ﬂﬁ§§*4M@

Place/date of Percentage Issued/registered

incorporation/ of equity and paid-up Principal activities/
kind of legal entity interest held capital place of operation

R B BRI/

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
;l
|

= REAES BEREADL REWEF IEERAGEH
=
|
= Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
= FRA (&)
|S8)
(=4
- Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies Hebei, PRC RMB420,000,000  Production (including
; (Tangshan) Co, Ltd 17 June 2015 AR 4200000007T  extraction) of Chinese
z (‘Tong Ren Tang Technologies Limited liability company medicine, food and
<Zt Tangshan’) HEIE healthcare products
ERACERBER (BIL)BERAF “Z2-0FRATEA Hebei, PRC
(TBEERRELD BREAAT EERETKE(RTE
) - RmRRER
R
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies Sichuan, PRC RMB53,061,000  Production and processing of
Chengdu Co, Ltd 26 February 2003 AR®530610007C  biochemical products and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Chengdu’) Limited liability company Chinese medicine, extraction
T RRCEREERK DR A HEm)l| and processing of plants
«E (TR-Z %)) “FF=FZAZtAA Sichuan, PRC ‘
> B AREELT HE - MIAtRmMes &
B HERRRED
o MTEER
t' - DER)
m
} 0 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Beijing, PRC RMB10493,000  Internal and external surgery,
‘ g Chinese Medicine Hospital Co,, Ltd 12 September 2000 AE#104930007C medical examination,
} © ('Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Limited liability company traditional Chinese medicine
{ i Chinese Medicine Hospital’) RS department and hospital
} 3 IRACEE-—AREREREANT “EEEFNA+CH management
4B (REEE= R ) BREEAT Befjing,PRC
b BB RSN - BERES - hEH
4 E BB ER
} » HEE R
fl.
} o Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Hong Kong, PRC HKD938,789,000  Manufacturing, retail and
{ 0 Company Limited !" 18 March 2004 B9387890007  wholesale of Chinese
} z ('Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine’) Limited liability company medicine products and
4 ° FRFACERERRAA HEEE healthcare products and
} ([ACERZ]) —TTME=R+N\H provision of Chinese medical
4 BREFAT consultation and treatments
} Hong Kong, PRC
4 hEERAMRERNEE
) TERBBEVIRY
< hEIR
) HEEE
>< e Equity interests directly held by the Company * BROBARFEERFE
4
»




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conTD)
— MG RE a

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Percentage
of equity
interest held

Issued/registered
and paid-up
capital

BRfT/HR
RERER

Principal activities/
place of operation

R % - B

REALH BRRERDL FEXBNEE

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRE ()

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Nansanhuan
Zhonglu Drugstore Co, Limited
(‘Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore’)

ERRCEE=RPREEERAR
(ME=RHREE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Yanbian Chinese
Medicinal Raw Materials Co,, Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Yanbian’)

I RRCEERPENENBR A
((R-ETER))

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Anhui Chinese
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited
("Tong Ren Tang Anhui’)

IRBCELHPENERAR
(IBEEZR])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang WM Dianorm
Biotech Co, Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang WM')
ERRCEERBENERMBRAF
((BL2EEE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
(Hong Kong) Group Co, Ltd.
("Chinese Medicine Group’)

TRRCERE(FE) RBARAT
((EZ&E])

Beijing, PRC

28 April 2004

Limited liability company
hEER
“ZTMEMA-T\H
BREER

Jilin, PRC

24 September 2004
Limited liability company
T
—ZEMEAA-TMA
BREMEAF

Anhui, PRC

18 October 2004

Limited liability company
hEZH
—ZTMETATNR
BREARAF

Beijing, PRC

20 February 2001

Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

R R

“ZT-F_A_1H

PINEBRE

Hong Kong, PRC

1 March 2012

Limited liability company
HEES
I
BEREARLA

* Equity interests directly held by the Company

100%*

51%*

51%*

60%*

53.09%*

90%* RMB500,000
AR 5000007T

519%* RMB4,000,000
AR 40000007T

519" RMB24,000,000
AR 240000007C

60%* USD3,000,000
%77.3,0000007

53.09%* HKD75,000,000
&1 75,000,000 7C

Sales of medicinal products
Beijing, PRC

BniHe

HEE R

Cultivating and selling of
Chinese medicinal raw
materials

Jilin, PRC

REEE  HE

REEA

Cultivating, purchasing and
selling of Chinese
medicinal raw materials

Anhui, PRC

hERE R HE

PEZH

Technological development
and sales of biological
products, Chinese and
western medicines, cosmetics
and healthcare products
Beijing, PRC
EYRm  PEE - {mM
RERMARIMFEERHE
HEER

Investment holding
Hong Kong, PRC
REER
hEEA

* RV A R ABEERFE

WbV —F
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Notes to the (:onsolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B i 3R B E (

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ—=F

4

—N\FE+ZA=1T—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conTD)

— R

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

R B
G-I

Percentage
of equity
interest held

BREREEDL

Issued/registered
and paid-up
capital

BE#T/=M
REWER

Principal activities/
place of operation

FTEXRNCE

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRE (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare
Technologies Co, Limited
('Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare’)
ERRCERZRENBARAERH
((BEERZRE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Century
Advertising Co,, Limited
('Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising”)
FIRACEHLEEEERA
((BELLRS))

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Tangshan)
Nutrition and Healthcare Co, Ltd
('Tong Ren Tang Tangshan Healthcare )
ERRCE (B EERERRERAT
((R-ZELRER))

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies
(Anhui) Co, Ltd @
(‘Tong Ren Tang Technologies Anhui’)
FRRCEMERR (R ARRAY
((BEENRZH])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Liaoning) Technologies

Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(‘Tong Ren Tang Liaoning’)
ETRRCE (BE)MREXERA

(IRA-EEE])

Beijing, PRC 51%*

14 April 2004

Limited liability company
HEL R
“ZTNEMA+IA
BREERA

Beijing, PRC 100%*

25 September 2013
Limited liability company
R R
“Z-=fhAA=THA
BREEAT

Hebei, PRC 74%*

13 September 2010
Limited liability company
RELA L
“F-TENATZH
AREERR

Anhui, PRC -

18 December 2015

Limited liability company
hEZH
“Z-Rf+-R+/\R
BBRAEARH

Liaoning, PRC 51%*

25 July 2018

Limited liability company
hEEE
“E-N\F+AZTHA
AREERA

* Equity interests directly held by the Company

519* RIB69,000,000
AR 69000,0007C

100%* RMB1,000,000
ARE1,000,0007T

74%* RMB170,000,000

AR 170,0000007C

100%* RMBS50,000,000
AE#500000007C

- RMB136,000,000
AR 136,0000007C

B HEAR

Cultivating, purchasing and selling
of Chinese medicinal raw
materials, production and
selling of tea drinks product series
and foot care product series

Beijing, PRC

hERE W HE
RBEMREAEED
HE - HE

HEL R

Advertisement services
Beijing, PRC
EEREIRY
HEER

Production and sales of
healthcare products and
Chinese medicine

Hebei, PRC

REMRABEEREE

BT

Extraction of Chinese medicine,
production of food

Anhui, PRC

R

HEZH

RmEE

Production and sales of deer
series Chinese medicine and
healthcare food

Liaoning, PRC

BRI ERRERD
EERBE

HEEE

AIEEFE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& PF B i R B EE (48)

GENERAL INFORMATION (contp)

— BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—ZFT—\F+_A=1+—HIFE

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

R % - B
REAER

BREREED L

Percentage
of equity
interest held

Issued/registered
and paid-up
capital

BRfT/HR
kERER

Principal activities/
place of operation

FTEXRNCE

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

FRA (8)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International
Natural-Pharm Co, Ltd.
('Tong Ren Tang International

Natural-Pharm’)

FRACERREXERAA]
(TRCERREE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Australia Pty. Ltd.
(‘Tong Ren Tang Australia’)
FRFECE (RAME) BRAF

([E=ZRAFIE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Science Arts
(Singapore) Co, Pte. Ltd.
('Tong Ren Tang Singapore’)
ERFECEH S (R ILABRAR
(TEM=Z 5 mg])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) Inc.
('Tong Ren Tang Toronto’)

IRACE (%%R%)ERAR
([F-2%m%])

Beijing, PRC

6 March 2006

Limited liability company
hEIL R
—ZTRE=ARE
BREMERA

Sydney, Australia

20 May 2004

Limited liability company
BAMEER
“ZEMERAZTA
BREEAT

Singapore

1 December 2003
Limited liability company
AR
ZZZ=E1ZA—H
BREEAT

Toronto, Canada

24 June 2010

Limited liability company
nex%m%
“E-ZFAZTNA
BREEAH

100% 100% HKD10,000,000
781510,000,0007T

75% 75% AUD1,000,000
BAF887T,1,000,0007C

51% 51% SGD857,000
HIT857,000 7T

51% 51% CAD497.300
& K84973007T

Sales and distribution of Chinese

medicine and healthcare products
Beijing, PRC
HERAHPEEMERER
hEE R

Wholesale and retail of Chinese
medicine and healthcare
products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

Sydney, Australia

BERTEPEERERRER
MR IRER B D ERSE

BARTERE

Wholesale and retail of Chinese
medicine and healthcare
products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

Singapore

BERTEPEERERRER
MR IR AR B DB RS

g

Retail of Chinese medicine and
healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Toronto, Canada

TEREERERRRUR
RERBDERSE

nex%m%

WbV —F
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Notes to the (:onsolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION (contp)
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“ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁhﬁ)

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

R B

Percentage Issued/registered
of equity and paid-up
interest held capital

BE#T/=M

Principal activities/
place of operation

z REAER FERERDHL REKER THEBALEH

=

|

g Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

A FRE (&)

(=%

= Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Macau, PRC 51% 51% MOP1,000,000  Wholesale and retail of Chinese

= Company Limited 28 October 2002 SBFITL10000007C  medicine and healthcare

z ('Tong Ren Tang Macau’) Limited liability company products and provision of

z ERECE(RM)BRAR LR Chinese medical consultation
(IR-ERM)) —FT ¢+ﬂ +/\H and treatments

ﬁﬁifﬁ Macau, PRC

RERTEPEERARER
AR SRt BRI
R

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC Dubai, United Arab Emirates 51% 51% AED1,920,000  Retail of Chinese medicine and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Gulf) 8 June 2011 el healthcare products and
TRRCEGEERAAE Limited liability company 19200007 provision of Chinese medical
A ((R-2%E]) Mg A RE consultation and treatments
= BE Dubai, United Arab Emirates
—E—& AR TENEERARRRAR
BREMFAT RUPEDERYE
P EsAEREEE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Poland sp.zo.o. Warsaw, Poland 100% 100% Zloty130,000  Retail of Chinese healthcare
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('Tong Ren Tang Poland' )
LERRCE ORE)BRA
((BEERE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Canada Co. Ltd.

26 July 2012,
Limited liability company

RRED

KB L5218 130,000 7T

products and provision
of Chinese healthcare treatments
Warsaw, Poland

—Z- _Eﬁﬂ +/\EI g % 1%1@11@/\&
BREFAT REDEIBRY
REED

Vancouver, Canada

51% 51% CAD1,000,000

Retail of Chinese medicine and

('Tong Ren Tang Canada’) 11 January 2002 MEAIT1,0000007c  healthcare products and
ERREE(MEX) BB AT Limited liability company provision of Chinese medical
((R-EmEX]) NeEXRTTE consultation and treatments
I A= Vancouver, Canada
BREEAH TEREEREARRRUAR

AP BDBRY
MERRFE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staten1ents((:ont'd)

& P BB i R B GE (48

GENERAL INFORMATION (contp)

— BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —

E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

R % - B
REAER

Percentage
of equity
interest held

BREREED L

Issued/registered
and paid-up
capital

BRfT/HR
kERER

Principal activities/
place of operation

FTEXRNCE

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRE (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Melbourne Pty. Limited

(‘Tong Ren Tang Melbourne )
FRFECE (RBAT)ERD
((R-Z&@%])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Seoul)
Company Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Seoul’)
ETRRCE (BB KA 24
((REZEERE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland)
Company Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Auckland’)
FRRCE (RRR) ARAR
((RERZW])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong
Le Company Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le")
FIRACZERLALERAR
(IBEERVEL))

Melbourne, Australia

9 April 2014

Limited liability company
BANZERA
“T-mEMANA
BREARH

Seoul, South Korea

10 March 2014

Limited liability company
BHEER
“Z-mE¥=R+H
BREARLH

Auckland, New Zealand
2 May 2014

Limited liability company
MEREARE
“E-MERAZH
BRAARH

Hong Kong, PRC

19 May 2014

Limited liability company
hEEE
“Z-mERATAR
BREEATF

51%

51%

51%

100%

51% AUD100,000
BAFTE 7T 1000007

51% WONT1,052,000,000

#71,1,052,000,000 7

51% NZD2,000,000
HFRE 7T 2,0000007C

100% HKD10,000
A 100007T

Retail of Chinese medicine and
healthcare products and provision
of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

Melbourne, Australia

TEFEERERRRAR
RERBDERSE

BANTERA

Wholesale of Chinese medicine

and healthcare products
Seoul, South Korea
wEFEERERER
BEER

Retail of Chinese medicine and
healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Auckland, New Zealand

TEREERARRRUR
RERBLERSE

MEERRH

Wholesale and retail of
Chinese medicine and
healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments
Hong Kong, PRC
BERTEDEERERRER
I RER R B DB RS
HEES

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conTD)
“ﬂﬁ%%ﬁhﬁ)

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
)
;l
4

Place/date of Percentage Issued/registered
incorporation/ of equity and paid-up Principal activities/
kind of legal entity interest held capital place of operation
) L ML B84/
= RENER FERERI L REWER FEEENLER
=
—~
= Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
A FRA (&)
(=%
- Honour Essence Trading Limited Hong Kong, PRC 51% 51% HKD2,000  Wholesale of Chinese medicine
; ("Honour Essence’) 10 March 1997 BH0007T and healthcare products
Z AERESHBERDA Limited liability company Hong Kong, PRC
z (X2EZ)) hERE BEDEERRRERD
—ANEE=ZATH hEEE
BREAAT
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pudu Health Centre BV.  Den Haag, 60% 60% Euro650,000  Retail of healthcare products and
128 g ong Ren Tang Pudu’) the Netherlands BIT6500007c  provision of Chinese medical
TRREEEEREFLERATF 17 August 2015 consultation and treatments
((R-EEE)) Limited liability Den Haag, Netherlands
Company ZERRMIAR
HWRET Rt BLERY
P —2-nf/\A A HEET
N - ARREAA
‘ S Beijing Tong Ren Tang Czech Republic SE Prague, 60% 60% (ZK3,296400  Retail of healthcare products and
} - (‘Tong Ren Tang Czech’) the Czech Republic R mA32964007  provision of Chinese medical
4 o IRACE(FER)BRAR 11 December 2015 consultation and treatments
} o (IR-ER]) Limited liability Prague, Czech Republic
| 9 company ZERRRIAR
> E BRI REREYERY
4 E “F-AET=A+-R fesmS
> B BREFAT
4 E
} O Beijing Tong Ren Tang Sweden AB Stockholm, Sweden 60% 60% SEK50,000  Retail of healthcare products and
4 z (‘Tong Ren Tang Sweden’) 9 September 2015 T ZEIS00007C  provision of Chinese medical
} = L RRACE Grit) BRAF Limited liability consultation and treatments
4 Z ([ACERR]) company Stockholm, Sweden
» E RANETRE SERRANR
B “T-REAANA R ED BRR
2 z BREEATF REEETRE
«E
b
4
>
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& PF B i R B EE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

GENERAL INFORMATION (contp)

— MG RE a

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

R % - B
REAER

BREREED L

Percentage
of equity
interest held

Issued/registered
and paid-up
capital

BRfT/HR
kERER

Principal activities/
place of operation

FTEXRNCE

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

FRE (#) .
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Vancouver Healthcare  Vancouver, Canada 51% 51% CAD750,000  Retail of Chinese medicine and i
Center Co, Ltd 19 January 2016 MEAIT7500007  healthcare products and _;
('Tong Ren Tang Vancouver’) Limited liability provision of Chinese medical &
TRRACERTERERLERAA company consultation and treatments o
((R-ZBFE]) JIEYNEES Vancouver, Canada
—Z-55-AthA TEPEERERRRIUAR
BREEAF REPBDBERY
MERRFE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles Healthcare  Los Angeles, 60% 60% USD600,000  Retail of healthcare products and 1 29
Centre LLC United States EJ06000007T  provision of Chinese medical
(‘Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles’) 18 November 2015 consultation and treatments
TRRCEEVERET OBRAF Limited liability Los Angeles, United States
UGEs=5:57: 3| company ZEREBRAR a }
FERTH REPEDRRY ¢
“Z-nf+—RA+/\R FERTH il )
BREFEAH m <4
fie
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Concord New York LLC~ New York, 60% 60% USD800,000  Wholesale and retail of f }
('Tong Ren Tang Concord’) United States %JL8000007  Chinese medicine and ; ‘
TRRECERNRLNERAR 13 June 2016 healthcare products and - }
(IREERHN) Limited liability provision of Chinese medical = 4
company consultation and treatments s }
XEARL New York, United States 2 4
L ARt HERTERBERRRS, = 4
AREELT RRES B ERE >R
2R e ><
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Ming Qi Group, LLC New York, 70% 70% USD200,000  Wholesale and retail of Chinese }
('Tong Ren Tang Minggqi’) United States %J02000007T  medicine and healthcare 4
TRREEREERAR 22 April 2005 products }
(TR-ERE]) Limited liability New York, United States 4
company HERZEREEDERERD 2
2EAN ZEAN <
“ZERFMA-TZA 3
BREMFAT 4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
3




Notes to the (:onsolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conTD)
“ﬂﬁ%%ﬁhﬁ)

Place/date of Percentage Issued/registered
incorporation/ of equity and paid-up Principal activities/
kind of legal entity interest held capital place of operation

R B BRI/

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
;l
|

@ Tong Ren Tang Technologies Anhui has completed deregistration after RCERBRLZHR - — \FLEBETETH -
approved by the company registration authority in 2018.

z REAER FERERI L REWER FEEENLER
=
|
= Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
A FRA (&)
(=%
- Beijing Tong Ren Tang Farlong Healthcare San Francisco, 60% 60% USD800,000  Retail of healthcare products and
; Center LLC United States £JL8000007T  provision of Chinese medical
z (‘Tong Ren Tang Falong ) 22 September 2016 consultation and treatments
z TRACEEEERA Limited liability San Francisco, United States
([ACERE]) company TERBRUR
%I_“* REPEIRRY
“E-R"EARZTZAH FE=%T
BREEATF
130 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Africa (Pty) Ltd Johannesburg, 51% 51% ZAR24,000,000  Retail of Chinese medicine and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Africa ) South Africa FIERIHF 240000007C  healthcare products and
ERRECEFENERA 6 September 2016 provision of Chinese medical
(IBEEHEN]) Limited liability consultation and treatments
< a company Johgnng&byrg, South Africa
) = FIFRBREE TEPEEmEREmAR
4 ) —Z- /\iﬂﬂ/\El Tﬂ Eu/%ﬁﬁk
> ° BREERR EE L [k
{E
} o Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA Geneva, Switzerland 60% 60% CHF500,000  Retail of Chinese medicine and
‘ © (‘Tong Ren Tang Swiss’) 8 September 2017 IR E/ARR5000007C  healthcare products and
} o TRREERIROERAR Limited liability company provision of Chinese medical
4 i ((REERL]) LTHAR consultation and treatments
} 3 “E—+ENANHE Geneva, Switzerland
{E ARELLA TEBEERREONR
> BB RURBLERY
4 E BAAE
b B
< z t Although the Group owns less than half of the equity interest, itisableto [ R AR (D /NI 50% » 1B 2 AN &£ B B4 = [ET
} = gain power over more than half of the voting rights by virtue of an EROMDAERAR((BAT]) EEEHEEE NI
4 0 agreement with Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited (“Parent BBBELEKRAE  IALAEBERLCEREES
} z Company’). Consequently, the Group consolidates Tong Ren Tang BEABR ©
4 E Chinese Medicine.
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
<4
4




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staten1ents((:ont'd)

& P BB i R B GE (48

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conTD)
— BB R

The following is a list of principal joint ventures as at 31 December X &HI R —_ZE—+F R -_ZE—\F+ A
2017 and 2018: =T—HHEXESEEE:

Place/date of

incorporation/ Percentage of Issued/registered
kind of legal entity equity interestheld  and paid-up capital Principal activities
AIHY - A CE
REAER EERERAL REKEX
[l
Joint ventures: “ﬁ‘{
REL% -
Peking Tongrentang (M) SDN. BHD. Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 60% 60% MYR1,900,000  Retail of Chinese medicine and gl
(Tong Ren Tang Malaysia’) 19 January 2001 BREZMEE  healthcare products and ®
TRREEE (%Xﬁﬁﬁ)%ﬁ G Limited liability company 19000007 provision of Chinese medical =
([R-2ERAEE]) SRADFER consultation and treatments
“£2-=AthA PERRERDRERIR
BREAAT REPEDERSE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co, Ltd. & Bangkok, Thailand 49% 49% THB38,000,000  Wholesale and retail of Chinese 1 3 1
(‘Tong Ren Tang Thailand’) 23 March 2000 Z8£380000007C  medicine and healthcare
TRRACE (ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ o Limited liability company products and provision of
((REERE]) REEA Chinese medical consultation
—ZERE-F_+=H and treatments
BREEAT HERTETEERARRER
AR GREHED BRI &
st
Union Health International Limited Hong Kong, PRC 50% 50% __ _HKD10000  Retall of Chinese medicine and |
('Tong Ren Tang Fook Ming Tang’) 3 May 2004 B®100007C  healthcare products and 7
BRERERAA Limited liability company provision of Chinese medical e
(IRCERHE]) PEEE consultation and treatments »
—EIMERA=A TERSERBREDNE =
BREAAT REPBYBRY &
il
& Although the Company owns more than or less than 50% of the equity @ BEARNBBEZEETEZ N DR 500 0% # - ?
interests in these entities, the directors of the Company consider that M )‘5/\\\7@})%/\ a Tﬁ?’) B, iy g A 4E Y /EEBUE =
these entities are joint ventures of the Company because decisions B ARQ kRS MIERAAD =t
about their relevant activities are jointly controlled by the Company and B8 5 %\J ygﬁe;@ij( 2R, MAKNTEER ai
the joint venture partners in accordance with the joint venture ZEEEIURN\F ALY o Z

agreements rather than under the unilateral control or significant
influence of the Company.

WV WV WV WV VUV VUV VUV VUV VYV YV V VYV V V.V
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conTD)

— R

The following is a list of principal associates as at 31 December 2017

and 2018:

=t+—AMEEnE

TYXHEIR—_E—+FR—_F—N\F+_HA
b2

Place/date of
incorporation/

Percentage of

Issued/registered

kind of legal entity equityinterestheld  and paid-up capital Principal activities
LA I:E: BRI/
RENER BRREE L REKEX
2017
Associates:
BEl%:
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Bozhou Anhui, PRC - 40%* RMBS5,000,000  Storage and logistics of Chinese
Chinese Medicinal Raw Materials 12 July 2011 ARE50000007T  medicinal raw materials,
and Logistics Co, Limited Limited liability company transportation and labor services
(‘Tong Ren Tang Bozhou') HEZH hENEH N TRE
ERFECE (M) PEHYRERARY —F——FtA+=H &% SHE0
((R=ZZM]) BEREAAT
Tong Ren Tang Shanxi Sheye Co,, Ltd. Shanxi, PRC 29%* 29%* RMB30,000,000  Manufacturing and breed of musk,
('Tong Ren Tang Sheye’) 14 December 2015 ARM300000007C  production products and sales,
IRRAECERARXERAR Limited liability company production of agricultural and
(IR-EEE]) BlElb il sideline and sales
“Z-Rf+_R+EA HEEE LR REREE
BREARAT HE  RRIERHE
* Equity interests directly held by the Company * BB ANGEERES
£ Tong Ren Tang Bozhou has completed deregistration after approved by BLCESMR T — N\ EEHETEE T -

the company registration authority in 2018.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —

A R B 3R B AR (A

E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

At BUR %
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
A Sk e

The consolidated financial statements of Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Co. Ltd. have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at FVOCI and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

RERSHIBRREANEBR S BORH
R - BRABFHAIN - L FBREFT R
MATBFERNERER -

ERACEMRBERBNDERIRNA G
BHREEREBBRVHRSENMEE(R
ARG B ERERE - A HMBRERER
RESLRALmE  YERUAREBEFE
BEZB T AE MRS et /& ZE A
ARNEEFELAEZHFTARENEREE
B IEHRERT

RAETEBERMBRE LIS BRERE
ERE ?%&Eﬁﬁﬁ @ﬁ%%%ﬁ%&
ERAREN S BEBRPITHEEL A -
FhEENAERSEERE S RYHE
HABHRRIEHBBARKMEFOEE - 7
BYEE4 P IREE -

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

B2 ORI w0

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

U BARE HE ()

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards

The Group has adopted the following new standards, interpretations
and amendments to standards which are mandatory for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

21N B HENMEENEH

2111 EFRABIFTETE R - $AERER KR 215
%—]’

REBRAR-_ZT—NEFE—A—Hz 2%

F1E 2 BT BN FE 7B 58 I B B MO #TaT ZER1) ~ 3T

FRRE N R ZAERTAAT ¢

Amendment to IAS 28
BBR = 2ERI 5 28 97 (15 2%0)

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
R ENE B EIRE

Amendments to IAS 40
e e RIS 40 5% (1820

Transfers to Investment Property

BREMEMENEAREH

Amendment to IFRS 1
B B B s R 5 42 BI) 3B 1 9% (15280

First Time Adoption of IFRS
B R ER A B B B s R 15 2R B

Amendments to IFRS 2
B B B TS R 25 2 B 5 2 5% (1520

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

B BERO N R BN DBt E

Amendments to IFRS 4
B B B S R 5 2 R 5 4 5% (15280

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
ST BRI RS LR E 455 R IR & R B b BFR M B R S5 2 A
FoRTMTA

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
B B B s R A5 2 R 58 9 5% ST A
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

BRI B 75 i o 2R 1) 56 15 5%

BES 2 EHNA REEHRA

Amendments to IFRS 15
B B B s R A5 2E R 5 15 5% (182%0)

Clarifications to IFRS 15
BB BB A TS S 22 RIS 15 9%

IFRIC 22
BEFR  75 ¥R o5 R AR AR 26 22 5%

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

SN R B IR TRA B

The Group elects to adopt IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 without restating
comparatives. The reclassification and the adjustments arising from the
adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, but are
recognised in the opening of the consolidated balance sheet on 1
January 2018.

AEEEEZENEMLEER TRABEER Y
B EERIFRAMBE RN B M EERIF 15
S o BUBR P B BR B 75 9 45 22 A1) 26 9 5% A B BR
M REENF 1S MELENED BMBER
RZEBE—+E+_A=+—HBHHNAHEESR
BERPRE - BR=ZFE—-N\F—A—B&#
BERBERDVGEHRTHER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —

& PF B i R B EE (48)

E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

BT BRI Z @

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

A B EL Y ()
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd)

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards (Cont'd)

The following tables show, the adjustments recognised for each
individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included. As a result, the sub-totals and totals disclosed
cannot be recalculated from the numbers provided. The adjustments
are explained in more detail by standard below.

21N B HEMEENE S w

2111 EFRABIFTETER - $AERER E R 2 15
il @)

TREINTEHMREBENAE - TEXFED
WRIBENBIBEA - Btk - PTG
AR EERIBEIA T2 B FERS
B - HERABRERXPRELETT Bt
BEVEAA

31 December
2017 1 January
As originally 2018
presented IFRS 9 IFRS 15 Restated
—tF —E-N\f
TZA=+t—0 BERUKRE BEREBRE -A—H
514 AR 955 RER
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) & EE & E & (Hi5%) RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT AR¥ETR
Current assets i) & &
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
AR EBEFERHEHF ARG RENEREE - 228,135 - 228,135
Trade and bills receivables IR A R Z 45 228,135 (228,135) = -
Non-current assets FJEREN B =
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
NAABEGFERAEHH AR MGE RENEREE - 12,804 - 12,804
Available-for-sale financial assets A] i &£ R & & 12,804 (12,804) - =
Current liabilities SR 2N 8 (&
Advances from customers T8 1K 8 4,607 = (4,607) =
Contract liabilities & A& & - - 4607 4,607
Equity #Ezs
Reserves ff&
Available-for-sale financial assets reserve AI it HE & BB E B LA 498 (498) = =
Financial assets at FVOC! reserve & Bl & EE B A 41 498 - 498
Other reserves E A 3535338 - - 3,535,338

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

BRI

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

U BARE HE ()

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd)

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards (Cont’d)

(a)  Impactof adopting IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. The new accounting policies
are set out in Note 2.12 below. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in IFRS 9, comparative figures have not been restated. The
impact is set as below:

(i) Classification and measurement

The Group elected to present the changes in the fair value of its equity
investments previously classified as available-for-sale financial assets in
other comprehensive income (“OCI"), because these investments are
held as long-term strategic investments that are not expected to be
sold in the short to medium term. As a result, assets with a fair value of
RMB12,804,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets
to financial assets at FVOCI and fair value gains of RMB498,000 were
reclassified from the available-for-sale financial assets reserve to the
financial assets at FVOCl reserve on 1 January 2018

The Group reclassified part of the bills receivables to financial assets at
FVOCI, because the Group endorses a portion of bank’s acceptance
bills according to its daily fund management needs. The Group's
business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling of these assets. On 1 January 2018, assets of
RMB228,135,000 were reclassified from trade and bills receivables to
financial assets at FVOCI.

On the date of initial application, there is no other changes in
classification and measurement for the Group's financial instruments.
Note 11 provides details for the Group's financial instruments.

QAN EHBREMBEENE S @
2111 EFRABIFTETE R - $AERER KR 215

&7 #®)
() AR R EERFEoF < m T A
B 5 4

B PR B fssR 5 2B oS BN T BB & 51 2

AERERNCREENERBENER
’\*E\Eﬁiufi CERTEKIER SREE
BEEESHEENHEBATE - K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —

& PF B i R B EE (48)

E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

BT BRI Z @

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

A B EL Y ()
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd)

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards (Cont'd)

(a)  Impact of adopting IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Contd)
(i) Impairment of financial assets
The Group has the following types of financial assets that are subject to
IFRS 9's new expected credit loss model:

trade and bills receivables,

amounts due from related parties (excluding prepayments),

other financial assets at amortised cost, and

bills receivables at FVOCI.
The Group was required to revise its impairment methodology under
IFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets. The impact of the change in
impairment methodology on the Group's retained earnings and equity
was immaterial. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the allowance.
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment

requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Besides, other receivables were previously presented together with
prepayments and other current assets but are now presented as other
financial assets at amortised cost in the balance sheet, to reflect their
different nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

B2 ORI w0

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

U BARE HE ()

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd)

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards (Cont’d)

(b)  Impactof adopting IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

IFRS 15 replaces the provisions of IAS 18, IAS 11 and their related
interpretations. The Group has chosen the modified retrospective
approach to adopt the new standard and has not restated
comparatives for the corresponding period of 2017. The adoption of
IFRS 15 did not have a material impact on the Group, no adjustments
to the amounts recognised in the financial statements as at 1 January
2018 are made.

Under IFRS 15, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised
when a customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. Receipt in advance from customers
amounting to RMB4,607,000 which were previously included in
advances from customers are now recognised as contract liabilities as
at 1 January 2018 to reflect the terminology of IFRS 15.

The other standards did not have material impact on the Group's
accounting policies and did not require retrospective adjustments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)
B R EORAH 2 @
2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)
4 R (o)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd)

21 B BENRENED @
2112 [ RERHIER - R IEET

21.12 Standards, interpretations and amendments which are not

yet effective
The following are new/revised standards, interpretations and N3 2 BM#EE] K& - RERIEE
amendments to existing standards that have been published and are  YEBI| Z{&zTHEHAEFBR —_ZE—LF— 8 —H

HZ KBNS B ARARHIET K

relevant and mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2019, but have not been early adopted by the

AREBWEIEF P -

Group.

IFRS 16 Leases!”

Bl R B 5 5 2RI 5B 16 5% HEO

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes
BB RIS 1297 (1520 FriSai ®

Amendments to IAS 19

BER &5 ERI%E 195 (1B2h)

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement®

sHElE - BIREEE "

Amendments to IAS 23
e e ERI%E 23 5% (182

Borrowing Costs!”

AR

Amendments to IAS 28
1_'\ = A /EHI %28%&(1’%3[)

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures®™

HE RS ENRER"

Amendments to IFRS 3

[RI% B 5 e 5 2R A1) 6 3 55k (&%)

Business Combination®
BEEHD

Amendments to IFRS 9
[ PR B 7 e e 42 I 28 9 5% (12 240)

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation®”

EAAmMENTANFIEFIED

Amendments to IFRS 11
B BR B RS RS 22 RIS 11 5% (1820

Joint Arrangements®

2 s

IFRIC 23
I3 B B 75 3R 45 A B R A 55 23 5%

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments!”

PG B 32 B N HERE 1 O

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
R & 2RSS 157 AN S 857 (B2

Definition of Material?

BEAHERE?

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

BT ERE 2 BOIE2RE 2018

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

FIR5ERE 2 B 1218 20189

Amendments to IFRS 3

Definition of a Business?

I B B 75 R A5 2 R 56 3 5% (1520 PENER
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

BIBR A 5 s RS 17 5%

RBRARY

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B BR o 5 s 5 R B 56 10 5% R BIFR @ 51 R
2 285k (18240

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

BREEFRHEBEXSLEENEEHERIRAY
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Notes to the (:onsolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTp)
B RHBORA 2 @

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

U BARE HE ()

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd) 2112 EMBENEE @)
21.12 Standards, interpretations and amendments which are not 2112 (SR EXBIER] - BEFERASET ()
yet effective (Cont'd)

0 Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019
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(
@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 @ N-ZE-_EF—F—HkZBHB @R AR
e Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 @) R —F— f— B2 &R AR £
@ No mandatory effective date yet determined @ 1) 2 B 7E 5 ] A2 2% B B

- IFRS 16 “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, recognition
and measurement of leases and establishes principles for
reporting useful information to users of financial statements
about the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors.

The Group is a lessee of various properties which are currently
classified as operating leases. The current accounting policy of
such leases and the Group's future operating lease commitments
are set out in Note 2.26 and Note 36(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

IFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting treatment of
leases and will no longer allow lessees to recognise certain leases
outside the consolidated balance sheet in the future. Instead,
when the Group is the lessee, almost all leases must be
recognised in the form of an asset (for the right-of-use) and a
financial liability (for the payment obligation). The new standard
will therefore result in an increase in assets and financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet to the Group upon initial
adoption. As for the financial impact in the consolidated income
statement, rental expenses will be replaced with straight-line
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset and interest
expenses on the lease liability. The combination of the straight-
line depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the effective
interest rate method applied to the lease liability will result in a
higher total charge to the consolidated income statement in the
initial years of the lease, and a lower total charge during the
latter part of the lease term.
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The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption AREEBERFTEME T —NE—A
date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified — BIKAZER - KNEFH ﬂ LA S
transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts EEFE THERER E—FEHEH
for the year prior to first adoption. e RBEITEI o

There are no other new standards, interpretations or amendments to Y3 E i R A R H E =T 2B - fRE R 2R
existing standards that are not yet effective and would be expected to 7 (&3] @ ¥ E B E S RISk R R HEEARNIA &

have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting ¥ RA]FE RAOARRLZ FEA B AT E o
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —
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E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

T EBOR R @)
2.2 Subsidiaries

Fow
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(a) Merger accounting for common control combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statements include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party, whichever is shorter.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs of
furnishing information to shareholders, costs or losses incurred in
combining operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination that is to be
accounted for by using merger accounting is recognised as an expense
in the year in which itis incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

B2 ORI w0

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
F 4] ()

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(b) Acquisition method for business combinations other than
common control combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations other than common control combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date, any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in through
profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group'’s
accounting policies.

2216 6tRE @)
(b) FE[E—##H T EBEEGEE 7

AEBANAEE AR IER — 26 N EHE 6
AR - BE—TARMERNEE S8
BREE HEUBIOIMNAMEAELENE
B RASERITHRAESEH R TEE-
BRI BB HERMELINET
MEEMBENRREE - EXBaHFF
BERARRNEENARAZENBBERNKA
BE BAARSIREEAHNATEER

=
s

AEBRERWBELE BREREE TH
EAAIIEAE B LM 2R o 8 B 5 /O FEHR Il 1E 4
aRRENREMAEED  YHTHEA
—BEREREPIEREIBNFEE @ Al
N EEIIREREA A ERRES W
AR FEENERSELAIMETE -
FEFR I MR s 1O P B B b ABRK BE D 3R M e B
HIN AT BENE - FRIFBIRM B R E R
MEMBAEMTEREESE -

BEMEBNAEELRH -

MEBEHORBETT - WETT 2 AT ERK
BhRAa BB BNEEE  RIE
AHMARBEENE  EMFTEELEN
I BEERET R

PREg {8 - s 0 O] SRIE il 1 E i an
AR REWKET < EREREWEE
A EE  BABARHRFIEELAR
BEMNBERLREE - MATERYE - #
R B (o] FEFE I MR 2 N 2 BB MO BE s At
B ERBAFRBRFEENREE B
% B E AN ER D HER -

SEARRCHNRS  BHIZXFHRE
MG T A « RERIBRITT ALH -
BRERZREEMEREENRBERE - 72
AIRERBRRECIZE B EHNE - ARERE
AREEFRANBR—2 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —
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E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

BT BRI Z @

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

F 4 ] (1)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(c) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiaries in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Associates
s 3

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

B2 ORI w0

2.3 Associates (Cont'd)
W48 A 3 )

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit/
losses of investments accounted for using the equity method” in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised in the
Group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised
in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

B R EURH 2 w0

2.4 Joint arrangements
GE-£3:0

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under [FRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference
between the cost of the joint venture and the Group's share of the net
fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in joint ventures are
stated at cost less provision for any impairment losses. Income from
joint ventures is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

In the Company’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investments
in joint ventures is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the joint venture in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

B2 ORI w0

2.5 Segment reporting

43 BB e
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Directors in the Board of Directors that makes
strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

b B

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group'’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the income statement, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income
statement on a net basis within “Finance income/costs, net".

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as FVOCI, are included in other comprehensive
income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

B R EURH 2 w0

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

A s B B (o)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights

L e e 3 5 ) HE

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents consideration
paid for the rights to use the land for periods varying from 10 to 50
years. Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights are calculated
on a straight-line basis over the period of the leasehold land and land
use rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

R EURHE @
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

bo B B ~ W55 B i

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold
land held under finance lease and all other property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land held under finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Depreciation on leasehold land held under finance lease
and other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings and leasehold land held under 8-50 years
finance lease

Equipment and machinery 3-15 years

Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Office equipment 2.5-15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

R EURHE @
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

5o B B SEEY ~ W 5s B i )

Construction in progress (“CIP") represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less any recognised impairment losses. Cost includes the
costs of construction of property, plant and equipment, and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

2.9 Research and development costs

Wk 5 A b 5% # A

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred in development projects (relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when it
is probable that the project will be successful considering its
commercial and technical feasibility and its costs can be measured
reliably. Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as expenses are not recognised as assets in subsequent
periods. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis over its useful life, not exceeding five years; and
tested for impairment according to Note 2.11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

R EURHE @
2.10 Intangible assets

WL E E
(@) Goodwil

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwiill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.

(b) Contractual customer relationships and other intangible
assets

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The contractual
customer relations have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method by ten years over the expected life of the
contractual customer relationships.

There are two types of other intangible assets: management contract
and exclusive supply contract. These intangible assets acquired have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over their
expected useful lives.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

T EBOR R @)
2.10 Intangible assets (Cont'd)

B & PE ()

(c) Patented technology, trademark licence and computer
software

Costs associated with maintaining patented technology, trademark
licence and computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable
to the design and testing of identifiable and unique patented
technology, trademark licence and software products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria
are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the product so that it will be
available for use;

management intends to complete the product and use or sell it;
there is an ability to use or sell the product;

it can be demonstrated how the product will generate probable
future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the product are available;
and

the expenditure attributable to the product during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the patented
technology, trademark licence and software product include the
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

Patented technology, trademark licence and computer software
development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed ten years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

B2 ORI w0

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

b <o bl 1 AR

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.12 Financial assets
4 &
(a) Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
Odl, or through profit or loss), and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

B R EURH 2 w0

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

4 b B ()

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “Other gains/losses, net”. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

BRI

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

4> b B ()

(c) Measurement (Cont'd)
Debt instruments (Cont'd)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other gains when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —

& PF B i R B EE (48)

E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

BT BRI Z @

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

4 b B ()

(d) Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
The details of impairment methodology refer to Note 3.1(b).

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to
restate comparative information. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group's previous accounting policy.

Classification

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise “trade and bill receivables”,
due from related parties”, “short-term bank deposits” and “cash and
cash equivalents” in the balance sheet (Notes 2.15 and 2.16).

“amounts

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

BRI

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

4> b B ()

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Cont’d)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at FVPL. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the income statement as “Other gains/losses, net”.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement as part of other gains when the Group's right to
receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

B R EURH 2 w0

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

4 b B ()

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Cont’d)

Impairment
(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

B2 ORI w0

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

4> b B ()

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Cont’d)

Impairment (Cont'd)
(i) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is reclassified from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

ke & TR

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.14 Inventories

E

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated cost to completion and applicable variable selling
expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

HEEFTEUORTE @
2.15 Trade receivables

B W e ik

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. They are
generally due for settlement within 120 days and therefore are all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 3.1(b) for
a description of the Group's impairment policies.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

e kBlE&EHEY

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

2.17 Share capital

Jie A

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade payables

JEAoF ke sk

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

BRI

2.19 Borrowings

,fji:if

H
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.20 Borrowing costs

fif sk AR

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

B ) B I S P A5 A

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

B R EURH 2 w0

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Contd)

) B R A B 45 B ()
(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

B ORI w0

2.22 Employee benefits

% 4
(@) Short-term compensation

Short-term compensation includes salaries, bonuses, allowances and
subsidies, staff welfare etc. When an employee has rendered service to
the Group during the reporting period, the Group shall recognise the
short-term compensation actually incurred as a liability and charge to
the cost of an asset or to profit or loss in the same period.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined contribution plans in
the PRC and Hong Kong. The pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and relevant group companies. The Group
pays contributions to the pension plans which are calculated as a
certain percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to make further
payments once the required contributions have been paid, even if the
plans do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(c) Other employee benefits

Other employee benefits include termination benefits which are
payable whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

(a) JEHA%EA

RHFMERTE 8B FRMMRL - B
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(b) BAZEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

A R B 3R B AR (A
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

== /%
B 5 BUR T @
2.23 Provision
e
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the

amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

LN 3

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer.

(i) Sale of goods — wholesale

The Group manufactures and sells a range of healthcare products and
Chinese medicines to wholesalers. Sales are recognised when control
of the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the wholesaler's acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

EAKERCBRENSHEMELRBAERE
HIETEERS - RATGEF BB BIRAM H AL
BER heBOEA SR SBAE
o BEAKETE ARG L BRERER -
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EHERAMRAMNRIRBBRFEEARRES
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KRREMEGREFESRRAOTE - B3
RREEEME M EERRA/MERH -

t /

AEEEERIBBNEFREERER
P iR BB AR R RERIA

() EBWHEE—#t*%

7N S 1B A E AP R E o AR 62 m O 3 R ER A 8
B EEREHECEE ERS XN T
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HEWA - EEMCEZEEME - BEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

BRI BURTHE @
2.24 Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

WA T 32 )
(i) Sale of goods — wholesale (Cont'd)

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in
the contract, net of the estimated discounts. And revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

(ii) Sale of goods — retail

The Group also sells products to individual customers through its retail
outlets. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer.

For retail sales, the Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling
products. Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity sells a
product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately. Retail sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

(iii) Advertising service

Revenue from providing advertising services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided
to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services
to be provided, because the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously. This is determined based on the stage of completion
of service according to contractual agreement or by the reference to
the percentage of completion method. Under this method, the
percentage of completion is identified with proportion of incurred
contract costs to estimated total cost. Advertising services have been
completed within the reporting period.

(i) EYHEE —#tZEw
HERARRES RO ENERINBRMEETH
WHEER - TAEERAETSHLEEK
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FEPRK -

(i) EHHE— B
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(iii) FER%E

RHE SRR AR IR IR R & 5 HIAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contp)

B R EURH 2 w0

2.24 Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Be A T 52 (a0)
(iv) Service income

The Group provides Chinese medical consultation and treatments in
retail outlets. Service income is recognised over-time in which the
service is provided to the customer and it is settled in cash or by credit
card.

(v) Royalty fee income

Royalty fee income is based on pre-determined rates on the total
turnover of overseas entities for them to use the “Tong Ren Tang”
brand name. Royalty fee is recognised on an accrual basis upon sales
recognised by the overseas entities.

(vi) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.

2.25 Interest income

AEBA

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (2017 — loans
and receivables) calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of finance
income, net.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes, see Note
24 below. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

(iv) BRIEWA

AEERETERNHREHRTEDE - RIBK
@R AEFREERGN S HRER - AR
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(v) mEEAERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

T EBOREE @)
2.26 Leases

il

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Ji& 8. 43 Uk
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.

2.28 Government grants

B i Bh

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
income statement over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income
— government grants and are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

ANFE S PR HE RO B A B0 0 LB A R B e AR
ARE - DREARENE °$EH§%§§§%BT?§E
B9 5038 ($1F% B A A YER B o] BB 1R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
B J g i P

3.1 Financial risk factors

S 5 Dl o PR %

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management of each individual entity
within the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and foreign exchange risk arises
from commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations, primarily with respect to the Hong
Kong dollar (‘HKD").

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

If the respective functional currency of the Group’s entities had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against the relevant foreign currencies,
with all other variables held constant, the profit before income tax for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 would increase/decrease
as follows:

& PF B i R B EE (48)

E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

REENERHAREZRRNUBERR - 5
[\ B (B2 ¥R SN L B Ko | R [l B ) ~ 15 FR LB
//HJ@J Eﬂ fa o $‘§IE’J B AL »AAEEE;:JFEU

BER BT 5 8 R FEBIE - ﬁAﬁi

m&ﬂ$%lﬁﬁﬁﬁm%ETﬂ%%

REERASENGEER maﬁﬁamo

(a) TiEE
(i) SMERER

AEEE2RBEARRERLE - JMER
RAEBESHER CEEIVNEENBEAR
BINEEFRE BB -

RE BB R EETINEEIPBR - NEH
ERBBTVIRIE RS RELINERLE

HAREERESENNEEE LEMINEF

B,/ B2fE5% @ MAAEMESRFTTE - A
BE_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—HR-F—+

F+-—A=+—HBIEFENBRFAEHAFE
#n, A EERN T

2018

Increase/(decrease) on
profit before income tax if
exchange rates change by

HERHRT LS

Increase/(decrease) on
profit before income tax if exchange
rates change by

fHER LR THIZE) -

BRETEB IR, (RY) Wl dIbn- VAV P!

+5% -5% +5% -59%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000

ARET T ARETL ARETTT ARETT

HKD & 30,072 (30,072) 32489 (32,489)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTp)
A5 J g 7 L )

3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)

S0 5 B R & ()
(@) Marketrisk (Cont'd)
(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The interest rates and repayment terms of the Group's
borrowings are disclosed in Note 20. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, most of the non-current borrowings were at fixed interest rates
and the operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The current debt level of the Group is relatively
low and the exposure to the fair value interest rate risk is limited.

The management of the Group monitors the interest rate exposure
regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

(b) Creditrisk
(i)  Risk Management

Credit risk is managed on group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as
well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits are deposited with high-
credit-quality financial institutions. The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any financial institution. As at 31
December 2018, majority of the bank deposits are placed with state-
owned banks and listed financial institutions, which are at lower credit
risk.

(a) THiEEBS @
(i) FIEE Bz
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTp)
A5 JE B 7 2

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

S0 5 LB R & ()
(b) Creditrisk (Cont'd)

(i)  Risk Management (Cont'd)

& PF B i R B EE (48)

HE—ZFT—\F+_A=1+—HIFE

(b) 15 FAE B )
(i) EBEREEm®m

As at 31 December
W+=BA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARET T

State-owned banks and listed financial institutions B4 $R17 & 4 RIS 2,953,744 2,959,979

Other banks H At #R17 486,818 110,041
Total cash at bank and short-term bank deposits (Note 33(b))

RITVE AT SR R 2 BRER 1T 30 (P 5 33(b)) 3,440,562 3,070,020

(ii)  Impairment of financial assets
Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables.

Based on shared credit risk characteristics, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the expected loss rates are based on the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

Amounts due from related parties (excluding prepayments)

Amounts due from related parties (excluding prepayments) include
trade receivables and other receivables. The Group applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
trade receivables. For other receivables, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month expected credit losses unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial assets since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(i) THEEHE
JEUBR R 215

7R S B BR R B R B 7 e i R RIS 9 S O RS AL
AR ERMERBL - YA BUERK
KEBEREETERNBIRREE -

WRMERNEREREE  WEBEENE
BEEHRURREMARRBEZE ETHETTRT
o BERERELEFNGE  BHERBRLEX

RERHENBERELERBRREE - &
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FRYGEEE NN E R MATE L RBREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contp)

A5 J g 7 L )

3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)

S 5 JRL B AL 3R (00
(b) Credit risk (Cont'd)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month expected credit losses unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial assets since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Bill receivables at FVOC/

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for bills receivables at FVOCI.

Financial assets at FVPL

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in relation to wealth
management products that are measured at FVPL. The maximum
exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of
these investments (RMB29,000,000; 2017 — nil).

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
or have available funding through adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its working capital requirements. The amounts
of borrowings and undrawn credit facilities at the balance sheet date
are disclosed in Note 20 and Note 35 respectively.

Trade and bills payables, amounts due to related parties and other
payables are normally expected to be settled within one year after
receipt of goods or services, while generally no specific credit period is
granted by the suppliers.

(b) 15 FREBS @
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contp)

S 165 JE g 7 B a0
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)
S 5 B Bt R 3K ()
(c) Liquidity risk (cont'd) (c) FRENEREE @
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant  TNREERAEBE NS R AE - IREBHEBENE

maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance  BAZHB| - RIEHEEBEXRBEZARF|HH

sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in ~ BRI e4EAMEIT O - ERANIEEN S B A
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. RN ERIRERE ©

Over 1year Over 2 years
but within but within
Within 1 year 2 years 5 years Over 5 years

—E0R -FERE  WFELF RENE
RMB(000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARBTE  ARETRT  ARETR

WbV —F

At31December 2018 —E—-N\E+-A=+—H

Borrowings & 229,298 30,221 833,095 93,289 171
Trade and bills payables & BR 7 % Z 1% 665,038 - - =
Amounts due to related parties &<t BES 2 7] 208 82,332 = = =
Other payables E A fE 5% 228,881 - - =
1,205,549 30,221 833,095 93,289

At31December2017 —E—+F+=-f=+—H

Borrowings f& 3% 238,856 30,117 863,191 92,997
Trade and bills payables FE{F Bk A% Z i 698415 = = =
Amounts due to related parties &1 BAE% 23 7] 08 60,042 - = =
Other payables E A fEF5k 156,665 - - =

1,153,978 30,117 863,191 92,997

[ 73 B & 3R R )R

WV WV WV WV VUV VUV VUV VUV VYV YV V VYV V V.V

Except for the bonds included in borrowings, the carrying amounts of ~ BRIEKF B A RIESIN  KEBHN SR AR
the Group’'s financial liabilities approximate their fair values as the E’]E\Eﬁ{,ﬁi@ APUEAREE BRFEST
impact of discounting is not significant. EKX o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contp)

A5 J g 7 L )

3.2 Capital risk management

¥ <o Jml o A L

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, provide returns
for shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to repay borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity. Total
borrowings included “current and non-current borrowings” as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet. Total equity was shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

AEENESEERE  BREASERE
BEE  URIREREM @#&ﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁé\ Fr
BARBMNRERBEER  RARESRENERN
REBLARE E 2 B ©

RTHEBRFABENGEE  AEEAEE
BN FRERO R A SR - ﬁﬂx%;&i@/
R BT SH EEENRRETR -

$’%l%‘ﬁ’%ﬁtt$%£%%ﬁiéfzﬁ It b R iz

RS TRARFERR A SR A R - RN E

?i-?/\fﬁéfiz%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂé’] Fﬁ%ﬁ&#ﬁ@ﬂ%
R BEBBE/EHEEREBRMAS -

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H

Total borrowings & FX #4858
Total equity HEz= 858
Gearing ratio & f& £k &

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTIT
1,111,477 1,125,280
7,276,849 6,459,542
15.3% 17.4%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTp)
A5 J g 7 P )

3.3 Fair value estimation

o e fE AR At

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, short-
term bank deposits, receivables and FVOCI. Financial liabilities include
payables, short-term borrowings and long-term borrowings. Except for
long-term borrowings, the carrying amount of the financial assets and
financial liabilities approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

Below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Details on the fair value measurement for bonds, FVOCI and FVPL are
set out in Note 20(b), Note 12 and Note 13 respectively.

AEEEHEENTAERERS LIRSS
BY  EHRTHER  BRRERARRE
BEfERAEEHAAHMEARENERE
EG-MeMAEeREMNRE  EHERN
RHIER - REPEFIN AEENEHE
ENTHEEHNEIRAGEE - Btk
HEEEHEE QT EEMELT -

AT RIBAE s HE A 7t B E M S ERM T A&
RANBANER DT AKEZAALEE
ARSI A - GLBARBAAEEE
RFEBERIMTN=E -

MREES S BEEET S0 RE R
G (E1E) -

BRTHRIERMBREOREIN  ZEEM
BENAERNEMEA - AISEE(H]
pIanE) sk (BNRE B18) (5B2/E) -

BEMBELIFMREATBRETSEEN
@A BISEATERBA) (F3E)

B%  UARBETEBEHEEH:TAELMELE
ABRFENERMEENMUARBESTEAHSE
i A BN EeREENAABEFES R
EHIPAMIFE 20(b) « MIRE 12 FIBFEE13 ©

WbV —F
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A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

B g ey w Al R B A
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

A 52 Bl 52 Bl HE

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to completion and
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in consumer preferences and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimations by
each balance sheet date.

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

<8 bl DAL

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used
are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

(iii) Income taxes
B i3 Bt

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

T2 B R S A AIRIBB R
AL B R (T HE - RIEEE IR TR
SAEVS TS SV TR

AEBERKIEL B MER - FAIBNE

EETIAEEE  ROSEAERA §E$Hﬁﬂ°
RAMSER NMEAMBFENEEMNREDN
RREE(EL ERTHEM G MRRTm T

FEMNAERFENRENBERBBRESD
Mt EE  RAF ERORANREEE

A o ZFMETTIER B AT 5R N Kk Bl
HERBEMNEER - BrREERREE
BN E N ﬁ%ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%%%
MERMEITEHRERE L - EREREE
SEtFEAEE B EMN AR S M

T RVE E B A B E R EN Y E QR R A TE
BARAERNBREMAER - AEBEBEMEBR
MRBAENEAGE  BERAEEUTE
5 - MAMBIKEUARRSREBHROATIE
M ETHETT I - $%@%ﬁmm%ﬁﬁm
M AMBEFBHENHIFES b

ZXEEIIHEEE%E;y B RDERE R BTSN - &
EEHAEHBER  FEELEAH

% BREZR M EITE M RE B E

EMETHEEN - ARBERBEYEEF B!

NEEINE KGR - RIBAR S ET R A i
REME - M FEHFNFERBRRERY)

TR U5 EEHERTEFRLE
EEHRNEREEMEHREENRE -
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Jr s B
The Directors in the Board of Directors are the Group’s chief operating
decision-maker. Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the Directors in the Board of
Directors for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Directors in the Board of Directors consider the business from an
operational entity perspective. Generally, the Directors in the Board of
Directors consider the performance of business of each entity within
the Group separately. Thus, each entity within the Group is an
operating segment.

The reportable operating segments derive their revenue primarily from
(i) the manufacture and sale of Chinese medicine of the Company in
Mainland China (the “Company” Segment), and (i) Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of
Chinese medicine products and healthcare products, and provision of
Chinese medical consultation and treatments outside Mainland China
and wholesale of healthcare products in Mainland China (“Tong Ren
Tang Chinese Medicine” Segment).

Other companies are engaged in processing and purchasing of
Chinese medicinal raw materials, sales of medicinal products, medical
services and advertising, etc. They do not form separate reportable
segments as they do not meet the quantitative thresholds required by
IFRS 8.

The Directors in the Board of Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on revenue and profit after income tax of
each segment.

A F B R I aE (AR
T \FT=AZ+—ALFE

EXECESERAKRENIERRE - EHE

E*ETE?%%i%A%$%ﬁﬁHE"ﬁ@ﬂ’éﬁ;ﬁﬂ]ﬁ
ERROBEBEELEDE -

ESCESNELEERARMERHINON -
—RNE EFCEFEREREEANSE

BEBHRR - A SEASEERHZE—
BELEDER -

BELEDHNKRAERRAR : )ARE
FE 7P Bl A 1t B4 0 55 6 P B Euu((zli’D\TJ

2ER) (i) F= 2 B BB IME S P BEE LM
REGNLE TERBBIREPEDE

ARG - EAMEE R ER((R-EZB%]) »
#B) o

EIﬁﬂ“ﬂ?ﬁé%EFﬂﬂI&Hﬁl%ﬂP AN Bhfn
HE  BERBVNESEEXER AR TFE
Ef%ﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁr&ﬂ’]%{g?ﬁ?%%
Ko AMAMEREBNREDE -

EXZeEERBRANBRMNBFESLE
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTD)
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The segment information provided to the Directors in the Board of HE—_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HLEFE ' ©
Directors for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December e /E\ ﬁ ERHEEARE DB D BE R
2018 s as follows: T
Tong Ren
z Tang Chinese All other
< The Company Medicine Segments Total
= NG BEEEE HtXBIH st
g RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
= ARBTFR  ARETR  ARETT  ARMTR
(=%
- Segment revenue 73 Z A 3,215,806 1,284,474 1,051,793 5,552,073
= Inter-segment revenue 7 2B & 1A (33,987) - (458,448) (492,435)
z
z Revenue from external customers 2 B JM & = AU A 3,181,819 1,284,474 593,345 5,059,638
Timing of revenue recognition M A BEZR £
Ata point in time 7£ 3 — B 2 HER2 3,181,819 1,231,679 550,264 4,963,762
Over time 7E £ —F R MR = 52,795 43,081 95,876
3,181,819 1,284,474 593,345 5,059,638
Profit for the year FEFE 459,353 509,080 37,420 1,005,853
4 - Interest income A 24 10,016 20,505 1,285 31,806
) I Interest expense | 237 i (12,082) (16) (2,866) (14,964)
4 s Depreciation of property, plant and equipment B/Z Ri25Y) « BiE Rk EiTE (33,071) (20,103) (22,663) (75,837)
} O Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments 87 48 & 14 78 & SRR % 84 (1,901) (459) (1,271) (3,631)
Tl - Amortisation of other long-term assets s 5= H3 2 2 # 84 (1,171) (5,552) (2,243) (8,966)
} = Provision for impairment of inventories 77 & B (B & &2 (26,525) (1,204) (16,521) (44,250)
S Provision for impairment of receivables Sk & &5t 17 (2,213) - (3,842) (6,055)
‘ fj Share of income/(losses) of investments accounted for using the equity method
> E EHERERFARNRENYE /(BB HE 276 (414) - (138)
4 z Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation
} 5 of ajoint venture
4E AERERETBE R ELE - (1,442) - (1,442)
} a Income tax expense P57 2 A (89,068) (101,233) (10,916) (201,217)
&}
4 z
) B Segment assets and liabilities 7 S8 EEME &
}‘ E Total assets & & 5,116,939 2,782,233 1,870,694 9,769,866
(=4
U LWL s,
}4 z Investments accounted for using the equity method &z % ABR 1% & 8,787 17,682 = 26,469
o
4E
} Additions to non-current assets!” JE 7 B & 2 Ry 32 AN 182,720 45,063 223,423 451,206
2 Totalliabilities £ 8 {& 1,846,590 126,454 519,973 2,493,017
} 0 Excluding investments accounted for using the equity method, financial T’@\Tﬁﬁ%ﬁ?’i?i?\ﬁﬁﬁ'\]&ﬁ - BT AFNIEEFT
}{ instruments and deferred tax assets. BREE -
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTD)

435k A5 B

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as

(BTt F+ - A=+—HIEFENS

follows: T:‘Béfﬂﬁﬂ—r :
Tong Ren
Tang Chinese All other
The Company Medicine Segments

VAN : Hn %70 2 +

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ST AREFTT ARETT
Segment revenue 7 S84 A 3,502,167 1,097,432 978,922 5,578,521 f#
Inter-segment revenue 7 2B & 1A (46,838) (416) (506,084) (553,338) |
Revenue from external customers 2k B SMEB R F RIIA 3,455,329 1,097,016 472838 5025,183 ®
#
Timing of revenue recognition Y A =2 #) B i =

Ata pointin time 7E 3 — B B FER 3,455,329 1,055,421 43499 4,945,746

Over time £ —FF R N EER - 41,59 37,842 79437

3,455,329 1,097,016 472,838 5,025,183 1 77

Profit for the year & & 174 434872 437,267 97753 969,892

Interest income F| A 11,706 10946 1136 23,788
Interest expense 1 8.3 (15571) (28) (6,086) (21,685) o
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment & R i25Y) - BiE Kk BT E (34,059) (20892) (22,336) (77,287) S
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments T {45 4 1 78 & FUE Bk 4 (1,908) (469) (1,037) (3414) E
Amortisation of other long-term assets -t & 218 E 1 34 (880) (2,116) (1,792) (4788) 1)
Provision for impairment of inventories 77 & kB & &1 (29661) (452) = (30,113) E—
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment of receivables 2Bk 582 [E /(5112 4601 = (3174) 1427 ;
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment @
FEREEY - BELREHERK - (5783) - (5783) -
Share of income/(losses) of investments accounted for using the equity method =
THEREREARNREN KSR/ (BB HE 132 (36) - % S
Income tax expense P15 2 (92,035) (91218) (13,079) (196,332) af
=
Segment assets and liabilities 2 S5 & E M & f& ZT

Total assets & & 4,913,102 2,307,988 1,654,567 8,875,657

Investments accounted for using the equity method & #)% A SR A9 E 10,480 17,359 - 27839

Additions to non-current assets” FEi &) & EE K& 01 165,788 29,647 241,348 436,783

Total liabilities £ 8 & 1731427 123,269 561419 2416,115

0 Excluding investments accounted for using the equity method, financial TEEEEDEARNIEE ot TAFELER
instruments and deferred tax assets. SMEE -

WV WV WV WV VUV VUV VUV VUV VYV YV V VYV V V.V
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTD)

43 uRkAE B

Sales between segments are carried out at arm'’s length. The revenue
from external parties reported to the Directors in the Board of Directors
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the income statement.

The amounts provided to the Directors in the Board of Directors with
respect to total assets and liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These assets are
allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical
location of the asset.

Revenues from external customers are derived from the sales of
medicine and provision of services. The breakdown of sales of medicine
by region is provided in Note 23.

The total of the non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets located in Mainland China is
RMB1,980,384,000 (2017: RMB1,671,368,000), and the total of these
non-current assets located in other countries and regions is
RMB346,666,000 (2017: RMB317,407,000).

During the 2018 and 2017 financial year, revenue from two customers
each accounted for ten percent or more of the Group's total external
revenue. These revenues are mainly attributable to the Company
Segment and Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Segment. The
revenues from these customers are summarised below:

DEMZENHERRBR AN R ZRAET - @
é%’.;i%iﬁ%EI’WI\E‘ISH&)\EEEWJEFQ%%WEI’\J
WA—BE B -

W%%@%%%T FHEREENBEEENS
CBRBEPBHRE —BNEESN o It
ﬁ?@?ﬁ“*ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ?ﬁfﬁgﬁ”}f@ﬁﬁ?&
TT}?@E

KEINEEE P RBATR B Zm iHE MR 12
o BniHE D RO IAM 23 R

URFERNReREENEEMGHE
EZINERDEELREAEARE
1980384000t( —Z & — £ F: AR K
1,671,368,0007T) * Az FA H b Bl X K b [ A9
WEIERBE ERTEA A AR 346,666,000
TT(ZE—+F : AR®317407,0007T) °

—E-N\FR-_BELEFRE-_BREPHK
A%1E$¢@XE9I\*B%JEE‘J BIRAB D Z
THRE - ZFBRAEZREANRAF D H A
CEBESE OKEEAZFEJEE”JHSUWEE i 40
T

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Entities under control of ultimate holding company B #%3% A% A &) Fr 28 i 79 & 82 1,119,901 962,443
Customer A Group ZF A% E 583,586 873,554
1,703,487 1,835,997
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& OF BB i R N A (A
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

6. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS
FHEE b B - Hi 7 I

The interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid ~ FH & + 3 & + i S| RTE (&L MR E
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed as ~ FRIBFMEBREEFE @ &SR0
follows:

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETIT
|l
At 1 January R—H—H 152,193 143,102 W
Additions 30 15,803 13,508 &
Amortisation # §5 & A (3,826) (3:463) _;
Disposals /& 3 (429) = =
Exchange differences [& %, = &8 629 (954) =
At31 December R+ =H=+—H 164,370 152,193
As at 31 December 2018, no (2017: no) land use rights are pledgedas MR-ZTE—N\E+-_F=+—H 8 (ZZT—+ 179
securities for the Group's bank borrowings (Note 20). F|) T FERBERRITERER (K
#£20) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
P SR SRY) ~ R DS B A

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

Buildings
and
leasehold
land held
under  Equipment
z finance and Motor Office
< lease  machinery vehicles  equipment Total
= BFRREE
= METH BETE ERIE  PRARE  EEIE =
e RMB000 RMB000 RVBI000 RVB000 RMBI000 RMBI000
= ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
—
= At1January 2017 R=B—-tF-A -8
z Cost FR AR 685,285 581,058 34927 52,995 645848 2,000,113
< Accumulated depreciation Z5H17TE (203319 (353,137) (23383) (33861) = (613,700)
Accumulated impairment Ji B2/ = (12.244) = = = (12244)
Net book amount BRI /E{E 481966 215677 11,544 19,134 645848 1374169
180 Year ended 31 December 2017 52 -5 —tE+-A=+—-HILEE
Opening net book amount EA¥NER H 3 & 481966 215677 11,544 19,134 645848 1374169
Additions 3% 11 20,525 6,167 889 5,054 362,65 395,291
Transferred from CIP 2 T 128 A 119 13479 2241 1730 (17,569)
° Disposals /& 2 7 (889) (177) (167) = (1239)
- Depreciation 7% (26,962) (38.951) (3669) (7,705) - (77.287)
Impairment J5{& (5157) = = (626) - (5783)
Exchange differences [ 5, % &8 (10,175) (601) (36) (42) = (10854)
Closing net book amount HiKBR BB (& 460309 194,883 10,792 17378 990935 1674297

At31December2017 A=E—+&+-f=+—H

Cost AR 689,977 582,235 34937 57,804 990935 2355888
Accumulated depreciation 251 E (224626)  (375509) (24,145) (39,805) = (664,085)
Accumulated impairment il B 245 (5,042) (11,843) = (621) = (17.506)
Net book amount BRI (& 460,309 194,883 10,792 17378 990,935 1,674,297

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contn)
P SR ERY) ~ DS B A

Buildings
and
leasehold
land held
under Equipment
finance and Motor Office
lease  machinery vehicles equipment cp Total
BFRRE
HELH HERE EBRIE BLRE EERIB Bt
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 i%i
ARBTL ARMTR ARETL ARMTT ARMTT AR®TR [
Year ended 31 December 2018 EZ—E—\E+-A=t—HILEFE ;
Opening net book amount 2318k A & 460,309 194,883 10,792 17,378 990,935 1,674,297 =
Additions 31 36,540 4,857 762 9111 374535 425805 =
Transferred from CIP ZEEE T128 A 7,513 15,548 1,297 1,218 (25,576) -
Disposals /5 2 (615) (1,235) (120) (112) - (2,082)
Depreciation #1& (26,247) (37,831) (3,405) (8,354) - (75,837)
Exchange differences [ i, Z %8 6,431 429 - 140 = 7,000 181
Closing net book amount Hi K BR Bl /H (& 483,931 176,651 9,326 19,381 1,339,894 2,029,183

At31December2018 R=E—N\E+-f=+—-H

Cost ALK 741,935 574,715 35,381 67,827 1,339,894 2,759,752
Accumulated depreciation 51T & (252,781)  (386,036)  (26,055) (47,812 - (712,684)
Accumulated impairment JRiEE/ (5223)  (12,028) - (634) - (17,885)
Net book amount BRI/ % A 483,931 176,651 9,326 19,381 1,339,894 2,029,183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contn)
P SR ERY) ~ DS B A

Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income  ITEE&HESHAERDI|RIOT :
statements as follows:

2018 2017

s RMB’000 RMB'000
i ARMT T ARBTT
(%,

[ Cost of sales $58& FKZK 50,182 51,373
o N

5 Distribution expenses $H% & 11,199 11,338
= Administrative expenses & ¥ £ Fi 14,456 14,576
<t

=

Z

Z 75,837 77,287
<t

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
>4
|

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting  fEANFEEH - EENEEREED BN LE
to RMB19,467,000 (2017: RMB13,034,000) on qualifying assets. XK 2N A A R 19,467000 T ( =T —+4F :
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its A FE#513,034,0007T ) ° £ 3k AN 1B — A& &
182 general borrowings of 3.10% (2017: 3.08%). HEINEFE I ENE310% RETENME(Z
T—+4F 1 3.08%) °

As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowings are secured by landand R—ZZ—N\F+_A=+—H ' RITERIA

buildings with carrying amount of RMB9,562,000 (2017: RMB10,318,000)  BREIBE A R# 9,562,000 T (ZZ—+HF : A

(Note 20). R 10,318,000 7T ) By -3t SR AR FVE AR R (FfY
£20) °

LTD

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

STV Vi
Patented
technology,
Contractual trademark
customer licence and
relationships computer
Goodwill and others ET
BRI -
EF&HE BEER
BERHM STERRY &t
RMB000 RMB(000 RMB(000 A‘%‘{
ARETTL AREFTT ARETTL |
At1January 2017 R=F—+t5—-A—H _;
Cost Ak AR 47,338 31,003 11922 90,263 &
Accumulated amortisation 2 585 - (2,504) (4,974) (7478) #
Net book amount BR ELHE 47,338 28499 6,948 82,785
Yearended 31 December 2017 B#Z=F—tF+-f=+—-BLFE 183
Opening net book amount 28 #7185 I F{E 47338 28499 6,948 82,785
Additions &1 - - 1017 1017
Amortisation 255 2 F - (2.116) (1,666) (3782)
Fxchange differences [ 5, = % (2:89%) (1,655) = (4551) N }
st 4
Closing net book amount 2R BRI EE 44.44) 24728 6,299 75469 a }
<K
i
At31December 2017 =2 —+tF+=F=+-8 ™)
Cost FXA 44,40 29,118 12939 86,499 2 K]
Accumulated amortisation & 5284 - (4,390) (6,640) (11,030) g }
% }‘
Net book amount BR B $E 44,442 24,728 6,299 75,469 = 4
af
= 4
Yearended 31 December 2018 HZE—E—\E+-A=1+—HILEE P 4
Opening net book amount ZA#IER T FE 44,442 24,728 6,299 75,469 & }
Additions 1 - - 3,008 3,008 4
Amortisation B4 A - (5,552) (1,963) (7,515) >
Exchange differences [ 5, = 8 1,992 1,036 = 3,028 }4
Closing net book amount H R AR (& 46,434 20,212 7,344 73,990 }4
At31December 2018 R=E—\F+=A=1+—H }
Cost F AR 46,434 30,583 15,947 92,964 {
Accumulated amortisation £ 1 85 - (10,371) (8,603) (18,974) }4
Net book amount BRI & 46,434 20,212 7,344 73,990 h
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (conTD)
T E 2 )

The goodwill acquired in the acquisitions of Honour Essence and Tong
Ren Tang Chengdu during 2015 is allocated to each unit respectively.
The recoverable amounts of these CGUs are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using estimated growth rates of 3% and 0% for Honour Essence and
Tong Ren Tang Chengdu respectively. Other key assumptions used for
value-in-use calculations include 16% (2017: 16%) and 12% (2017: 12%)
discount rates applied to the cash flow projections of Honour Essence
and Tong Ren Tang Chengdu respectively.

Management determined annual volume growth rate covering over
the five-year forecast period to be a key assumption. The volume of
sales in each period is the main driver for revenue and costs. The
annual volume growth rates are based on past performance and
management'’s expectations of market development. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
business.

Amortisation expenses were charged to the consolidated income
statements under administrative expenses.

9.  SUBSIDIARIES
R R/NEiDE gy

Material non-controlling interests

K 8 I 25 P A i

As at 31 December 2018, the total non-controlling interest is
RMB1,960,197,000 (2017: RMB1,642,922,000), of which
RMB1,681,109,000 (2017: RMB1,387,286,000) is for Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine. The non-controlling interest in respect of others is
not material.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Tong Ren
Tang Chinese Medicine that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group.

B -—hFWBEARZESNMELCEKHE
FEEesRoRESEBREELET -
fﬁi?ﬁ Br ke EREFEREE

cHEFAFABRSREEL - KIEEE
Ttﬂ‘?ﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁg o KRB SHMECT
EREBBZAFTHNRESRED BIFA 3%
K 0% B ET I REIELIEE - KRB SR

CERESEFERAEBEENTERFERANEMREE
RERREBETEReRERE BIJ 5 7l 58
16%(ZZF—+F : 16%) M 12%( ZT—+F :

12%) RIBEIR =K -

Ei@ﬁﬁmﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁggﬁﬁiﬁﬁiiﬁﬁ

— AR R - BN HERRAFKA
E’?Ex%[ibl% HEERE $ET)‘5 BER
AAMNEREEHMSERNBHAME o P
FAEBR R S AT X - I&%*HE@TT%E@

FrE R o

BEERESMNBERANATEER -

‘<—==—/\¢+—ﬂ +—HB - JEFE I

TwH B A AR 1960,197,000 T (ZZE—+
F£: ARM16429220007T ) HA AR
1,681,109000c( — & — £ F: AR ¥
1,387,286,0007T) BRE(C =% - Eih B R
R FEFEHI RS T E R ©

AT Frel M AN SR B E KA IFHE H Mt
CERENPHHERZ -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

9. SUBSIDIARIES‘(CONTD)
BT A R E @

Summarised balance sheet

o R R

& PF B i R B EE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine
B{-E B %
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Current 7 B

Assets & &= 2,410,179 1,969,017

Liabilities B f& (127,212) (123,824)
Total current net assets ;i ) /F & E 258 2,282,967 1,845,193
Non-current 3E R Bl

Assets & & 372,054 339,182

Liabilities & & (5,194) (4,200)
Total non-current net assets 3E 7 Eh/F & & 42 %8 366,860 334,982
Non-controlling interests FE12 I 14 1 2% (103,917) (96,367)
Net assets /5 & &= 2,545,910 2,083,808

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

9. SUBSIDIARIES (conTD)

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

AR HRE @
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
B Wi e 2
Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine
= F{-EE %
(=}
(]
=
(%,
2 RMB’000 RMB'000
= AR®T T ARETT
= Revenue A 1,284,474 1,097,432
>
Z
z
< Profit before income tax Br FT1S &4 811 %1 ) 610,313 528485
Income tax expense 115 & (101,233) (91,218)
Profit for the year F J& Fl|f 509,080 437,267
186 Other comprehensive income/(losses) EAthAR & Wz, (FBK) 106,914 (125,660)
Total comprehensive income 47 & W zE & &t 615,994 311,607
f Total comprehensive income allocated to non-controlling interests
- kRA WD B R I M RS 388,930 197,058
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests i% B 3% 15 F JE12 5l 14 A 25 97,303 93,108

o
o
w
m
Q
o
—
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Z
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O
m
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Q
Z
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i
Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

9. SUBSIDIARIES‘(CONTD)
BT A R E @

Summarised statement of cash flows

BHendRHzE

Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine

B{-EE%

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFTT
Cash generated from operations £& & & Z U 2| /937 & 601,795 497,420
Income tax paid 3z {5 K FT15HE (112,728) (91,611)
Net cash generated from operating activities A% ‘& & B EE 4 H) )R IR & 489,067 405,309
Net cash used in investing activities I & /& B) S M HIR € R EF 58 (506,209) (330,279)
Net cash used in financing activities 2 & /& B S HIR R = F5E (146,468) (122,724)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 38 & MR & FE WA R (163,610) (47,194)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 33 & & 38 & S B Y M) F Y5458 627,296 713415
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents
RekBoSEMELNE,(BX) 18,076 (38,925)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3R & & 3R & E B Y K F R EHAEE 481,762 627,296

The information above is the amount before inter-company [ FBIRSIEHEL AN TIBEKIEETS%E o
eliminations.

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
R I AR E

As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE TR ARETIT

Joint ventures & &> % 17,682 17,359
Associates Bt = 1> 2 8,787 10,480
26,469 27,839

The followings represent the amounts related to the joint ventures L/(TF)?%U%KE BERe N ERERNES
recognised in the consolidated income statement and the Group's LERENBEREMEGEDERABNMD
share of the commitments of the joint ventures. H o

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Share of losses for the year E{fh F E 1815 58 (414) (36)
Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation of a joint venture
BEPEBTEMBELE 2 INERRERE (1,442) =
(1,856) (36)
The Group's share of joint ventures' commitments 4555 [ fE (5 & & 1b S A& D BE 4,389 4,729
Notes: BitaE
(@  The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted (@) ~ AZERERIFETAR  ERMDLETHHRE -

market prices available for their shares.

(o)  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests inthe (b)) WEABAKERARELEEANHBAE
joint ventures.

(©  Details of the joint ventures are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated (0 A ZECENFAENEES MM BHREKM T 1H
financial statements. :'T'L/\Tﬁﬁﬁ




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staten1ents((:ont'd)

& P BB i R B GE (48

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD (conTp)
HRE AR R AR BEE

The followings represent the amounts related to associates recognised LA T FT &} 4 2K 55 B 50 & 0 51 B 3R T 2 Ay B B
in the consolidated income statement. EEBENER -

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETTT
Share of profits for the year & {4 & 7 A0 (5 &8 276 132 L
Notes: B ek

(@  The associates are private companies and there are no quoted market  (a) EtEREARIELTMATF  ERMHZBEMIHRE -
prices available for their shares.

WbV —F

(o) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in the (b)) WEABBAAREEREH abEEENNBEE -
associates.

() Details of the associates are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated () HECEMNFAEREESHTERERMT1H
financial statements. FLAHER - 1 89

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
S T H (F55805])

As at 31 December
W+=B=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTIT

Financial assets € & &

Financial assets at amortised cost SABEERAX ANt E A S R E &=

[ 73 B & 3R R )R

Trade and bills receivables fE U BR 7N & Zi& 1,048,988 1,147,894
Amounts due from related parties [i& 4% B8 8% A 51508 202,025 182,975
Other financial assets at amortised cost J«Aﬁﬁ%}ﬁﬁﬁim Lt A 53,273 -
Other current assets HAth i B) & & = 21,745
Short-term bank deposits 52 Hi$R 1777 7% 1,538,125 1,048,428
Cash and cash equivalents IR & M IR & EEW 1,904,036 2,023,561
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
NARBEFEEHRES T ABRNEREE 29,000 =
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
NAnBEFEEEEHT AR MEES KGN EREE 155,380 =
Available-for-sale financial assets A] f H & £ Bl & & = 12,804
4,930,827 4,437,407
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& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (cont)
Gl TR (B0 @

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H

\
<
\
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@ RMB’000 RMB'000

e ARBTR ARETT

= Financial liabilities £ B & (&

2

o Liabilities at amortised cost LA SRR AGT 2R B F

- Trade and bills payables &1 BR 5k & = 4% 665,038 698,415

2 Amounts due to related parties f& 1~ B8 B A &) 2 IE 82,332 60,042

z Other payables E b f& {7 53X 228,881 156,665

- Borrowings & 5K 1,111,477 1,125,280
2,087,728 2,040,402

190 12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
RIS B E R H R E 5T A HADSE & I s 1 5 il & 2
Financial assets at FVOCI comprise: UAREBEFEAEEEHT AELMERS NS

MEREERR

LTD

Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the - NEBEVETERED ol Bl =

Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise TP ER T ATERRIER F R F
in this category. These are strategic investments and the Group Ho GHSREEEBNEHBEMRSE I
considers this classification to be more relevant. BEREEREE—DBERERE

Part of bills receivable where the contractual cash flows are - ERREREEALNT BAREEEKER

solely principal and the objective of the Group’s business model ANAEFEUNRDRERRERERHERN
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 2B FEUMELE o

of these assets.

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staten1ents((:ont'd)

& P BB i R B GE (48

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (conTD) .
DA AEER = B HSE A A4 S s i & M E E @

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT

At 31 December2017 R=Z—t&+=H=+—H - _

Reclassify investments from available-for-sale to FVOCI

RAHEEREENBEURABEFIEEEZH T AR MES IR 12,804 -
Reclassify from part of bills receivables to FVOCI

R REEEESBEARABEFELEZH T AR MES K 228,135 -
At1January2018 A—ZE— N\F—H—H 240,939 =
Disposal of bills receivables &1 22 #5 g > (86,308) -
Valuation gain credited to equity W5 B st & zs 127 =
Exchange differences [& 5, Z= &8 622 =
At31December2018 R=F—N\F+=-A=+—H 155,380 -

The investments at FVOCI is denominated in HKD. The fair value is UAREBEFEEEEYT ARSI
MIEENBEIAE - AR BEEAREBAERE
BHE—EN(MFE33) °

within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

In the prior financial year, the Group had designated equity RE—FE  H§REEREITERHRSI KRR
investments as available-for-sale where management intended to hold FHERKRE  AEEHAEEERAHEE
them for the medium to long-term. IR E ©

Financial assets previously classified as available-for-sale financial assets (2017)

Z Wi o JE R T B B A R e (—F B4R

RMB'000
ARETE

At 31 December 2017 R —ZE—+F+ -8 =+—H 12,804

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
DA fefB E s B H A B at AR 5 1 & il K

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

@ RMB’000 RMB'000
2 AR® T ARET T
» Wealth management products ¥ 81 2 i 29,000 =
2
|8}
:‘ Guaranteed wealth management products held by the Group mainly ~ RE B #EHA MR FEN NS BIBIIE S - &
= with floating rates bear expected interests at approximately 3.1% per Z-_ZE—N\E+_-H=+—H I FEIKzEXK
; annum as of 31 December 2018. The underlying investments were — %73.1% o 5 EE R AZ A= BEEREAA A E
<Zt mostly debt instruments with AA above credit ratings. MERFEETEAR -

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using the expected ‘A [BEIRIE S IE B H B LA K K IR & 7 AE

returns based on management judgement and are within level 3ofthe  F ' BR AL BEELNE =4 2/ EE

e fair value hierarchy. Changes in fair values of these financial assets are AN B{EE B A ER [ H RS 1Bk
presented in “Other gains/losses” in the income statement. Bl o
14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
=+
JFRE WA B K B S 5

a
5 As at 31 December

Rt=—A=t+—~H

©

w

=

o RMB’000 RMB000
5 ARMTR ARBTT
Z.

T Trade receivables F& U AR 3K 462,030 462,824
- Bills receivables &M1& 608,514 702,951
Q

z 1,070,544 1,165,775
[_‘

Z, N 5

s Less: provision for impairment J& © Ji{E ¥4 (21,556) (17,881)
Q

z Trade and bills receivables, net FEWBR X & =45 » FE 1,048,988 1,147,894
[_‘

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their ~ FEINBR R R ZEMEREEE LD E AL BE
fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& PF B i R B EE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (conto)
FES IR R B S 4

Retail sales at the Group's stores are usually made in cash or by debit or
credit cards. For wholesale to distributors, the Group normally grants a
credit period ranging from 30 days to 120 days. As at 31 December
2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based
on invoice date was as follows:

AEFETEHE—RURE ERRFHEH
RER R EHBATE4S T308E120AR
MR - R=ZFT—N\F+_A=+—Bk=
T—+tHF+_A=1+—H EBREFIEERE
BEZZAPNREITIOT

As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R AREFTT

Within 4 months PU{E A LA 857,710 1,025,804
Over 4 months but within 1 year PA{& A & —4F 152,335 114,950
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F & — 4 48,283 14,457
Over 2 years but within 3 years — & & = 6,002 3,310
Over 3 years —F A E 6,214 7,254
1,070,544 1,165,775

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables of RMB21,556,000 (2017:
RMB17,881,000) were fully provided for impairment. The ageing
analysis of these receivables was as follows:

R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—8  BKREZA
R #2155600T(—ZFE—+F: AR¥
17,881,0007C) B 2 85T ie T REERE - thF
JEUGRRIBRERAN T

As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARET T

Within 4 months P9{& A AR 1,441 133
Over 4 months P91E A LA + 20,115 17,748
21,556 17,881

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (contp)

JREMSCHR A B S48
Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as  JEWFURBEEBREEN AT -
follows:

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
;l
|

2018
- RMB’000 RMB'000
i ARETR RN
=4
° At 1 January ®—H—H 17,881 21,219
|8}
@z,
o Provision for/(reversal of) impairment J&{E 542,/ (E[a]) 3,675 (33398)
<t
5
z X _
z At31 December R+ H=+—H 21,556 17,881
<t
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fEREHE - EERMEHNESRERAE S
carrying value of trade and bills receivables mentioned above. The i FfAEWIRA N ZEMNEREEE - A&EE
194 Group does not hold any collateral as security. TRHEEMERAERNERM -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables are ~ ANEBE FEIBE R R ZEMEEEE N 549
denominated in the following currencies: EHHE
< g As at 31 December
n - R+t=A=+-H
{E
} Q RMB’000 RMB'000
; 9 AR%T 5 NS S
4 i RMB A R #& 1,061,950 1,093,334
} v HKD &% 6,643 66,808
>< = United States Dollar 37t 1,898 75
< ‘2 Australian Dollar S8 K FI| 28 7T 20 216
} = South African Rand 3 JE 8 45 17 10
dE Macanese Pataca J82F97T 7 138
) E UAE Dirham BB 2§ s 45 5 47
4 B Canadian Dollar J1Z X 7T 2 47
} z New Zealand Dollar #7785 7T 1 141
}4 2 Singapore Dollar ¥ 03 7T 1 107
< Korean Won 27T - 4781
} Polish Zloty K B8 %% ZE 12 = 71
}{ 1,070,544 1,165,775
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& PF B i R B EE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

15. INVENTORIES

8]

As at 31 December

R+t=-—RA=t+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AREFTT

Raw materials JR# #} 992,928 824,285
Work-in-progress £ £ i 454,670 440,839
Finished goods E X ih 983,489 1,083,967
2,431,087 2,349,091

Less: provision for impairment J& © Ji{E Y& (69,926) (46,201)
2,361,161 2,302,890

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of
sales” amounted to RMB1,632,110,000 (2017: RMB1,630,395,000).

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
HESE BT 15 i

Deferred income tax is calculated on temporary differences under the
liability method using the tax rates which are expected to apply at the
time of reversal of the temporary differences.

FEKRAPRERSEBIIABEERENS
FHEH AR 1632110000 (=8 —+4F -
AR 1630,395,0007T) °

BB HRERABA TWERZRUEH
CREREENERNHEGTE -

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF
16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (contD)

AR AE BT A5 B (a0
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as  JEIEFTSH & E R LEFF S A EH DT 0

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

follows: T
As at 31 December
- R+t=—A=+—H
s
o
—~
g RMB’000 RMB'000
= AR® T ARETIT
@z,
- Deferred tax assets: #EIEFTISF & B
o) — Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months
: B+ — A kR EMEE SR A E 2,538 2421
< — Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months
T+ EARNKEIRREMSHEE 35,329 28,636
37,867 31,057
196
Deferred tax liabilities: #EFE P15 B & :
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months
BTl AR NIRRT EHAaE (4,188) (3995)
g — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months
= ET-ZBAREZNIEEMSHAaE (1,773) (1,662)
(5,961) (5,657)
Deferred tax assets, net IIEFTEFL B & » JFE 31,906 25,400

o
o
w
m
Q
o
—
o
Z
a5
O
m
=
Q
Z
<
i
Z
[S8)
(=4
Q
Z
o
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (conTD)
PR IE 1S B ()
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the FERNIELEMESHREENEBRECREZEEA S

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within ~ A] #E [a] — %% [& (N3 85 ) RO FHan T -
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

HESE P 15 B 2

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000 e
ARBTR ARETT &
Beginning of the year F 4 &8 31,057 38,629 hil
Credited/(charged) to income statement B 52, (f&52) 18238 6,372 (7,065) g
Exchange differences [& 5, Z= %8 438 (507)
End of the year G RER¥E 37,867 31,057
197
Other Unrealised
provisions, profit
Provisionfor depreciation resulting from
termination and intragroup s }
benefits amortisation transactions Others o 4
EEAH o )
BHAL EERERE RSELN = I
EBEA  RFERE  AERAN Ef &t o )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 § }4
ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR =
At 1January 2017 R=E—+F—A—H 120 8290 29,747 472 38629 ; 4
Credited/(Charged) to income statement B33,/ (f&52) 825 135 1,031 (8453) 22 (7,065) a 4
Fxchange differences I 5 Z & = = (507) = (507) f h
o)
At31 December 2017 R=FE—+F+-A=+—H 255 9321 20787 694 31,057 4
(Charged)/credited to income statement (f§32),/ &8z (71) 5277 1,085 81 6,372 }
Exchange differences & 5, Z % = 0) 440 = 438 }4
At31 December 2018 R=ZE—\F+=-A=+—H 184 14,596 2312 775 37,867 }:
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (cont)
HESE BT A5 B a0

Deferred income tax liabilities

HESE e 153 B2 £ 1%

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Beginning of the year F #]#4%E 5,657 5,751
Charged to income statement f& a2 182% 122 151
Exchange differences [& %, = &8 182 (245)
End of the year FF R &R %58 5,961 5,657

Deferred
income tax
liabilities
Accelerated tax arising from
depreciation business
allowance combination Total
BlEzmE XBEHELEMN
HERE ELEHREHER L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R=B—+F— A —H 3,643 2,108 5,751
Charged/(credited) to income statement f&72,/ (&5 ) B 256 (105) 151
Exchange differences [ 5, Z= %8 214) (31) (245)
At 31 December 2017 R=E—+F+=A=+—H 3,685 1,972 5,657
Charged/(credited) to income statement f&&2,/ (B2 ) 825 409 (287) 122
Exchange differences [ % = %8 168 14 182
At 31 December 2018 R=E—N\F+=ZA=+—H 4,262 1,699 5,961

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of RMB15,299,000 (2017: RMB9,582,000) in respect of
losses amounting to RMB76,274,000 (2017: RMB51,280,000) at 31
December 2018. At 31 December 2018, these tax losses have no expiry
dates except for the tax losses of RMB39,685,000 (2017: RMB20,274,000)
which will expire between 2019 and 2038 (2017: between 2018 and
2037).

ﬁT%ﬁ?ﬂEﬂaﬁ%wﬂ%ukﬁﬁ HEERNE

EIRBBRH FEE’H{XWEJHR%IJ/FEJ
ﬁﬁafﬁﬂﬁmf‘%ﬁkﬂ SMER - RZZE—N
F+_A=+— E%Eljrﬁwﬁﬂfkiéﬁa/\
R %7627400c( —Z T —tF: AR
51,280,0007C ) RIELEM S EE AR
15299,0007T (= F —+tF : AR % 9,582,000
L) e RZE—\F+_A=1+—H BAR
#39685000Cc( = & — + i' AR

20274000 7C) MR EBEER —_E— L E2
TEEN\F(ZEF D )\¢ —-=
= &) BN - HAREEBETER A -
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& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

17. SHARE CAPITAL

JEeA
As at 31 December
R+=A=t+—H
2018
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
ROEE ROHEE RinEIE RIAE(E
RMB'000 RMB'000 |
AREF R AREFTL A
Total share capital £ 4% 1,280,784,000 1,280,784 1280784000 1,280,784 ;
i
_ i
Issued and fully paid B #4173 B 812 2 RN o
— Domestic shares with a par value of RMB1 per share
RER - BREBARE 1T 652,080,000 652,080 652,080,000 652,080
— H shares with a par value of RMBT per share
HiR BREBEARE T 628,704,000 628,704 628,704,000 628,704 199
1,280,784,000 1,280,784 1,280,784,000 1,280,784

2018
Domestic Domestic
shares H shares Total shares H shares Total
RER HE CH NER HER =)

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB000
ARBTR  AR%TR ARRTT RN A A

At1 January R—A—H 652,080 628,704 1,280,784 652,080 628,704 1,280,784

At31 December R+ =A=+—H 652,080 628,704 1,280,784 652,080 628704 1,280,784
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& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

18. RESERVES

(i
(a) Capital reserve

A Gl
Capital reserve represents the difference between the amount of share
capital issued by the Company and the historical net value of the
assets, liabilities and interests transferred to the Company upon its

establishment and net premium on issue of shares upon listing of the
Company and issuance of additional shares.

(b) Statutory reserves
€ filh

The Company sets aside 10% of its net profit after income tax, before
distribution of dividend to shareholders, as stated in the financial
statements prepared under PRC accounting standards to the statutory
surplus reserve fund. Approximately RMB51,208,000 (2017:
RMB53,201,000), being 10% of the net profit after income tax as stated
in the financial statements prepared under PRC accounting standards,
was transferred to the statutory surplus reserve fund as at 31 December
2018.

In accordance with the amendment of the Company Law of the PRC
on 27 October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006, it is not required to
accrue for statutory public welfare fund since the year 2006. The
balance together with statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to
offset accumulated losses or convert as share capital of the Company.

(c) Tax reserve

RBLE

According to the preferential enterprise income tax policy for new
technology enterprises (“NTE") under the old PRC Enterprise Income
Tax ("EIT") regulation (effective before 1 January 2008), an NTE located
in a designated area of Beijing Economic and Technological
Development Zone was subject to EIT at a preferential income tax rate
of 15%. Moreover, upon approval by the relevant local tax bureau, the
Company was entitled to full exemption from EIT from 2000 to 2002
and 50% reduction from 2003 to 2005. An amount for exemption and
reduction has to be appropriated to a non-distributable tax reserve.
However, the utilisation of the exempted tax is restricted to specified
purposes and not distributable to shareholders.

BAHE R R B BT IR AN & B B A
VREANEE  BEMEDRELIFEDN
ZR ARE LR ETmRBETHRES
M ERRIEFEE

AR EFREFPESETELRSE 2 FFH
RN A EERBATEE RE—N\F
+=—A=+—H ' ARFREFPBEHS AL
RERBEBFFEN10%IREVEATERAB AT
& BB ANREES120800T(ZFE—+F:
AEH#53201,0007T) °

BER-_ZETRAF+A-TEHEFTIN=
TEXNE—A—HREBEITH(PEARLRN
BRATNEY  RATR BB NEHRTHE
EERTE - ARBETE R sk - BUK
TEHB AR — AR BmEIBSEER A

BEFHEMSHET(R_ZEZENF—A
—BUAIER) i EmEEMGHESR
BRI B BERTE - R R & B T 2 &R
AN EMCEBRNMSHRE
BREA15% - BEB@AM SR BILAE -
ARRIE—_SEEFEE_TT _FERH
TCEMBH —ET=FEZ_TTHFE
BB EERMEH - B2 Ll =& = m¥
BEMEHATEATADENERES -
WERREE BT TNERARIKERS -
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& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

18. RESERVES(Q»WD
Tt a0

(d) Foreign currency translation differences

CIL R TRt

Foreign currency translation differences reserve arises from currency AN EH ZBELANEBR DR E BT EGE
translations of all group entities that have a functional currency B TRV ARERIHE S BB & AN E
different from the RMB being translated into the Group's presentation HECRR RIS A RSB H) =58 o

currency of RMB.

(e) Other reserve

LAl okt

Other reserve mainly includes reserves arising from the issuance of HfFEEETBEERF LA RIEERMD EANE

additional shares by subsidiaries and disposals to non-controlling B g E 1= H|HER) F A B HEZS = &) o
interests without change in control.

19. DEFERRED INCOME — GOVERNMENT GRANTS
EFE WA — BURH B

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETFT

Beginning of the year & f]#r =8 93,787 75,932

Government grants received ZN 4 UK | B9 AT 48 B 12,632 27,118

Amortisation in the income statement (Note 25) R UR =5 4 58 (K1 5E 25) (22,739) (9,263)

End of the year FF KRR ¥E 83,680 93,787
The ending balance of the government grants are relating to: FERBIFEBessEE L NIBE B EE -

As at 31 December
R+=-—H=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARETT

Research and development expenditure ff 35 5 3% 5% 9,691 9,223
Property, plant and equipment 5 & M2 EEY) - R E Kk 51,931 54,876
Land use rights =3 {5 F 42 16,277 14,450
Other expenditures E X7 i 5,781 15,238
83,680 93,787

WbV —F
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& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

20. BORROWINGS
H- o/,
H BA

As at 31 December

R+t=-—RA=+—H

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
;l
|

@ RMB’000 RMB'000
c AR%T NS
» Non-current JE R E)
© Corporate bonds (‘bonds”) A FfE % ([ &% ) 798,908 798,474
&
- Bank borrowings $817 & 7k
Z — Secured 48 48 506
z — Unsecured &K ## 112,375 116,500
911,331 915,480
Current i &
Bank borrowings $R1T & 7K
202 — Secured & ## 3,000 3,000
— Unsecured &£ # 160,000 172,300
Add: Current portion of non-current unsecured bank borrowing
= EEEIEREIRITERO BN S 5,146 2,500
a)
5 Borrowings from a related party (Note 34(e))
e EaEsE 2~ A8 ARV (FH5E 34(e)) 32,000 32,000
200,146 209,300
Total borrowings f& X 4258 1,111,477 1,125,280

Certain secured bank borrowings are secured by land and buildings of ~ Zf D IFE R AR EE A Tt FIEFIREE
carrying amounts of RMB9,562,000 (2017: RMB10,318,000) of the Group B A R #9562000 T( —ZE—+F : AR
(Notes 6.and 7). 10,318,000 7T ) A (KizteF7)

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

AV OO OO OO CNEO OO OO NCNEONCNEONEONIOIONONEN
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& P BB i R B GE (48

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

20. BORROWINGS (contn)
& 3K )

@ At 31 December 2018, the Group's borrowings would be (@) RZE—N\F+_A=+—H  ~EH
repayable as follows: BRERRNAT :

As at 31 December
WR+=B=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000 !
— e !
ARBT ARETT 8
Within 1 year —%F JAA 200,146 209,800 ;
Between 1 and 2 years —F & —4F 5,194 5,000 S
Between 2 and 5 years —F E R F 814,345 818,980 =
Over 5 years A A E 91,792 91,500 #
1,111,477 1,125,280
(b)  In 2016, the Company issued bonds with aggregate principal  (b) AAGBR-ZE—NEE L BESZSHT 203
amount of RMB800 million and a maturity of five years with a EIT81ETT {?f:‘ﬁ EEEFEE295% -
nominal interest rate of 2.95% per annum, which are listed on HEAFEF - R_FE—N\NE+_A
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The fair value of bonds as at =+—H ' RRIEEHNALEBEESETA
1 December 2018 amounted to RMB796,143,000 (2017: R#796143000( ZE—+F: AR ;
RMB781,526,000) which is determined by reference to published #781,526,0007C ) * BEJVRERER =
price quotations and within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy BEEFT BAABEEBROE —F (KM T
(Note 3.3). i£33) ° -
b=
The carrying amounts of other borrowings approximate to their HuEZmEREmEEEE AR BEMRD S5
. 7
fair value. -
==
b=
(© The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are () AEBEEFTNEBEEIL NI E® 58 2
denominated in the following currencies: 57 : f
al

As at 31 December
R+=-—H=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETIT

RMB A R #& 1,110,408 1,124,774
Macanese Pataca BP9 1,021 =
Australian Dollar JB A Fl g5 7T 48 506
1,111,477 1,125,280

WV WV WV WV VUV VUV VUV VUV VYV YV V VYV V V.V
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& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

20. BORROWINGS (contn)

- &
& FK @

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 120 days of  FE{FBR R MEIE(R - Wi B EER 120K A F
recognition. LA A5t o

(d)  The average interest rates (per annum) are as follows: d FHEFERT :
- ] 2018 2017
Bonds &%
. —RMB AR¥ 3.008% 3.008%
(=}
(]
= Other borrowings E Ath f& X
= —RMB AR 3.255% 3.207%
" — Australian Dollar A F25 75 5.224% 4929%
i — Macanese Pataca J&2F9 7T 0.000% =
<
>
z 21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
=+,
< JREAS Mok B SR 4%
As at 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of trade and bills payables R-_E—NEFE+_B=+—H ' ENEZ X
based on invoice date and financial position was as follows: RIS I O HA M BT A AR SR B BR B8 o A 40
204 B
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
a
[_‘
—

. RMB’000 RMB'000
O ARBTR AREBETFTT
w Within 4 months P9 {8 B LA 475,392 442,072
‘5" Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1E 5 Z= —4F 101,996 244,678
= Over 1 year but within 2 years — & & — 4F 86,236 10,572
Z Over 2 years but within 3 years —F & =4 529 402
5 Over 3 years —F N F 885 691
=
o 665,038 698415
<
[_‘
zZ
[S8)

(=4
O
4
o
[_‘

The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables are considered to be ~ HARHEAR &S - FENEER N EZEMNEEEE
the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. WEAEENDBEHEE -
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& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

22. SALARY AND WELFARE PAYABLES
JREAT T A A 2

As at 31 December

R+t=-—RA=t+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFTT
Salary payable FE{f T& 91,951 88,597
Welfare payable & < 1& ) & 1,019 1,303
92,970 89,900
23. REVENUE
A

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTF T ARETT

Sales of Chinese medicine products F %572 & $5 & UL A

— Mainland China 72 Bl A ith 4,041,543 4169434
— Outside Mainland China 7 E b B 5} i [& 923,834 776,548
4,965,377 4,045,082

Advertising service &5 ARTEURA
— Mainland China 7 H Bl A i 43,018 37,606

Service income ARSI A

— Mainland China 7R B A3, 7,244 =
— Outside Mainland China 7 E fth B 5} i [& 43,618 41,129
50,862 41,129

Royalty fee income fif h {5 FR AR A
— Outside Mainland China A E A BIZR K i & 381 466

5,059,638 5,025,183

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

A IR B SR B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

23. REVENUE contp)
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WA a0
The Group has recognised the following liability related to contract AEBERHERIA TEEFE SR ABHNEEN
with customers: afE:
31 December 1 January
- 2018 2018
z —E-N\E§E —EFE-N\F
- t=A=+—"H —A—A
|
(=4
o
= RMB’000 RMB'000
e (Restated)
< (1 =51)
2 reutr e
z
< Contract liabilities — Service income & R & & — ARFFUA 4,324 4,607
The Group has not recognised any contract assets related to contract W —-_ZT—N\EFE—F—HM_ZFT—N\F+_A
with customers as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018. _—|— H NEBAERERXPAREMEH
206 AREE -
There is no significant changes in contract liabilities during the year & %& —&FE— \F+ — }E] +—HIFEE -
ended 31 December 2018. HE&*%EEK“
{ &
} = Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
4B e wl 1Y B [ R A A B R A
>< ; The following table shows revenue recognised in relation to contract [~EXMRAEEZE —_ZEZ—/\FEF+_HA=+—H
} ”i liabilities in the year ended 31 December 2018 related to carried tifaﬁﬁwé‘]gﬁi/\ﬂﬁﬁﬁfijé‘]q&)\l#gﬁi
{ Lo/ forward contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018. —E-NE-—A—HEAEARAGBEBY
-l
> E A2 o
4 z
> B
< o 31 December
) - 2018
O —
dE —EB-N\F
} = +=ZB=+—8
dE
>4 z RMB’000
} z ARBT T
o
‘ = Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities at 1 January 2018
n R-F-N\F—A - HEEIANESRAEHARENKA 3,751
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

24. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
S5 W b B

2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT

Finance income Bf #§ Uk 2

Interest income FJ 242 A 31,806 23,788
Exchange gains/(losses), net [ 5 Uezs,(384K) » SF58 225 (3.958)
32,031 19,830
Finance costs # 7% & F
Interest on bonds &% Fl & (24,035) (24,021)
Interest on bank borrowings #8177 B 7 Fl 8 (10,396) (10,698)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets (Note 7)
W EBEREEENMEEEE (M7) 19,467 13,034
(14,964) (21,685)
Finance income/(costs), net B i§ k2% (& A) & 25 17,067 (1,855)

WbV —F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

25. EXPENSE BY NATURE
SRR B HEAT SR

Operating profit was arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following: N3 & IBE &0, (E:2) BT FIE -

2018 2017

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
>4
|

= RMB’000 RMB'000
° AR®TF T ARETF T
» Raw materials, merchandise and consumables used R4 %+ ~ 74 5 K B #E 0o JE AE 1,545,463 1,578,677
2 Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
e EXmREERNTREE 86,647 51,718
= Employee benefit expense (Note 26) B T &5 sz (Ff&E 26) 851,793 789,386
; Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
z FERERY - BB REHIE (FHE7) 75,837 77,287
< Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 6)
TRt &t E IR R (Fiate) 3,631 3,414
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) 2 & &= # § (B 3£ 8) 7,515 3,782
Amortisation of other long-term assets - tb & H & EE 5 £ 1,451 1,006
208 Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & E%E/ﬁf%%'ﬂfé 44,250 30,113
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of receivables [ R IBIZ BR 511 /(85[0 ) 6,055 (1,427)
Provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment
R R2EY) - BE KRR EE AR - 5,783
Operating lease rental 484 1 & 2 97,771 151,338
< - Auditor's remuneration 1% 26 Bl &
>< : — Audit services #Z ERTS 7,156 6,830
) 5 — Non-audit services 3E4% £ AR 75 258 141
{ v Research and development costs!" fiff 3% i 2% & F§ 27,835 27,585
} 5 Loss on disposal of non-current assets
4E EREEEBRAR 1,850 1,003
} o Amortisation of deferred income — government grants (Note 19)
{E AT — BT B 4083 (BHHE 19) (22,739) 9263)
n b Processing costs il T & 279,506 247,303
} i: Advertising and promotion expenses & K EEEEE 301,678 433,955
< - Transportation & i £ 58,647 57,130
} = Repair and maintenance #1& M (R # 34,479 38,811
dE Utilities #A R} K% (8% 3 ) 67,741 69,671
} ~ Other taxes EfhFi & 56,668 54,420
4 B
} é 0 Excluding employee benefit expense, depreciation and amortisation [ TEFEEIRMASX  MEREBHER 2L
4 = expense. The research and development costs including employee MmB AR FAEERAARKS5889,000(2017
} benefit expense, depreciation and amortisation expense were F : AR 54,740,000) °
}4 RMB55,889,000 (2017: RMB54,740,000).
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

B A& A A 5L
2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Salary and wages T& 617,512 576,219

Staff welfare 18 %1 & 59,851 60,485

Housing fund (X B A fE& 45,340 38,186
Contribution to pension schemes R R & 3k 129,090 114,496 ¥

851,793 789,386

The five individuals whose emoluments before individual income tax ~ ANFEEANE B E A FTERAIF € & W AAL
were the highest in the Group for the year include one (2017: one) ATBE—U(ZFE—CF: —)EF T
director and no (2017: no) supervisor whose emoluments are reflected U(ZF—tF: TU)ES mfimeE
in the analysis presented in Note 30. The emoluments payable to the MTE30 Y AT AR o RFE XN TFHERT
remaining four (2017: four) individuals during the year are as follows: (=T ) ATEBMESIT

WbV —F
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RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT

Basic salaries, allowances and bonuses Z A< ~ jE 8L & 4 5,515 5310
Contribution to pension scheme iR {K & HHFX 82 133
5,597 5,443
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (cont
B AR B S a0

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following band:

HEATHMESEATEENARRS

HKD1,000,001-HKD1,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB846,601-RMB1,269,900)
781 1,000,001-1,500,000 7T (F8 74 AR ¥ 846,601-1,269,900 7T.)
HKD1,500,001-HKD2,000,000 (Equivalent to RMB1,269,901-RMB1,693,200)
781 1,500,001-2,000,000 7T (FE A AR #51,269,901-1,693,200 7T
HKD2,000,001-HKD2,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB1,693,201-RMB2,116,500)
78 2,000,001-2,500,000 7T (FEE A AR #51,693,201-2,116,500 7T
HKD2,500,001-HKD3,000,000 (Equivalent to RMB2,116,501-RMB2,539,300)
78 2,500,001-3,000,000 7T (FEE A AR5 2,116,501-2,539,800 7T
HKD3,000,001-HKD3,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB2,539,801-RMB2,963,100)
Y& 3,000,001-3,500,000 7T (FEE A AR5 2,539,801-2,963,1007T)

Among the above four (2017: four) individuals, there are three (2017:
two) individuals whose emoluments were paid by Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine and its subsidiary for the year.

None of the five highest paid individuals of the Group waived any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
such individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office.

27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
i 2

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC effective from 1
January 2008, enterprises with a High/New Technology Enterprise
("HNTE") status are able to enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15%. For the
entities without the HNTE status, the PRC income tax rate is 25% (2017:
25%). As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries have obtained the HNTE certificate. Consequently, their
applicable income tax rate in 2018 is 15% (2017: 15%).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

AFEE AL (ZF—+F : [Of) ALH
B (ZZF—tF: M) ALNFHMER
CEREREFRRXM -

FRAMHESHEA LI RBEETAHE - K
SEYEAANTR=HFTALTINMEIERE
AREMAREENME - RKREBAHR

=
8 ©

BEE-TENF—A—BHTHPELE
FTEBERTE S ERMEEERNZE15%
WATEHESRHE - HRESHRMEE -
FTISBIRR R 25% (ZF—+4F : 25%) « #HZE
—E-N\FF+ZA=ZF+—BRZ-ZFT—tF
+—A=4+—H xR RIS FLARER
SERIEMEEEE - Bt ZBH A=
- N\FHEAMBRMER I (ZE—t
& 15%) °

RAFEGERRAE  B50EAF
RGBSR EE1650( —F—tF :
16.5%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTD)

Fr B A oo
Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated 4N | 2 T 235 R AN FE B (L =1 FE R 5 71
assessable profit for the year at the income tax rates prevailing in the KB AREEF KL EEAERFR SR 2 IR1T
tax jurisdictions in which the Group operates. FHRAHE o

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT

Current income tax expense & BAFT1S 5 &

— Mainland China & B A13th 105,838 103472 t
— Hong Kong &% 96,423 80,805 P
— Overseas (excluding Hong Kong) /@40 (T2 &) 5,206 4,839 :;
#

207,467 189,116

Deferred income tax (credit)/expense #EIEFT 55 (&18) & F (6,250) 7,216

201,217 196,332

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the ANEBFMGASHAITEAMIE » BIXES
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average St 82 F|EE AR ME LR E21.0% (==
income tax rate of 21.0% (2017: 21.3%) to profits of the consolidated ~ —+44F : 213%) MEES N IER BN =5
entities as follows: [N

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREET T

Profit before income tax & AT 15 %4 BT A1) 1,207,070 1,166,224

[ 73 B & 3R R )R

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries

EEABEBRROAEIRERNE MR ERAERTIE 253,679 248,430
Tax effects of: FRIEF £
— Income not subject to tax & AT 2 WA (4,810) (3.336)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes I~ A] #F% ~  FH 6,330 3,839

— Tax losses and temporary differences for which no deferred income tax assets
were recognized

RERAREMSREENTBEREREREEZR 4,279 4,566

— Effect of preferential income tax treatments Fr 1S4 8 BB 5K H) 5/ 2 (58,986) (56,930)
— Final settlements and payments [ & /5 £ 78 % 479 (326)
— Others F At 246 89
Income tax expense PT{S 7% & F 201,217 196,332

>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
¢
3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE
il

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to & X E AW ES IR AN A B Fr B & FE(RF R B 4
owners of the Company of approximately RMB677,815,000 by the A R #¥677,8150007T @ B LAS B 31T @
weighted average number of 1,280,784,000 shares in issue during the year. X BYANFE 92 B 1,280,784,000 B 2R 5T E &Y ©

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

The Company had no dilutive potential shares in 2018 and 2017. AKANBR_E—NEFER_TE—+FIEE
= ZHERAD -
o
(]
:
@)
[=9)
|S8)
= RMB’000 RMB'000
< ARETT N R
o
é Profit attributable to owners of the Company FE 5 BR ARG FTE & 677,815 666,666
<

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands)

AR E BT E R ARE (T 1,280,784 1,280,784

212 Earnings per share &%z RMBO0.53 RMBO.52
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

29. DIVIDENDS
E&A%\

The cash dividends paid in 2018 and 2017 were RMB217,733,000
(RMB0.17 (including tax) per share) and RMB204,925,000 (RMBO0.16
(including tax) per share) respectively.

On 19 March 2019, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMBO0.18 (including
tax) per share, amounting to a total of RMB230,541,120, which is
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the 2018 annual general
meeting to be held on Tuesday, 11 June 2019. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

RZB—NFER_ZE—+FALTNANRERK
BRI A ARE2177330007T (FIRARE
0177t (& H)) K A R ¥ 204,925,000 7T (& %
ARE016TT(EF)) °

RZZBE-—NF=ZAT+NH EFCEREE
BRARKLISTT(EM)REHE_T—N\F
T A=+ HLEFERERE BEAA
R#230541,120T0 c ZMREDERRFERFTL
T-NFAA+—B(EHD)BHAHN-ZF
—NFERRBAFTRSHE - NPKEREKK

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTIT

Interim dividend paid of RMB nil (2017: RMB nil) per ordinary share

FHIRERE SRARKOT (ZE—+F - FRARKOT)

Final dividend proposed of RMB0.18 (including tax) (2017: RMBO0.17
(including tax)) per ordinary share

BRAHRE  BRARKIST(EH)(—ZF—+F : BRARK0L17T(EH)) 230,541 217,733

230,541 217,733

WbV —F
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

30. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
3 NS R 55 R 45

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

Byl
For the year ended 31 December 2018: BIZE—ZT—/\FE+_H=+—HILFE :

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

Emoluments paid
@ or receivable
o in respect of
o aperson’s services
s as a director/
o supervisor, whether Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director's/
= of the Company supervisor's other services in connection with
22 orits subsidiary the management of the affairs of the Company or
jt undertaking its subsidiary undertaking
= faEE/ES
z (FERRLTS
z £7030%)
RARHAXA RERANESRTAALENER
FRLNEHE RULHES/ ESREMINDRLNHE
Employer's
contribution to
Discretionary  Allowances and aretirement
2 1 4 Fees Salary bonuses benefits®  henefit scheme Total
BRICERF
ik it BiEgso  EEREN £ Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARHTR KRBT N A KRBT INL A N R

Chairman EER
Mr. Gao Zhen Kun BrisE 4 o - - - - -

LTD

Executive directors $i{TES
Mr. Huang Ning ¥ BB £ ¢ - - - - - _
Mr. Wule Jun @ REE 4 © - - - - _ _

Ms. Wu Qian ¥ REEZ L - - - - - -
Mr. Wang Yu Wei ® T /&5 0 = 1,283 853 45 55 2,236
Ms.Fang Jia N EREL T - 514 pIT} Iy} 55 855

Mr.GuHai Ou® BB RS0 . - - - - _
Mr. Rao Zu Hai @ BB 2640 - - - _ . .

o
o
w
m
Q
o
—
©)
Z
a5
O
m
=
Q
Z
<
i
Z
[S8)
(=4
Q
Z
o
=

M. i Bin 9 B854 9 - - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B H1TEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T RB% 4 203 - - - - 203
Ms. Chan Ching Har, Fliza ¥ FRIE E &1 102 - - - = 102
Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing ¥ R & 264 50 - - - - 50
Miss Tam Wai Chu, Maria® 5%/ 102 - - - - 102
MrJin ShiYuan © 470555 50 - - - - 50
Supervisors £

Ms.SuLi &L - - - - - -
M Wu Yi Gang RIS £ 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Dong Ke Man © B 52 49 - 385 122 Iy} 55 604
Ms. MaBao Jian ® HREL L9 - - - - - =
Ms. Ding Guo Ping© T B 2019 - 425 - - 4 466
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE
30. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (contp)

2 R g AR A a0

Directors' and supervisors’ emoluments (Contd)

wREREH @

Notes: 3T

(1) Bonuses are accrued according to current year's results, which will be (1) RATIREEFXETEIRESNERBAENS I

paid in the following year after Board of Directors’ approval PR ERESES I AR

(20 Include housing and car allowance Q) BEERERLNER

(3)  Chief executive of the Company (B) AAMEKE

4)  Appointed on 12 June 2018 W WNoE—NESNAT-RESEE H

(5)  Resigned on 12 June 2018 65 MZE—N\FANA+-BEME |
N

(6)  Elected on 12 March 2018, with effect from 12 June 2018 6 MRZZE—NF=ZA+-—BEE —ZT—N\F~A -;

TBAER &

#

For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILFE:

Emoluments paid
or receivable

215

asa director/
supervisor, whether Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
director's/supervisor's other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or
undertaking its subsidiary undertaking

Ex/E%

cretionary
bonuses "

Bt
RMB'000
ARETTL

[ 73 B & 3R R )R

Chairman E5 &
Mr. Gao Zhen Kun 1R 4 - - - - _

Executive directors H{TEE

Mr. Gu Hai Ou R B B8 £ 4 - - - - -
Mr. Rao Zu Hai B8 T4 - - - - -
Mr. Li Bin 5% 4 - - - - -
Mr. Wang Yu Wei @ T2 B4 - 1,290 847 51 2188
Ms.Fang Jia Zhi R E X+ - 516 342 51 909
Independent non-executive directors & 31T EE
Miss Tam Wai Chu, Maria 2%/ 208 - - - 208
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T RIB2E & 208 - - - 208
Mr. Jin Shi Yuan 7T 45 100 - - - 100
Supervisors E%
Ms. Ma Bao Jian SRE Z £ = = = - -
Mr. Wu Yi Gang RIAS%E & 100 - - - 100
Ms. Ding Guo Ping T B & £ - 505 - 51 556
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—\&FE+=H=1—HIFFZE

30. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (contp)

2 N B R g RN RE A )
Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Contd)

o9 T )

Notes:

(1) Bonuses are accrued according to current year's results, which will be
paid in the following year after Board of Directors’ approval

2) Chief executive of the Company

No directors and supervisors waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors and
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of position.

No payments or benefits in respect of termination of directors’ and
supervisors' services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to or
receivable by any director or supervisor; nor are any payable.

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ or supervisors’ services.

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the
directors and supervisors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities.

Saved as disclosed in Note 34 and elsewhere in these financial
statements, none of the directors and supervisors had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group, to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and which
was subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

B EE

(1) AREARBEFEXERRSREBASRS I
RNRFREESHEREN

@ rAAgE

AARTEEERESEHNETMNMNE - A&
BN E R AR BT EE K E S A
© - tERRSIINAKREE 2 2B E AR
HEE) S E A RERR A (E o

AEEATEEZIMERNESMESRILE
B AR 75 i [A) B ST A (B EL e MR HOBREE -

AEERYL EFES R ESRBERB A E
=77 A SER Y TREE

AEEAVTEBEENES  EFMESEH
¥ EFEBBERIER  EEFTAULHE
X HHAEIEE

RN 5 34 RAB B BE LS - A
FENREES  AEBERETEDS R
AEEY EBHMARA 2 ESREFEEL
MEERTHEEEAMEIEERS B
HAR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —

31. RETIREMENT AND TERMINATION BENEFITS

AR AR 1) e Bl e e P

Pursuant to the PRC laws and regulations, the Group is required to
make monthly contributions to various retirement benefit schemes
organised by the relevant provincial and municipal governments for
the Group’s employees in the PRC at rates ranging from 22% to 28%
(2017: 27% to 32%) of the employees’ standard salaries, of which 14%
to 20% (2017: 19% to 24%) is borne by the Group and the remaining
portion is borne by the employees.

The Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF scheme”) in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“MPF Ordinance’). The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. These defined contribution schemes are responsible for the
pension liabilities of the employees. The Group's contributions to these
defined contribution schemes are expensed as incurred.

In addition, the Group provides termination benefits to certain
employees up to their normal retirement age as set out in Note 2.22(c).
The carrying amount of the relevant provision as at 31 December 2018
was approximately RMB1,228,000 (2017: RMB1,700,000).

32. HOUSING FUND
ERAEE

The Group's full-time employees in the PRC participate in a state-
sponsored housing fund (“Fund”). The housing fund can be used by
the Group's employees for purchasing houses, or withdrawn upon
their retirement. The Group is required to make annual contributions to
the Fund based on certain percentages of the employees’ salaries. The
Group's liability in respect of the housing fund is limited to the
contributions payable in each period. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group contributed approximately RMB45,665,000 (2017:
RMB38,432,000) to the Fund.

& PF B i R B EE (48)

E-NF+-_A=1—HIFE

BEPEHEEERER BT AEBEE
RREANE TR AMBFREREHNERE
ZRE - BRXER AE BT HIEHZET
éfE’Jzzfy()izs%ZFﬁ(_ﬁE +F 2% E
%2 f@)  HbmAREERERNLLLAIAE14%
Z20% (ZE—+HF  19% F 24%) © H&8I D
B8 TAE-

AEBUREENFRARRBEELRHER

BEEM(MaEEE ) 2Rt ER
AE((mEestE])  aERBEe8R - $
SE B EERAFEIELABHNR - %F

BTERRRZEZSHBFRERBERE -
AEEHBRFRERBOHINBFLEREM
1t -

o - AEE AR LR 8 EIRATRIKMAT 2
HETFEERANFEER ZATABERMH T
2.22(c)) ° %—"—A¢+—ﬂ_+—aﬁﬁ
FHEREREEN A AR 1228000 L (ZF—

& AR¥1,700,0007T) °

FrEREBNREANMEEE T HEL2INEH
REMMEE L ABEeTE((AEESHE)) -
AEBEETAHAAEEEERE NN ENRE
— XL AEEGFREITIE—TAH
DA AEESFTEHZK - HHELEEM
= - $%lmfﬁ IR EE— MM ELDH
R BE_ZTE—NF+_A=+—HLF
B AEEANMEABREATINHOAR
45665000C( —Z E —tF: HARE
38,432,000 7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

33. CASH FLO\X{‘INFORMATION
Heha®tER

(a) Reconciliation from profit before income tax to cash generated from operations:

B3 B 75 50 1 R S 468 465 355 Bl e 0 B < W R A B G

2018 2017

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
>4
|

= RMB’000 RMB'000
2 ARBTR ARETFT
» Profit before income tax F& AT 45 %% BT F1) B 1,207,070 1,166,224
o Adjustments for: FEIE R
= Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
= FEREEY - BEREEHITE (HiE7) 75,837 77,287
P Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 6)
2 AR RS EHE KRB (MiTe) 3,631 3414
Z Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) & 72 & EE# 84 (F17E8) 7,515 3,782
a Amortisation of other long-term assets Eth = 23 & 2= # £ 1,451 1,006
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & B (& £ B 5T 12 44,250 30,113
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of receivables & W BB E =T 12, (85 [a]) 6,055 (1,427)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
218 FEREEY - BFEMREEOREREK (H5E7) - 5,783
Loss on disposal of non-current assets
JEMBEEFIRIAR 1,850 1,003
Amortisation of deferred income — government grants (Note 19)
EIEW A — BB B 88 (5 19) (22,739) (9,263)
- Interest income (Note 24) F 8 A (P 7E 24) (31,806) (23,788)
- Interest expense (Note 24) F| 837 H (B 24) 34,431 34,719
- Exchange (gains)/losses (Note 24) [ 5, (U2 ) 182K (Fi5E 24) (225) 3,958
Share of losses/(income) of investments accounted for using the equity method
(Note 10) ZH REwE ARMIREMEE (M) (58 (3 10) 138 (96)
Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation of a joint venture
(Note 10) & &R FBE MBE L 2 SNESF E =5 (FiIFE10) 1,442 -
Other gains E Ath U 2 (558) (120)
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & & B A 2 £ & F) ) 1,328,342 1,292,595

Changes in: &) :

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.

Inventories 17 & (95,654) (126,673)
Trade and bills receivables FE 4R R 5K &2 = 4% 95,231 (353,969)
Amounts due from related parties [ 4% BB A 5] F0H (13,819) (45,086)
Other financial assets at amortised cost J«‘A%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’\]ﬁﬁﬂ%@iﬁ% (53,283) =
Prepayments and other current assets T84 7k &2 E (7R B & 2= 71,805 (31,795)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
RARBEAZEEZHF ARG RaemEE (141,827) =
Trade and bills payables &1+ BR 58 & 1% (33,377) 101,286
Other current liabilities HAth B & (& (18,700) 26,143
Amounts due to related parties f& 1~ B8 B A &) ZXIE 85,528 11,337
Proceeds from government grants FEZEH A — EﬁUﬁﬁﬁjJ 5,660 27,118
Cash generated from operations A% & /& B B H9 3R & 1,229,906 900,956

AV OO OO OO CNEO OO OO NCNEONCNEONEONIOIONONEN




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

33. CASH FLO\XQINFORMATION (CONTD)
HEMEREE @

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank Deposits
B 4 B B 4 55 48 W e B0 BRAT R K

As at 31 December, cash and cash equivalents were denominatedin = R+_A=+—H ' IHE LB X BEYIRKE
the following currencies: YR

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
N
RMB’000 RMB'000 &
ARBFT AREFTT S
Cash at bank and in hand 28 & M SR 1T & HifFE 2k g
RMB AR 1,378,417 1314,655
HKD /& #& 450,035 616,235
Australian Dollar /B X F|35 7T 15,166 10,123
Macanese Pataca Y2F97T 13,396 19,468
United States Dollar 7T 11,677 16,686 219
Singapore Dollar 713 7T 10,501 10,054
Canadian Dollar i1 & A JT 8,558 6,300
New Zealand Dollar 7 75 7T 4,637 5,299
South African Rand 3 3£ 4,270 12,271 f;j
UAE Dirharm /B 28 388 17 45 2,275 2,949 .
European Dollar BXJT 2,263 3,734 m
Swedish Krona i 8 75 BA 1,187 1,786 i
Swiss Franc 135 ED 948 2,380 o
Korean Won $2 7t 294 50 5B
Polish Zloty i I 2% & 12 289 773 g
Brunei Ringgit 3R E FF 86 614 s
Great British Pound 245 30 62 24
Czech Koruna #3252 57 7 122 f
A
1,904,036 2,023,561

WV WV WV WV VUV VUV VUV VUV VYV YV V VYV V V.V



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

33. CASH FLO\X{_INFORMATION (CONTD)
ﬁé?ﬁ%%fﬁ A%\ (%7

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank Deposits (Contd)

B4 e B 4 5 1B W A 0 1 BRAT A7 K (a0

Bank deposits with original maturities of over three months were  [RIGTFFHAR BB =A B NETERI R A
classified as short-term bank deposits and denominated in the (2 HRSR{T1F & » IREEREH| RO ¢
following currencies:

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

o
o
= As at 31 December
= Rt=A=t+-—8
o
|8}
@z,
—
<t
5 RMB’000 RMB'000
z AR®T R AREFTT
<t
RMB A R & 34,909 89,368
HKD & #& 1,482,191 943,716
Singapore Dollar #7 03 7T 9,269 8,892
770 Canadian Dollar J1& AT 8,369 5,510
New Zealand Dollar 7 P8 &8 7T 2,404 -
United States Dollar Z£ 7T 759 710
Australian Dollar 8K F25 7T 224 232
- 1,538,125 1,048,428
—

As at 31 December 2018, the cash in hand balance of the Groupwas R-_FE—NFE+_BA=+—H ' XEFERZ
RMB1,599,000 (2017: RMB1,969,000). Cash at bank and short-term bank 35 ¢ #2%8 5 A K% 1,599000 L (ZE —+ % :
deposits balance of the Group was RMB3,440,562,000 (2017: A F£#51,969,0007T)  NEE R 1T1F 7 & 5 HA
RMB3,070,020,000). Management did not expect any losses from non-  §R 1717 ZX 842 %8 & A FR#53440,562,000 0 ( =&
performance by those banks. —+F . AR¥3,070,0200007T) c BEIEER
REEFFERERRRKIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& P BB i R B GE (48

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

33. CASH FLO\)Z‘INFORMAT[ON (CONTD)
Iﬁé‘z\?ﬁ%%fﬁ A%\ (##)

(c) Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities

5T ) P A W B O

This section sets out an analysis of cash flows of financial liabilities from 2N &1 &} 51| & {& HA & A B %1 7= E’j E&8ELEE
financing activities and its movement for each of the year presented. Y IR & R E R D T AN

RMB’000 RMB'000 [
ARETR AREET T W
|
Gross debt — fixed interest rates 28 {&7% — & F F| = (919,429) (920,474) =
Gross debt — variable interest rates Z8 &7 — /2 EFI| = (192,048) (204,806) _';
=

(1,111,477) (1,125,280)

Borrowings due Borrowings due
within 1 year after 1 year Total 271

—FREWER —FRIABERK #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBETT ARBTIT

Liability from financing activity as at 1 January 2017

R_ZE—+F—F—HELEETHNERE (211,000) (917,549) (1,128,549)
Cash flows B &/ & 3,700 = 3,700
Foreign exchange adjustments [ & F 2 = (€) ©)
Other changes H th & (2,500) 2,078 (422)

Liability from financing activity as at 31 December 2017

[ 73 B & 3R R )R

RZZBE—+F+-A=+—HELEETINAEE (209,800) (915,480) (1,125,280)
Cashflows I &M= 14,800 (549) 14,251

Foreign exchange adjustments [ & F 2 - (13) (13)
Other changes £ fth % (5,146) 4,711 (435)

Liability from financing activity as at 31 December 2018
RZE-NF+_A=+—REHEFHNAE (200,146) (911,331) (1,111,477)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

& F B 5 o R M AR (88
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
6 Wi 5 22

Related parties include the Group and its subsidiaries, other majority
state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries directly or indirectly
controlled by the PRC government, other entities and corporations in
which the Company is able to control or exercise significant influence
in making financial and operating decisions and key management
personnel of the Company as well as their close family members.

The ultimate holding company is beneficially owned by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of People’s
Government of Beijing Municipality, so it is a state-owned enterprise
and is controlled by the PRC government, which also owns a significant
portion of the productive assets in the PRC. In accordance with IAS 24,
“Related Party Disclosures”, state-owned enterprises and their
subsidiaries, other than the ultimate holding company and its
subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by the PRC government
are also defined as related parties of the Group.

A portion of the Group's business activities are conducted with other
state-owned enterprises. The Group believes that these transactions
are carried out on normal commercial terms that are consistently
applied to all customers. For the purpose of related party transactions
disclosure, the Group has identified, to the extent practicable, those
corporate customers and suppliers which are state-owned enterprises
based on their ownership structure. It should be noted, however, that
substantially all of the Group's business activities are conducted in the
PRC and the influence of the PRC government in the Chinese economy
is pervasive. In this regard, the PRC government indirectly holds
interests in many companies. Many state-owned enterprises have
multi-layered corporate structure and the ownership structures change
over time as a result of transfers and privatisation programs. Some of
these interests may, in themselves or when combined with other
indirect interests, be controlling interests. Such interests, however,
would not be known to the Group and are not reflected in the
disclosures below. In addition, a portion of the Group’s revenue from
sales of goods are of a retail nature to end users, which include
transactions with the employees of state-controlled entities while such
employees are key management personnel and their close family
members. These transactions are carried out on normal commercial
terms that are consistently applied to all customers. Due to the volume
and the pervasiveness of these transactions, the Group is unable to
determine the aggregate amount of these transactions for disclosure.
Therefore, the revenue from sales of goods disclosed below does not
include retail transactions with these related parties. However, the
Group believes that meaningful information relating to related party
disclosures has been adequately disclosed.

Al BRAKRER TEBT AR - EfthF
BRFAEZRSIEZREHINEEEEREFA
Al - B AR R ARE N W EM B L RE
EEEGIRENERNTE 2 RRIARARE
FAREEABRMMABEREINNRENKE -

RRABFEERARBIERT ARKTE
BEEEBEEZBERalA  FINRES
—REALE  XERTERF - AEHH
BABEERELLUHEE - REBERSE
ISR 24 5% [BEBE T ER | BRRIRIER AR R
HTNBTRrsh  BEREEKTEBAE
B EMEEEEMEFRARBKEE BN
BRI -

AEEN—BOEXFADHRREMERELE
ETH ARER/BFRHEENEEH
RASERBAEF —BOLEERFREITET
B SEBTRSBEBHN - AEBER
TREARBREEEHRIBREBLEN
EFEMHER - BRERBIENR  A5H
M E R XA ET BT A BRRA
HPBEKEAAERENRANTE - B
FERFREEERZ RARNER - FFZH
BERBERBEREMLERLS IREHN
BREE - FURSEATNEM LA HEEE
mEER T EGER - BR - AREEN
BHELEERERL RRAEIATHESD © 1t
Sh > REBENBARR D RERKRAFPER
RHNRT ZBEAFRARTELE R
% MELBRATEEEBEAECXERE
BABRMBMABERZEINREREZRS -
HERXHRENEEARAEBMEES, —
BOWLEFBRGFETH - BERLBEXFZH
HEEERNERFIERAN  NEBEEEKE
HEXZNAFTESE - Bt A M REAH
ERANSHELINEEHEAR S RAERNE
EHENRY - AW - NEREREESERERT
REHEBESENERCRIAXONEE -




34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staten1ents((:ont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTD)
B 7 28 5

During the year, the Group had the following material transactions
with related parties, which were entered into at terms mutually agreed
with these related parties in the ordinary course of business.

(a)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company

l»‘ § /&jx%

Transactions with the ultimate holding company during the year are

summarised as follows:

GRS R S

mE

—NEF+ZASS—AILEE

REBAEEHBEHE TGO TERRS
BERFGER —MEFBIERIZEBE QAT
R E HEFCGEITHY ©

ZNGS R g Sl N

AR ZT -

2018

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB'000
ARETT

Trademark licence fee (Note (i

) FIRE A& (HEE))

Rental expense (Note (ii)) =t {58 B & (B 5E (i)

Property leasing expense (Note (iii)) ¥ %# & & A (M & (iii))

2,642 850

2,364 2,364

4,995 3,780

Notes:

0]

(ii)

A licence agreement was renewed on 28 February 2013 between the
Company and the ultimate holding company whereby the Company is
allowed to use certain trademarks and trademark logos (collectively,
“Trademarks’) of the ultimate holding company.

The licence agreement is effective from 1 March 2013 to 28 February
2018. Upon the expiration of the licence, if the ultimate holding
company successfully renews the right to use the Trademarks and if the
Company fully complies with the terms and conditions of agreement
and requests to continue to use the Trademarks, the ultimate holding
company shall renew the agreement with the Company.

A licence agreement was entered on 28 February 2018 between the
Company and the ultimate holding company whereby the Company is
allowed to use Trademarks of the ultimate holding company. The licence
agreement is effective from 1 March 2018 to 31 March 2021. In case of
the extension of the agreement, the Company can apply three months
prior to the expiration of the licence and renew the licence agreement
with the ultimate holding company. The annual licence agreement fee is
RMB3,000,000 with an annual increase of RMB300,000 thereafter.

A land use right leasing agreement (the “Old Agreement”) dated 6
October 2000 was entered into between the Company and the ultimate
holding company. Pursuant to the agreement, the total area leased to
the Company is approximately 49,776.35 sq.m. The land is located in
Beijing, the PRC, with a lease period of 20 years commencing from 6
October 2000. The annual rental is calculated at a rate of RMB53.95 per
sg.m. Any adjustments to the annual rental shall be made at the market
rent, provided that such adjustment shall not exceed 10% of that of the
previous year. On 1 January 2006, an amendment was made to reduce
the total area of the land leased to 43,815.15 sg.m., the remaining clauses
on the Old Agreement still remain effective.

faE

(ii)

—T-=F_ -+ /\HEHKRE]
@HPET SEAFAAR - FIE - AR

i
RERARNEERERER (5 Fﬁﬁ

@\JD
° Ema»_l

AE
B
R

@EIDN}

FEEERSARE S ——F - —BE
%E*/\i A+ \BIE - FFrAEAEmHRE -
REERA RN KZEEFENEBEE
LK/AET@EMEL—TE%:\H]Umﬂj?dz%“@iﬁﬁii.:
ﬁm%ﬂi REER AR EERRBERTA A

U>E¢IE1TFI|

A\=E—NE=- A=+ /\BHESKIER
RIEMII N —MEREASFAAR - it - &
NEAEARKERATREE - SRR
BE_ - \FZA-—BBRE_ZT-_—F=H8
=+—Hit WFELERFERARKRE - NARAES
RZ S =E AR B BRKIERAF BT
BIRZERTTAR - —F— \FEHIEZEHFEA
HFAAREEABARKI0ETT  UNEEFETH
AREE30ETT ©

PTN] ) gggngﬁ,\mﬁ?%q EENCIE-S
Fl— it EREEE G (RipE]) - *ETE;,Z

W& AD Tfﬁ)\iiﬁgﬁﬁiﬁzxgﬁéssﬂ?ﬁﬁéo
Ziuwi PRIt R HERE ST TF+
ARBER  BH-_1+F FHEABTFHFRKAR
B&539570 - ARTHEZFTHESE  FIERBEBEIE
BhiGEET BETEBALFEMNESZT -
JJL/\_YY/\¢ )E] = Z’S jﬂﬁﬁl"b‘&¢ n/\T
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Notes to the (:onsolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

CONTD)

34, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
B 77 38 25 o
(a) Transactions with the ultimate holding company (Cont'd)

I BRI A AR 5 ()

Notes: (Cont'd)

(i)~ On 25 January 2017, the Company and the ultimate holding company
entered into a property leasing framework agreement, pursuant to
which, the ultimate holding company has agreed to lease and procure
its other members to lease certain premises to the Group for its
productions and operations, including but not limited to office premises,
warehouses and staff quarter, for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

(b)
REEBRAFRB AV REGERENZS

B eE

(ifi)

(8]

b‘(\\:%ftifﬂ :+£E| KA ) HR R AR A
—;g;TfF%%%E B o BIEZ B - &K
ZERAGERE Hﬁﬁjﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁmz,a Gl
FUETFAEBRELEEREE  BFEETRER
%“*%% BEKBIRFEE REHE=F 8=

—+E—A—BRE_ZE-—NAF+_-_A=1+—
EIJJ:°

Transactions with the subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETTT
Sales of Chinese medicine related products (Note (i) %65 A %548 B8 2= & (FF 5 () 1,078,396 925,238
Purchases of Chinese medicine related products (Note (i) £EBE e 848 82 & (M = (i) 146,224 118,972
Sole overseas exclusive distributorship (Note (iii)) /&49NE 3R & 885 (7 (iii)) 60,367 60,677
Advertising services income (Note (iv)) & & BRFSIA (B 3E (iv)) 41,505 37,205
Property leasing expense(Note (a)(iii) ¥ 2 & & F (M &F (a)(iii)) 3,687 3,806
Notes: LR
0) On 29 September 2016, the Company renewed the distribution (i) 75/\\_ T—RNENLA-TNE » KRAFEFRIER
framework agreement with the ultimate holding company. Pursuant to NEVEFTHEERERZ - RIBZER HE

the renewed agreement, the price of the products to be sold by the
Group to the ultimate holding company’s subsidiaries and joint ventures
shall not be lower than that charged by the Group to other independent
third parties and shall be determined in accordance with a reasonable
cost plus a fair and reasonable profit margin: (1) the reasonable cost shall
be determined by reference to the cost of the raw materials, the cost of
labour and the manufacturing expense etc.; and (2) the profit margin
shall be determined by reference to the prevailing market and the then
market price for comparable products in the related industry, and the
profit rate of the products of the Group in the past years of not
exceeding 50%, which is in line with the previous gross profit rate of the
Group. The renewed agreement was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 16 December 2016 and for a term
of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

EEEHETRRERARANTARIRAERE
ZEMBREMER AN EB R EMIB L E =
%Z%‘QT% WIRABKAMAFEEBFBERET -

NAEKASBEMEIK A « AT K AEER
iﬁgm KA BEER2BEEITENLERZ
EAMSRERMSERRAEBERBEFE
TiBiES0% (EANEBMBEEMNR ) 2FBHxX
MET °» ZB I HECEARA —_T—RF+=
BTAABRMBRERFIASIE  BH=F
H—_FE—ttF—F—HE-Z—NF+=A
=t+—H8-




34.

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contp)
R i 7 22 5 a0

A R B 3R B AR (A

HE—ZFT—\F+_A=1+—HIFE

Transactions with the subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company (Contd)

SRR ERAFN AR RGBEENRZ S @

Notes: (Cont'd)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

The Company renewed a master procurement agreement with the
ultimate holding company on 29 September 2016. Pursuant to the
agreement, the subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding
company can supply to the Group the products that are required for the
Group's production, sale and distribution. The price procured by the
Group from the ultimate holding company’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures shall be negotiated by the parties on an arm'’s length basis. The
ultimate holding company shall not supply the products to the Group (1)
at a price higher than that of the products of the same type and quality
offered to the Group by independent third parties or the prevailing
market price; (2) if there is no comparable market price available for the
relevant materials/products, the price shall be determined based on the
integrated cost plus not more than 15% surcharge, and in any event, the
price for such procurement shall not be higher than terms offered by
independent third parties to the Group. The renewed agreement was
approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 16
December 2016 and for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019.

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine renewed an exclusive distributorship
frame-work agreement with Parent Company 28 October 2014, with an
effective period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017, pursuant to
which, Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine, is appointed as the sole
overseas distributor of the Parent Company, for the purpose of the
distribution of the relevant Tong Ren Tang branded products supplied
by Parent Company ("Relevant Products’) outside the PRC. The price of
the Relevant Products supplied shall not be higher than the wholesale
price of the Relevant Products sold to the wholesale customers in the
PRC and shall be determined with reference to the then prevailing
market price. The renewed agreement has been approved by the
extraordinary general meeting of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine on
27 November 2014.

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine renewed the agreement with Parent
Company with similar pricing policies on 8 November 2017, with an
effective period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The renewed
agreement has been approved by the extraordinary general meeting of
Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine on 1 December 2017.

On 29 September 2016, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising renewed
the advertising agency framework agreement with the ultimate holding
company for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. Accordingly, the fees for the provision of specific services by Tong
Ren Tang Century Advertising to the ultimate holding company or its
subsidiaries and joint ventures under individual implementation
agreement shall be negotiated and determined by the parties with
reference to the actual quotation offered by the advertiser, which is at
discount on the basis of its published price list, plus a reasonable fee for
the advertising agency service of Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising,
which is generally not higher than 15% of the quotation offered by the
advertiser.

BHeE - (#)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ARANZZE—RNEFELA TN BEZRIERD
AIBERZ—HDERBERE DS - Bt SEZEBRA
ANTFRARIRAECENAAEEHERAEEE
E #HERDEMBZABER AEER&K
ERARNTARIRAECERBHNERBIER
FRAGETER - OWREREEZEMME @ &
TERBYE=FRAANEBREZ ERRERFZ
MEET QWHEBERTETWAIHERT
B BIERGHRBARAN MR 5% KM meE
BETE  BEmuM  SEREBZEBRERTS
MBI E = F AL ERE 2 ERERT - B
BHECEARR —E—AF+ AT/ NBEHN
RERERREHE  A=F KT —+F—
A—BZ=Z—N4F+=-—A=+—H8-

RZZ-—NFE+A-+N\R RCERZEEFR
AERBIBREH DS AR - —hF
—A—RET—tF+-A=+—H - REH
@ RACEREN2EFARRICZERBERE
RERBEINEZEHE - AT AR P B LASM R
HEFLRHREZFHERCEREER ((HRE
) BRRRHEERERNERE2ENRFE
MWTISERETE - BENERREHE T EKH
B EER - ZBITHEEER T —F
T—AZTLtAARNRCERERRENAE
HEAE

R=ZZT—+F+—AN\B ' ACEREEGNF
ABUMERBRES T ZHhs BT
—N\E—A—HE-_ZE-_FF+-_A=+—H-
ZMERCER_E—tF+t A —HEBHRMNRLC
=R R A IE o

RZZB-RNFAAZ+IAR  RECEHLEESH
REERAREITEESREERBE A=
F ARER-Z—tE-A-RE-_TNF
TZA=+—R8 - gt - ACEHLESARKZ
ZERARREFARSAEEELAEARITHE
ATHREHEMABRE 2 EANE2EESRH
BEEBESTIPENER LG T —ERNENE
SREEYMERCEMLESNAERBER (—
BRAERES RHERERERN 15%) BEE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conto)
B i 7 22 5 a0

(c) Transactions with other state-owned enterprises

St B A SR R 5

In the ordinary course of business, the Group sells goods to, and
purchases goods from other state-owned enterprises based on terms
as set out in the underlying agreements, market prices or actual cost
incurred, or as mutually agreed.

The Group places deposits in and receives loans mainly from state-
owned financial institutions in the ordinary course of business. The
deposits and loans are in accordance with the terms as set out in the
respective agreements, and the interest rates are set at prevailing
market rates.

(d) Key management compensation

FEREA BB

Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and
senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

EREEBBRALENARERS  AEEMA
HEEEYEREBESY - BEXFER
HEHHEAEIGER - mE  MEENERK
A B B A IGRETT o

EEERSFAKENTFRMEREZ BB
BESHMEBEL - FRIMERDREZIEA
BT - MXRNILRBITHISNRETE -

TEEEABBRATMIFRTEEMSR
BEAE - EBRBAZEEEABXN
BB T -

As at 31 December
W+=B=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits ¥ F1E {th 2 #{& & & 9,189 9,098
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3BK & A A — FEEHZET 2] 442 405
9,631 9,503
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& OF B 05 i 3R B R (4]
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—=—F—/\F+=A=1+—HILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont)
R i 7 22 5 a0

(e) Balances with related parties
128 Wi 2> ) A 2R Bk AR
As at 31 December, balances with related parties consisted of: PN+ A=1+—8 B RIFRAGEEE

As at 31 December
R+t=BA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000 A
I-LESH BT .
Amounts due from related parties (Note (i)): /& U B8 B 2 T 708 (FFEE (i) : :;
Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company e
RERA RN T ARIREG SR 141,003 115,862
Other state-owned enterprises F B A 1k % 73,775 87,467
214,778 203,329 227

Amounts due to related parties (Note (i)): #& 1 B8 B A B 58 (MiEE (i) :
Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company

REERAFNFREIRAEERE 50,269 46,699
Other state-owned enterprises F B 5 1k % 104,409 22,451
154,678 69,150

Borrowings from a related party (Note (ii)): {& B85 2 518 A K=K (B (i) -
Ultimate holding company Bx 4% 1% 3% 2 7] 32,000 32,000

[ 73 B & 3R R )R
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B PR B 3R B AR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTD)
B 7 28 5

(e) Balances with related parties (Cont'd)
58] W5k 2> ] 4 2 B 7 )

Notes:

(i) The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable or repayable within twelve months.

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of amounts due from related
parties based on invoice date was as follows:

() ER/ESBBRARSRERES  ER
B WETEARGEE -

EFERK

RT+—A=1+—8 EBREBIFARBEREER
B HERE AT

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H

RMB’000
ARMF T

RMB'000
ARETIT

Within 4 months PH{E A LA R 159,684 158,830
Over 4 months but within 1 year P9 B 2= — 4 46,318 24,495
Over 1 year —F A £ 13,057 21915

219,059 205,240

Movements in the provision for impairment of amounts due from related
parties were as follows:

FE YRR A B IRBUE RO B BN A T

RMB’000
ARBTR

RMB000
ARETT

At 1 January R—H—H 1,911 =
Provision for impairment J& BT 12 2,370 1911
At31 December R +=—HA=+—H 4,281 1,911

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of amounts due to related parties
based on invoice date was as follows:

R+—A=1+—8 ENBEBIFZRBEREER
B HRRE AT

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Within 4 months PU1&E A LA A 153,663 62,442
Over 4 months but within 1 year P9 B Z=— 4 141 6,052
Over 1 year —F A Lk 874 656
154,678 69,150

(i) Borrowings from a related party are in the form of entrusted loans which
are unsecured, bear interest by reference to benchmark lending interest
rate published by the People’s Bank of China with moderate decrease
and repayable within one year.

i) MBARERAERTRRNANEREN &
I 2% B A R R 1T R B A
TOF - WIE— PR -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

35. BANKING FACILITIES

SBATRNE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had aggregated banking facilities
of RMB1,080,487,000 (2017: RMB706,157,000) for loan and other trade
financing. As at 31 December 2018, the unutilised banking facilities
amounted to RMB909,681,000 (2017: RMB530,350,000).

36. COMMITMENTS
HREFHIH

(a) Capital commitments

BAK

As at 31 December, the Group had the following capital commitments
which were contracted but not provided for:

& PF B i R B EE (48)

HE—ZFT—\F+_A=1+—HIFE

RZE—NE+_A=+—8 ~&=EF#HE
AR ¥ 1080487000 TRITEEREE(ZZ
—+F : AR¥706,157,0007T) * AIARERK
MESZME R_TE—N\F+_A=+—
B RBEZEFREE A AR®09681,0007T
—T—+t%F : AR¥530350,0007T) °

RTZA=1t—8 AEEEN N HARRR
AR wRAEBE RO EAAGE

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB'000
AREF T

Property, plant and equipment 55 & &Y « BRE K&

245,914 395,855

(b) Operating lease commitments

R MBE R

The Group leases various warehouse and factory premises under non-
cancellable operating leases. The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

AEEURBEMEELERNBEE RN
BEHM A o R A A BEERL 2 RIE
REEEAT

As at 31 December
R+=-—H=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREFTT

Not later than one year —F A 62,293 59,498
Later than one year and no later than five years — & 2| 1 & 59,747 75,698
Later than five years FLEF LA = 4,801 11,275
126,841 146,471

WbV —F
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF

37. muANCEﬁﬂETAND3E$RVENKWEMENTOFTHECONWANY
o vl B AR Mo B R

Balance sheet of the Company

\
<
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
>
\
4
\
4
;l
|

A B A R
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—8H
=
= RMB’000 RMB'000
5 ISR Rt
o
o Assets EE
—
= Non-current assets IR B) & &
z Leasehold land and land use rights F & £t & 4 b {55 FA 48 74,920 77,250
< Property, plant and equipment 512 R IZEY) - BE KB 985,929 844,937
Intangible assets & &= 4,168 2,392
Investments in subsidiaries ¥fF A Al H) % & 858,784 670,826
Investments accounted for using the equity method &z /A A BRFYIRE 8,700 10,700
230 Amounts due from subsidiaries &Y+ &) 7K 18 - 299,950
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
FBENEEY - BB KRR EEN K 26,245 25914
Deferred income tax assets #EIEFTIS 1 & & 12,966 8,086
; é 1,971,712 1940955
}4 S Current assets i 81 & &
4B Inventories 17 & 1,909,347 1,798,051
} S Trade and bills receivables JEU BE &mﬁﬁ 816,003 959,726
4 o Amounts due from subsidiaries &4+ &5k IR 397,049 10,766
} 5 Amounts due from other related parties JEHSZ 2N PO 21,198 78,403
4 i Other financial assets at amortised cost J«A%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ}?ﬁ 10,278 =
>< b Prepayments and other current assets T84 58 & B 7R &) & B 15,922 22,135
} [* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
< > WARBEFEEESS AR MEE RSN EREE 141,827 -
3 2 Short-term bank deposits %5 EA#R1T1F X 21,191 79,368
4 Z Cash and cash equivalents 3R & & 3R & EEY) 974,823 1,047,126
> E
4 B 4,307,638 3,995,575
> E
; 2 Total assets & & # 5t 6,279,350 5,936,530
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z=F—/\F+=H=+—HIFFZE

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (conto)
4 ) AR M A R

Balance sheet of the Company (Contd)

A& EAERm®

As at 31 December
Rt+t=HA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT !
Equity and liabilities ## & & & {
Equity attributable to owners of the Company _;
BEERRAQRREE &
Share capital &< 1,280,784 1,280,784 #
Reserves (Note (a)) & # (P 3T @) 3,098,345 2,804,306
Total equity #Ez= & 5t 4,379,129 4,085,090
Liabilities & f& 231
Non-current liabilities 3£/ E) & &
Borrowings f& 5k 910,408 914,974
Deferred income — government grants #EZEUW A — BT BN 47,571 57,835
957,979 972,809 S n
N )
Current liabilities REI & & }LL 4
Trade and bills payables &1 BR 58 & 5 395,601 365,951 » }
Salary and welfare payables &t T & K 18 Fl| & 65,378 64,496 - {
Advances from customers FBU ZXIA 23,130 25,093 = }
Arnounts due to subsidiaries B -2 51308 49,854 118,855 =
Amounts due to other related parties AN NI E 100,536 37,128 &= }
Current income tax liabilities & BT 5 & (& 21,190 18,099 & 4
Other payables A &< 5% 199,553 164,509 =t >
Borrowings f& 2k 87,000 84,500 f <
al
942,242 878,631 h
Total liabilities & & & &t 1,900,221 1,851,440 >4
Total equity and liabilities #3 & & & 5t 6,279,350 5,936,530 a
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of /A &] PR RERESEEN _ZE—NF=A a
Directors on 19 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf. ‘f‘j'L BitE WRREZFZEE - }
Gao Zhen Kun Fang Jia Zhi ;
5 R 18 BERE <
Chairman Director
EFE 5% h
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE=F—/\F+=A=+—HIEFZF
37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (contp)

N B R B B3R

Balance sheet of the Company (Contd)

PRUONCNEO OO OO OO NCNEONEONCNONEOCNONEONONEONONO

2w & AR R )
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) ATFIEREER
Statutory Statutory

z Capital surplus public welfare

o reserve  reserve fund fund  Taxreserve Retained

s (Note18(a))  (Note18(b))  (Note18(b))  (Note 18(c)) earnings

o AR

o EX R NEE  iEAEE 4%ES

= (W)  (MEE18b)  (RiEE1s(b)  (W&E18(c) ERedlE

> RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

: ARETT ARETL ARBTR ARETR

<
Balance asat 1 January 2017 R =S —+F— A — A 414100 387,703 45455 102,043 1528053 247735
Profit for the year ZEfE - - - = 531,877 531,877
Appropriation from retained earnings IR N E - 53,201 = = (53,201) =
2016 dividends paid to shareholders of the Company

232 INARARR-Z—FERE - - - - (204,925) (204,925)

Balance as at 31 December 2017 R=F—tE+-A=1+—AH%HE 414100 440904 45455 102,043 1,801,804 2,804,306

a)

= Balance asat 1 January 018 R =E—\E—A—B#HE 414,100 440,904 45,455 102,043 1,801,804 2,804,306
Profitfor the year & I - - - - 511,772 511,772
Appropriation from retained earnings IR B R A E - 51,208 - - (51,208) -
2017 dividends paid to shareholders of the Company
INADARE=E—+FERE - - - - (1773) (217173

Balance as at 31 December 2018
R-ZZE-N\E+-R=1—-BHE 414,100 492,112 45,455 102,043 2,044,635 3,098,345
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Please use JD App to scan the following QR code
i FH S SR App it 4t DA T A 1S

Tong Ren Tang Food Flagship Store Tong Ren Tang Cosmetic Flagship Store
(JD.COM) (JD.COM)
) A3 SRR R SR 4k) A A At SBE g s ORISR )

Please use TAOBAO App to scan the following QR code
wi VR B App fa 8 DA T 4TS

Tong Ren Tang Food Flagship Store Tong Ren Tang Cosmetic Flagship Store
(TMALL.COM) (TAOBAO.COM)
[l £ S (RS T 4 WAt iR s (F )

OFFICE AND MAILING ADDRESS  No 20. Nansanhuan Zhonglu, Fengtai District, Beijing,
the PRC

W Rl bR AE I A R = B R 205%



Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
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